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The directors present their strategic report for the year 
ended 31 March 2021.

Overall Business Environment and Update on the Global 
Health Pandemic : COVID -19

The Global economy has been severely impacted over 
the last one year. The pandemic has had its impact 
on all spheres of the economy, driving unemployment 
rates in double digits resulting in contraction of world 
output by 3.3%. The silver lining however is vaccines are 
now developed in record time with promising efficacy 
rates. A sustainable economic recovery with a limited 
handholding by fiscal and monetary policies is certainly 
seen on the horizon. The IMF latest forecasts have 
projected the global economy to grow by 6.0% in 2021 
and the growth rate is expected to moderate to 4.4% in 
2022.

With various governments rapidly implementing 
inoculation programs, covering large sets of the 
populations, future risks of any economic stoppages have 
been reduced to a considerable extent. The economic 
damage due to the pandemic was also addressed by 
Fiscal and Monetary Stimulus, led by the developed 
world economies such as the UK. The economic policies 
promise to remain supportive of growth.

The governments’ fiscal stimulus has supported the 
economy.. It is estimated that, private consumption is 
expected to recover sharply towards end of 2021 and 
shall be the key driver of the recovery. Investment is 
expected to recover substantially in 2021 and 2022 and is 
expected to return to pre-crisis level in 2022.

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Review of Business

The Directors are pleased to report that the financial 
year as of March 31, 2021 ended on a more optimistic 
note than it began in March 2020 with the onset of the 
COVID pandemic situation. The Automotive Industry 
saw a severe contraction of sales in H1 of FY21 followed 
by a steady recovery where growth is now expected to 
be in double digits in calendar year 2021. The coming 
decade promises to be one of the largest in terms 
of Investments for Automakers. Megatrends driven 
by Connectivity, Autonomous, Shared mobility and 
Electrification (CASE) continue their secular adoption, as 
they persist to disrupt the Industry. The coming years will 
also see investments getting prioritized by Automakers 
in areas of digital and customer experience. In the UK 
territory, the overall economic scenario was mixed in FY 
21 due to ongoing COVID pandemic. As compared to the 
previous year, the territory did not show the same level 
of traction in our focus practices and the sales cycle 
continue to remain long.

The Company was able to maintain business with its 
existing customer base in the UK. The Company’s growth 
for FY 21 was impacted due to the COVID pandemic. 
The company promises to show growth in FY 22 with its 
focus on automotive embedded software.

During this year, our revenue stood at GBP 13.02 million, 
a Y-o-Y de-growth of (34%) against GBP 19.85 Million in 
FY20. The EBITDA for FY21 stood at 1.46 % as against 0.41 
% for FY20. The EBITDA for FY21 was GBP 0.19 million. 
The Net Profit for FY21 stood at GBP 0.04 million.

KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited 
Registered Office: Gautam House, 1-3 Shenley Avenue, Ruislip Manor, Middlesex, HA4 6BP.



2

Kpit technologies (UK) Limited

With respect to liquidity , the Cash Balance as at March 
31, 2021 stood at GBP 2.97 million as against GBP 3.00 
million as at March 31, 2020. The DSO were at 93 days 
as at March 31, 2021 as against 94 days as at March 
31, 2020. We have consistently focused on faster cash 
conversion and as a result have been able to bring down 
the debtors substantially.

The total headcount for the company stood at 72 as at 
the end of FY21. The same was 138 as at the end of FY20. 
The Development Headcount was 67 in FY21 as against 
132 in FY20.

In the medium term, we want to focus on improvement 
in operating profitability with emphasis on productivity 
improvement, increase in offshore revenues, leveraging 

of fixed costs and scaling up in our strategic accounts. 
The Company has taken appropriate measures to tackle 
the business uncertainties during the year and has also 
taken measures to control the cost significantly.

Considering better momentum with our customers 
and in the Automotive Industry, we expect that the 
Company’s financial performance for the next financial 
year FY 22 will improve and will be in a better shape 
than in FY21. The Company will continue to make efforts 
to capture growth and take appropriate measures to 
increase sales realization in FY22.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
P Sathe - Director
10 May 2021
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Report of the Directors
for the year ended 31 March 2021
The directors present their report with the financial 
statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the company during the year 
was marketing and sale of computer software products, 
operating in conjuction with KPIT Technologies Limited, 
the parent company which is registered in India.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends will be distributed for the year ended 31 
March 2021.

DIRECTORS

The directors shown below have held office during the 
whole of the period from 1 April 2020 to the date of this 
report.

K P Patil
D Koshal
P Sathe

Other changes in directors holding office are as follows:

A Talaulicar - appointed 4 August 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 
POLICIES

The company’s financial instruments comprise cash and 
liquid resources, various items such as trade debtors, 
trade creditors etc that arise directly from its operations. 
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to 
raise finance for the company’s operations. It is, and has 
been throughout the period under review, the company’s 
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be 
undertaken. The main risks arising from the company’s 
financial instruments are liquidity risk, interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and market risk.

Liquidity risk

The company has to manage the financial risk by 
ensuring sufficient liquidity is available to meet 

foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets safely and 
profitably.

Credit risk

The company financial asset is cash. It is exposed to 
credit risk in respect of its cash balances as it uses only 
one financial institution in the UK.

Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency transaction exposures arising on 
internal and external trade flows are partially hedged. 
The company’s objective is to minimise the exposure 
of overseas trade to transaction risk by matching 
local currency income with local currency costs where 
possible, as well as maintaining multi-currency accounts 
to minimise conversions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic 
Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and 
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year. Under that law 
the directors have elected to prepare the financial 
statements in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). 
Under company law the directors must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company and of the profit or loss of the company for 
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the 
directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply 
them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the company will continue in business.
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the company and enable them to ensure that the 
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO 
AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant 
audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the 
Companies Act 2006) of which the company’s auditors 

are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps 
that he ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make himself aware of any relevant audit information 
and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware 
of that information.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Butler & Co LLP, will be proposed for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
P Sathe - Director
10 May 2021
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the 
Members of KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of KPIT 
Technologies (UK) Limited (the ‘company’) for the 
year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Income 
Statement, Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, 
Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement 
and Notes to the Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework 
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the 
company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its 
profit for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the company in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the COVID19 
pandemic on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of COVID-19 are 
relevant to understanding our audit of the financial 

statements. All audits assess and challenge the 
reasonableness of estimates made by the directors, 
and related disclosures and the appropriateness of 
the going concern basis of preparation of the financial 
statements. All of these depend on assessments of the 
future economic environment and the company’s future 
prospects and performance.

COVID-19 is one of the most significant public health, 
social and economic event and at the date of this 
report its effects are subject to unprecedented levels of 
uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible 
effects unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide 
approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing 
the company’s future prospects and performance. 
However, no audit should be expected to predict the 
unknowable factors or all possible future implications for 
the company and this is particularly the case in relation 
to COVID19

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded 
that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 
is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ 
assessment of the company’s ability to continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting included 
The directors have prepared the financial statements 
on the going concern basis as they do not intend to 
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and 
as they have concluded that the company’s financial 
position means that this is realistic.They have also 
concluded that there are no material uncertainties that 
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to 
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the 
date of approval of the financial statements (“The going 
concern period”)

We are required to report to you if we have concluded 
that the use of the going concern basis of accounting 
is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material 
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use 
of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date 
of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation 
of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent 
risks to the company’s business model, including the 
impact of COVID-19, and analysed how those risks might 
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affect the company’s financial resources or ability to 
continue operations over the going concern period. We 
have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or 
conditions and as subsequent events may result in 
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that 
were reasonable at the time they were made, the 
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this 
auditor’s report is not a guarantee that the company 
continues in operation.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not 
identified any material uncertainties relating to events 
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months 
from when the financial statements are authorised for 
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the 
directors with respect to going concern are described in 
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information in the 
Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors, but 
does not include the financial statements and our Report 
of the Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial 
statements themselves. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies 
Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the 
course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic Report and 
the Report of the Directors for the financial year 
for which the financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors 
have been prepared in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the 
company and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements 
in the Strategic Report or the Report of the Directors.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following 
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, 
or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with 
the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration 
specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement set out on pages four and five, the directors 
are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
directors determine necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors 
are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
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matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Auditors 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined 
above, to detect material misstatements in respect of 
irregularities, including fraud.

A further description of our responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of 
our Report of the Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, 
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of 
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s 
members those matters we are required to state to them 
in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company 
and the company’s members as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

S Phadke (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Butler & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
& Statutory Auditor
Third Floor
126-134 Baker Street
London
W1U 6UE

10 May 2021
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Income Statement  
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020

£ £

TURNOVER 3 13,016,157 19,851,317

Cost of sales 11,174,645 17,562,538

GROSS PROFIT 1,841,512 2,288,779

Administrative expenses 1,872,432 2,310,792

OPERATING LOSS 5 (30,920) (22,013)

Interest receivable and similar income 75,806 36,510

44,886 14,497

Interest payable and similar expenses 7 438 3,961

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 44,448 10,536

Tax on profit 8 6,022 (9,125)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 38,426 19,661
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Other Comprehensive Income    
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020

£ £

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 38,426 19,661

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 38,426 19,661
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Balance Sheet  
at as 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets 9 5,259 61,746

Investments 10 15,100,198 15,100,198

15,105,457 15,161,944

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors 11 9,534,819 15,077,845

Cash at bank 2,974,169 2,995,948

12,508,988 18,073,793

CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year 12 4,712,535 10,372,925

NET CURRENT ASSETS 7,796,453 7,700,868

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 22,901,910 22,862,812

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 14 672 -

NET ASSETS 22,901,238 22,862,812

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital 15 14,990,616 14,990,616

Retained earnings 16 7,910,622 7,872,196

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 22,901,238 22,862,812

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 April 
2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

P Sathe - Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Called up share 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Total 
equity

£ £ £

Balance at 1 April 2019 11,527,416 7,852,535 19,379,951

Changes in equity

Issue of share capital 3,463,200 - 3,463,200

Total comprehensive income - 19,661 19,661

Balance at 31 March 2020 14,990,616 7,872,196 22,862,812

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income - 38,426 38,426

Balance at 31 March 2021 14,990,616 7,910,622 22,901,238
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Cash Flow Statement  
for the year Ended 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020

£ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 1 (101,798) (3,408,847)

Interest paid (438) (3,961)

Tax paid 7,555 237,989

Net cash from operating activities (94,681) (3,174,819)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,904) (10,683)

Purchase of fixed asset investments - (4,247,057)

Interest received 75,806 36,510

Net cash from investing activities 72,902 (4,221,230)

Cash flows from financing activities

Amount introduced by directors - 46,949

Share issue - 3,463,200

Net cash from financing activities - 3,510,149

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (21,779) (3,885,900)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2 2,995,948 6,881,848

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2 2,974,169 2,995,948
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statement  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
1. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2021 2020

£ £

Profit before taxation 44,448 10,536

Depreciation charges 10,109 62,142

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 49,283 -

Finance costs 438 3,961

Finance income (75,806) (36,510)

28,472 40,129

Decrease in trade and other debtors 2,417,198 1,945,307

Decrease in trade and other creditors (2,547,468) (5,394,283)

Cash generated from operations (101,798) (3,408,847)

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 The amounts disclosed on the Cash Flow Statement in respect of cash and cash equivalents are in respect of 
these Balance Sheet amounts:

 Year ended 31 March 2021

31/3/21 1/4/20

£ £

Cash and cash equivalents 2,974,169 2,995,948

 Year ended 31 March 2020

31/3/20 1/4/19

£ £

Cash and cash equivalents 2,995,948 6,881,848

3. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

At 1/4/20 Cash flow At 31/3/21

£ £ £

Net cash

Cash at bank 2,995,948 (21,779) 2,974,169

2,995,948 (21,779) 2,974,169

Total 2,995,948 (21,779) 2,974,169
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
1. STATUTORY INFORMATION

 KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited is a private company, limited by shares, registered in England and Wales. The 
company’s registered number and registered office address can be found on the Company Information page.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Basis of preparing the financial statements

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and the Companies Act 2006. The 
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

 Going concern

 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption that the company 
will continue to trade in the foreseeable future. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that 
adequate resources exist for the company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future; and 
with the continued support of the company’s shareholders, the company will be able to meet its liabilities as 
they fall due for payment. Therefore, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

 Since the financial year end, there are uncertainties relating to the COVID19 pandemic.The directors have 
analysed how the risk might affect the company financial resources and ability to continue operations and have 
nothing to report in this respect. The directors believe that the company is well placed to manage its business 
risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook. No provisions have been made in the financial 
statements.

 Turnover

 Turnover represents amounts receivable for services provided net of VAT. Revenue is recognised on approval by 
the customer, providing all obligations have been fulfilled. .

 Revenue for time & material contracts, invoices are raised on the basis of customer approved timesheets. In case 
of fixed price projects, invoices are raised for prescribed milestones achieved on the basis of acceptance / sign-
off received from customer.

 Tangible fixed assets

 Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful 
life.

 Short leasehold - Over the lease term
 Fixtures and fittings - 10% to 12.5% on cost
 Plant & machinery - 25% to 33.33% on reducing balance

 Investments in subsidiaries

 Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recognised at cost.

 Taxation

 Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement, except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

 Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

 Current tax is recognised at the amount of tax payable using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the 
balance sheet date.

 Timing differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from 
those in which they are recognised in financial statements. Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end and that are expected to apply to the reversal 
of the timing difference.

 Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they 
will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

 Foreign currencies

 Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling 
at the date of transaction. Exchange differences are taken into account in arriving at the operating result.

 Hire purchase and leasing commitments

 Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the 
lease.

 Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

 The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the company’s pension 
scheme are charged to profit or loss in the period to which they relate.

3. TURNOVER

 The turnover and profit before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the company.

 An analysis of turnover by geographical market is given below:

2021 2020

£ £

United Kingdom 10,086,619 18,700,912

Europe 2,866,509 1,127,545

United States of America 63,029 950

Asia - 21,910

13,016,157 19,851,317

4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

2021 2020

£ £

Wages and salaries 4,249,448 7,194,247

Social security costs 547,193 784,966

Other pension costs 30,678 20,244

4,827,319 7,999,457

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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 The average number of employees during the year was as follows:  

2021 2020

£ £

Marketing, Sales & Delivery 92 132

Administration 1 2

93 134

2021 2020

£ £

Directors’ remuneration 320,953 395,802

 Information regarding the highest paid director is as follows:

2021 2020

£ £

Emoluments etc 320,953 395,802

5. OPERATING LOSS

 The operating loss is stated after charging:

2021 2020

£ £

Other operating leases 49,435 46,563

Depreciation - owned assets 10,109 42,298

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 49,283 -

Foreign exchange differences 138,094 30,974

6. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

2021 2020

£ £

Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit of the company’s 
financial statements

18,315 17,536

 Legal and professional fees include £19,750 for the provision of a non- audit services i.e.: payroll and taxation 
compliance.

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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7. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

2021 2020

£ £

Bank interest 438 3,961

8. TAXATION

 Analysis of the tax charge/(credit)

 The tax charge/(credit) on the profit for the year was as follows:

2021 2020

£ £

Current tax:

UK corporation tax 5,350 (1,875)

Deferred tax 672 (7,250)

Tax on profit 6,022 (9,125)

 Reconciliation of total tax charge/(credit) included in profit and loss

 The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The difference is 
explained below:

2021 2020

£ £

Profit before tax 44,448 10,536

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% 
(2020 - 19%)

8,445 2,002

Effects of:

Utilisation of tax losses (13,767) -

Excess of depreciation over capital allowance  10,672 10,721

Over/Under provision of tax   - (14,599)

Deferred tax   672 (7,249)

Total tax charge/(credit) 6,022 (9,125)

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Plant and
machinery

Fixtures and 
fittings

Totals

£ £ £

COST

At 1 April 2020 138,550 1,261 139,811

Additions 2,904 - 2,904

Disposals (98,565) - (98,565)

At 31 March 2021 42,889 1,261 44,150

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2020 76,804 1,261 78,065

Charge for year 10,109 - 10,109

Eliminated on disposal (49,283) - (49,283)

At 31 March 2021 37,630 1,261 38,891

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2021 5,259 - 5,259

At 31 March 2020 61,746 - 61,746

10. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Shares in group 
undertakings

£

COST

At 1 April 2020

and 31 March 2021 15,100,198

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2021 15,100,198

At 31 March 2020 15,100,198

 The company’s investments at the Balance Sheet date in the share capital of companies include the following:

 KPIT Technologies GmbH

 Registered office: Adams-Lehmann-Straße 109, 80797 München

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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 Nature of business: IT services

%

Class of shares: holding

Ordinary 100.00

2021 2020

£ £

Aggregate capital and reserves 11,836,772 6,263,247

Profit/(loss) for the year 1,283,721 (7,102,412)

 KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited is acting as a ‘Guarantor’. As per the agreement the guarantor shall pay all such 
amounts payable by KPIT Technologies GmbH as though the guarantor instead of KPIT Technologies GmbH was 
expressed to be the principal debtor.

 KPIT Technologies Limited, India, who is the ultimate and immediate parent company of KPIT Technologies (UK) 
Limited has provided a guarantee of GBP 5 million towards the operations of the entity.

 Thaigertec Co LTD

 Registered office: Rungrojthanakul Building,14th Floor,44/1 Ratchadapisek Road, Huay Kwang District, Bangkok

 Nature of business: IT services

%

Class of shares: holding

Ordinary 98.31

2021 2020

£ £

Aggregate capital and reserves 618,233 858,229

(Loss)/profit for the year (203,025) 655

 The financial statements contain information about KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited as an individual company and 
do not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group. The company is exempt under section 
399-402 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as the 
group.

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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11. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2021 2020

£ £

Trade debtors 4,674,232 7,049,997

Amounts owed by group undertakings 4,216,013 7,328,936

Other debtors 567,385 465,332

Tax 22,622 35,527

Prepayments and accrued income 54,567 198,053

9,534,819 15,077,845

12. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2021 2020

£ £

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,349,651 7,864,516

Social security and other taxes 10,329 17,745

VAT 770,404 555,421

Other creditors 578,401 750,436

Accrued expenses 1,003,750 1,184,807

4,712,535 10,372,925

13. LEASING AGREEMENTS

 Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows: 

2021 2020

£ £

Within one year 9,080 9,080

14. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

2021 2020

£ £

Deferred tax 672 -

Deferred tax

£

Provided during year 672

Balance at 31 March 2021 672

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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15. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

 Allotted, issued and fully paid:

Number: Class: Nominal value: 2021 2020

£ £

14,990,616 Ordinary £1 14,990,616 14,990,616

 3,463,200 Ordinary shares of £1 each were allotted and fully paid for cash at par during the year. 

16. RESERVES

Retained 
earnings

£

At 1 April 2020 7,872,196

Profit for the year 38,426

At 31 March 2021 7,910,622

17. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

 The ultimate controlling party and ultimate and immediate parent company is KPIT Technologies Limited, a 
company registered in India.

 KPIT Technologies Limited is the parent undertaking of the only group for which consolidated financial 
statements are prepared. These financial statements may be obtained by the public form KPIT 
Campus,Number-17, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, MIDC-SEZ, Phase-III, Hinjawadi, Pune . 411057

18. DIRECTORS’ ADVANCES, CREDITS AND GUARANTEES

 The following advances and credits to a director subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 
2020:

2021 2020

£ £

P Sathe

Balance outstanding at start of year 32,502 46,949

Amounts repaid (32,502) (14,447)

Amounts written off - -

Amounts waived - -

Balance outstanding at end of year - 32,502

19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No. 102.33.1A, transactions with other group undertakings have 
not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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Trading and Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020

£ £ £ £

Sales 13,016,157 19,851,317

Cost of sales

Purchases 7,329,090 10,956,007

Wages 3,387,293 5,948,739

Social security 429,595 639,517

Pensions 28,667 18,275

11,174,645 17,562,538

GROSS PROFIT 1,841,512 2,288,779

Other income

Deposit account interest 75,806 36,510

1,917,318 2,325,289

Expenditure

Directors’ salaries 320,953 395,802

Directors’ social security 43,078 53,430

Directors’ pension contributions 1,313 1,316

Wages 541,202 849,706

Social security 74,520 92,019

Pensions 698 653

Rent 49,435 46,563

Rates and water 3,818 8,129

Insurance 31,127 33,704

Light and heat 201 1,224

Office expenses 7,206 7,255

Telephone 8,239 50,858

Post and stationery 2,313 5,983

Travelling 288,809 550,553

Repairs and renewals 8,489 16,798

Staff Welfare 4,187 12,781

Subscriptions - 1,109

Stamp duty provision - (114,675)

Sundry expenses 20,639 24,011

Legal and professional fees 109,197 39,308

Auditors’ remuneration 18,315 17,536
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Trading and Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020

£ £ £ £

Foreign exchange losses 138,094 30,974

Marketing expenses 31,600 81,825

Bad debts 85,868 31,764

1,789,301 2,238,626

128,017 86,663

Finance costs

Bank charges 23,739 10,024

Bank interest 438 3,961

24,177 13,985

Brought forward 103,840 72,678

Depreciation

Plant and machinery 10,109 62,142

93,731 10,536

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Plant and machinery 49,283 -

NET PROFIT 44,448 10,536
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Management Report for the fiscal year 2020-21

KPIT Technologies GmbH
Registered Office: Frankfurter Ring 105b 80807 Munich Germany.

Fundamental information about the Company

The Company provides Engineering services to its 
customers in Germany, predominantly in Automotive that 
include major Automotive OEMs and Tier 1 Companies. 
Solutions offered to these customers are Software 
products and platforms in AUTOSAR, ADAS, Powertrain 
(Conventional and Electric), Infotainment & Diagnostic 
tooling (ODX/OTX).  The Company also offers engineering 
services around embedded software development and 
testing of Electronic Control Units (ECUs). The ECUs 
are typically in Powertrain, AD/ADAS, Infotainment, 
Diagnostics and Body & Chassis. We have been investing 
in and creating non-linear solutions in this domain, 
which would contribute in increasing the overall IP, 
based revenues for the Company. 

The company is headquartered in Munich and 
has Engineering Centers and Sales offices set up 
in Wolfsburg and Dortmund. The Company has 
implemented global MPLS connectivity to connect to 
KPIT offices around the world and deployed Telepresence 
solution (High-Definition Video Conferencing).  This has 
helped company to demonstrate global capabilities to 
customers seamlessly and has also helped with the 
integration of the German employees of KPIT into the 
larger global KPIT ecosystem.

Report on Economic Position

Macro-economic and Sector-specific Environment

During the year FY 20/21, macro-economic conditions 
became a little more instable and GDP growth in 
Germany showed a decrease of 4.9 % in 2020 compared 
to an increase of 0.6 % in 2019. GDP in Quarter -2/ 
2020 was fully hit by COVID-19 outbreak and showed a 
decrease of 9.1 % compared to Quarter-1/ 2020. Beginning 
in Quarter-2/2020 GDP recovered and showed a Y-O-Y 
decline of 0.7% for Quarter-1/2021 compared to Quarter 
-1/2020.  So as compared to the previous year, the 
territory did not show the same level of traction in our 
Focus Verticals and the sales cycle continue to remain 
long. Sales have improved in the European Union since 
the financial downturn, but BREXIT has brought in new 

political and economic uncertainty, which might have 
an impact in coming years. The E.U. auto industry is 
figuring out ways to better match production capacity to 
market demand, while simultaneously investing in new 
potentially strong product areas (for example, Electric 
Cars, Small SUVs and Crossovers) and in new automobile 
technologies. The Company was able to maintain 
business with its existing customer base in the region 
and also acquired some new customers. The company’s 
growth for FY 2020-21 was impacted to a certain extent 
due to the ongoing COVID pandemic. The company 
promises to show substantial growth in FY 2021-22 with 
its Auto Business leading the way. 

Progress of Business

The Directors are pleased to report that the financial 
year as of March 31, 2021 ended on a more optimistic 
note than it began in March 2020 with the onset of the 
COVID pandemic situation. The Automotive Industry 
saw a severe contraction of sales in H1 of FY21 followed 
by a steady recovery where growth is now expected to 
be in double digits in calendar year 2021. The coming 
decade promises to be one of the largest in terms 
of Investments for Automakers. Megatrends driven 
by Connectivity, Autonomous, Shared mobility and 
Electrification (CASE) continue their secular adoption, as 
they persist to disrupt the Industry. The coming years will 
also see investments getting prioritized by Automakers in 
areas of digital and customer experience. In the Germany 
territory, the overall economic scenario was mixed in FY 
21 due to ongoing COVID pandemic. 

The Company positioned itself as a Software Integration 
Partner providing transformative solutions and offerings 
rather than a mere technology service provider. These 
offerings provided the customers not only cost savings 
but also better time-to-market, profitability and cash 
flows. In FY 20/21, the Company has further strengthened 
its position in Automotive Products business.  

Financial Position

The Company recorded an overall revenue of Euro 48.33 
Million during the year as compared to Euro 53.93 Million 
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in the previous year. Further, it reported a Net Profit of 
Euro 1.49 Million as compared to a Net Loss of Euro 8.52 
Million in the previous year. The Company has entered 
into a Domination and Profit Transfer Agreement through 
a shareholders’ resolution on 18th December 2019 with 
its subsidiary company “Microfuzzy Industrie-Elektronic 
GmbH”. As a result of this agreement, FY 20/21 profits 
of Microfuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH amounting to 
EUR 2.27 million are consolidated in the results of the 
company. In this year, the Company has strengthened 
its Engineering Team in Germany and this process is 
expected to continue in FY 2021-2022.

Operating and other expenses have reduced on 
account of appropriate cost control measures taken 
by the company during the year to tackle the business 
uncertainties due to the outbreak of COVID pandemic. 

The Company recorded total assets of Euro 37.47 Million 
at year-end as compared to Euro 41.08 Million in the 
previous year. The Company had Net Assets of Euro 13.70 
Million as of 31st March 2020 as compared to Euro 7.52 
Million in previous year.

The Net Current Assets have increased by Euro 0.11 
Million as compared to the previous year. Out of the total 
current liabilities of Euro 19.73 Million, Euro 12.91 Million 
(65.44%) are relating to amounts payable to Affiliated 
Group Companies for services purchased from them on 
the basis of the existing Revenue Model. Other Current 
Liabilities and Provisions are adequately covered with the 
Company’s Cash Balance of Euro 3.69 Million and Trade 
Receivables of Euro 13.15 Million. On an Overall Basis, 
the Company has a Current Ratio of 1.07 as compared to 
1.05 in previous year. The Equity Ratio stood at 0.37 as 
compared to 0.18 in the previous year. The EBITDA Margin 
was 1.70% as compared to -14.53% in previous year. The 
PAT (profit after tax) Margin was 3.08 % as compared to 
-15.80% in previous year. The Gross contribution margin 
was 16.64 % as compared to -2.92% in previous year. 

The Company has increased the subscribed share 
capital from EUR 10 million to EUR 25 million by passing 
the necessary shareholders’ resolution. The increase 
in authorized capital is in anticipation of organic and 
inorganic growth of business in Germany region.

The Company does not have any Long-term Debt 
and is fully funded through Shareholders’ Equity 
and Shareholder Loans. As on 31st March 2021, the 

company has mid-term debt from KPIT Technologies 
(UK) Limited of EUR 4.85 million and of EUR 2.5 million 
from Microfuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH. There is a 
short term debt of EUR 1.52 million from DBS Bank and 
HSBC bank towards the factoring service availed. The 
Company’s Sole Shareholder, KPIT Technologies (UK) 
Limited is committed to providing all the necessary 
financial support to the Company.

With a view to consolidated various locations in Germany, 
the Company has moved to the new development center 
located at Frankfurter Ring, 105B, 80807 München. The 
company has incurred a capital expenditure of EUR 1.27 
million during the year.

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had an average of 
363 Employees as compared to 416 as at the end of 
previous year. The employee attrition rate across the 
industry has gone up and the company had a top block 
and overall attrition rate in the lower double digits. 

For the operational management of the business KPIT 
monitors order backlog, revenues and EBITDA as the 
main Key Financial Indicators (KPI’s).

Report on Post Balance Sheet Events 

Management of the company monitors the development 
and also consequences of the current COVID-19 crisis 
intensively. At present management expects no material 
negative influence on economic situation in FY 2021-2022 
of the company.

Despite this the Company does not have any 
transactions of material nature to report under this 
section.

Report on Expected Developments

In FY 21/22, the Company expects a further increase 
in revenues (topline) and also to improve profitability 
materially. The Company aims to achieve this by focusing 
on offerings in niche areas, as well as by expanding the 
customer base and stringent cost optimization. This 
would translate into an even improved financial position 
for the Company.

Mobility is the only focus of our company and Germany 
is a fulcrum for the global automotive industry. Our 
investments have been concentrated on Germany in 
the last 3 to 5 years and we continue to invest in sales, 
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delivery, practice and facilities. The Company is also 
working towards improving its Cash Flows by aiming 
to reduce the time for realizing the invoices from 
customers. 

The Company feels that the Business Environment is 
well suited for its offerings and it is confident to exploit 
the improvement in business conditions to the fullest 
possible extent.   

Report on Opportunities and Risks

Opportunities

We see opportunities (medium level) in all segments – 
Passenger Car, Commercial Vehicle and Shared Mobility. 
Especially in the areas of AD/ADAS, electric Powertrain, 
AUTOSAR & vehicle diagnostics business potentials look 
quite stable which gives a good base for further growth.  
The Company is also positioned well to exploit the 
opportunities in Automotive Sector with its value added 
offerings.

Risks

The company has classified the risks based on the level 
of impact. They are –

The economic climate in EU countries is a little 
more stable than before but the buying of services 
by Automotive OEMs & Tier1s continues to remain 
challenging (low level risk). However, the main customer 
base of the Company is holding well and the company 
is able to acquire new customers in the region. 
Nevertheless, the company is dependent on a few regular 
customers. However, in the last few years we have built 
the necessary platforms and invested in resources to 
cater the customer needs which is an important aspect 
in continuing the strong relationship with customers. 
Efficient and active project management further helps 
us in mitigating the risks associated with targeted 
project completions. We expect the Company to perform 
well despite the challenges and be able to achieve the 
revenue and profitability targets for FY 21/22. 

The Global economy has been severely impacted over 
the last one year. The pandemic has had its impact 
on all spheres of the economy, driving unemployment 
rates in double digits resulting in contraction of world 
output by 3.3%. The silver lining however is vaccines are 
now developed in record time with promising efficacy 

rates. A sustainable economic recovery with a limited 
handholding by fiscal and monetary policies is certainly 
seen on the horizon. The IMF latest forecasts have 
projected the global economy to grow by 6.0% in 2021 
and the growth rate is expected to moderate to 4.4% in 
2022.

With various governments rapidly implementing 
inoculation programs, covering large sets of the 
populations, future risks of any economic stoppages have 
been reduced to a considerable extent. The economic 
damage due to the pandemic was also addressed by 
Fiscal and Monetary Stimulus, led by the developed 
world economies such as Germany.  The economic 
policies promise to remain supportive of growth.

The governments’ fiscal stimulus has supported the 
economy. It is estimated that, private consumption is 
expected to recover sharply towards end of 2021 and 
shall be the key driver of the recovery. Investment is 
expected to recover substantially in 2021 and 2022 and is 
expected to return to pre-crisis level in 2022.

Forecast

We believe that in order to achieve our mission of 
being best software integrator in automotive sector, 
our positioning and existing business with German OEM 
is a stepping stone towards the same. In the medium 
term, we want to focus on improvement in operating 
profitability with emphasis on productivity improvement, 
increase in offshore revenues, leveraging of fixed costs 
and scaling up in our strategic accounts. The Company 
has taken appropriate measures to tackle the business 
uncertainties during the year and has also taken 
measures to control the cost significantly. Considering 
better momentum with our customers and in the 
Automotive Industry, we expect that the Company’s 
financial performance for the next financial year FY 22 
will improve and will be in a better shape than in FY21. 
The Company will continue to make efforts to capture 
growth and take appropriate measures to increase sales 
realization in FY22. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KPIT Technologies GmbH 

Munich, April 26, 2021

Pankaj Sathe    Jens Tillner
Managing Director   Managing Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
To KPIT Technologies GmbH, Munich

Audit opinions

We have audited the annual financial statements of 
KPIT Technologies GmbH, Munich, which comprise the 
balance sheet as of 31 March 2021, and the statement 
of profit and loss for the financial year from 1 April 2020 
to 31 March 2021, and notes to the financial statements, 
including the recognition and measurement policies 
presented therein. In addition, we have audited the 
management report of KPIT Technologies GmbH for the 
financial year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in 
the audit, 

● the accompanying annual financial statements 
comply, in all material respects, with the 
requirements of German commercial law applicable 
to business corporations and give a true and fair 
view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of 
the Company as of 31 March 2021 and of its financial 
performance for the financial year from 1 April 2020 
to 31 March 2021 in compliance with German Legally 
Required Accounting Principles, and

● the accompanying management report as a 
whole provides an appropriate view of the 
Company’s position. In all material respects, this 
management report is consistent with the annual 
financial statements, complies with German legal 
requirements and appropriately presents the 
opportunities and risks of future development. 

In accordance with section 322 (3) sentence 1 of the HBG 
[“Handelsgesetzbuch”: “German Commercial Code”], we 
declare that our audit has not led to any reservations 
regarding the correctness of the annual financial 
staments.

Basis for the audit opinions

We conducted our audit of the annual financial 
statements and of the management report in accordance 
with Section 317 HGB and in compliance with German 
Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement 
Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer 
[Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our 
responsibilities under those requirements and principles 
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements and of the 
Management Report” section of our auditor’s report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
requirements of German commercial and professional 
law, and we have fulfilled our other German professional 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinions on the annual financial statements and on the 
management report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Management Report 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements that comply, in all material 
respects, with the requirements of German commercial 
law applicable to business corporations, and that the 
annual financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial 
performance of the Company in compliance with German 
Legally Required Accounting Principles. In addition, 
management is responsible for such internal control 
as they, in accordance with German Legally Required 
Accounting Principles, have determined necessary to 
enable the preparation of annual financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the annual financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. They also 
have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern. In addition, they are 
responsible for financial reporting based on the going 
concern basis of accounting, provided no actual or legal 
circumstances conflict therewith. 

Furthermore, management is responsible for the 
preparation of the management report that, as a 
whole, provides an appropriate view of the Company’s 
position and is, in all material respects, consistent 
with the annual financial statements, complies with 
German legal requirements, and appropriately presents 
the opportunities and risks of future development. 
In addition, management is responsible for such 
arrangements and measures (systems) as they have 
considered necessary to enable the preparation of a 
management report that is in accordance with the 
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applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to 
provide sufficient appropriate evidence for the assertions 
in the management report. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual 
Financial Statements and of the Management Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the annual financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and whether the management report as 
a whole provides an appropriate view of the Company’s 
position and, in all material respects, is consistent with 
the annual financial statements and the knowledge 
obtained in the audit, complies with the German 
legal requirements and appropriately presents the 
opportunities and risks of future development, as well as 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions on 
the annual financial statements and on the management 
report. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Section 317 HGB and in compliance with German 
Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement 
Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer 
(IDW) will always detect a material misstatement. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
annual financial statements and this management report. 

We exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

● identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the annual financial statements 
and of the management report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
controls.

● obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit of the annual financial statements and 
of arrangements and measures (systems) relevant 
to the audit of the management report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of these systems of 
the Company. 

● evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used by management and the reasonableness of 
estimates made by the executive directors and 
related disclosures.

● conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the annual financial 
statements and in the management report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our respective 
opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to be able to continue 
as a going concern. 

● evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the annual financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the annual financial 
statements present the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that the annual financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the 
assets, liabilities, financial position and financial 
performance of the Company in compliance with 
German Legally Required Accounting Principles. 

● evaluate the consistency of the management report 
with the annual financial statements, its conformity 
with [German] law, and the view of the Company’s 
position it provides.

● perform audit procedures on the prospective 
information presented by management in the 
management report. On the basis of sufficient 
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appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, 
the significant assumptions used by management as 
a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate 
the proper derivation of the prospective information 
from these assumptions. We do not express a 
separate opinion on the prospective information 
and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a 
substantial unavoidable risk that future events will 
differ materially from the prospective information.

We discuss with those responsible for monitoring, 
among other things, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant findings of the audit, including 

any deficiencies in the internal control system that we 
identify during our audit.

Munich, April 26, 2021

TAP Dr. Schlumberger Krämer Pothorn & Partner mbB
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

[Original German version signed by:]

Krämer
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]
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Balance Sheet
as of March 31, 2021

Assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 
2020

Equity and liablities March 31, 2021 March 31, 
2020

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

A. Fixed assets A. Equity

I. Intangible assets I. Called up share capital

1. Internally generated industrial and 
similar rights

0.00 158,737.15 1. Capital subscribed 25,000,000.00 10,000,000.00

2. Concessions, industrial and similar 
rights and licenses in such rights 
and assets

47,695.30 126,084.32 2. Outstanding contributions - not 
called up

-10,651,269.00 -351,261.00

3. Payments on account 4,240.00 26,311.71 14,348,731.00 9,648,739.00

51,935.30 311,133.18 II. Capital reserve 386,511.59 386,511.59

II. Tangible assets III. Profit/loss carried forward -2,517,975.29 6,003,539.24

1. Other equipment, operating and 
office equipment

1,537,013.35 590,340.73 IV. Net profit/loss for the year 1,486,164.45 -8,522,893.97

III. Non-current financial assets 13,703,431.75 7,515,895.86

1. Shares in affiliated companies 14,751,885.07 12,515,013.87 B. Paid deposit on agreed capital 
increase

0.00 4,699,992.00

2. Participations 0.00 0.00

C. Provisions

14,751,885.07 12,515,013.87

1. Tax provisions 178,835.00 3.14

2. Other provisions 3,854,251.12 2,498,219.87

16,340,833.72 13,416,487.78

4,033,086.12 2,498,223.01

B. Current assets

I. Receivables and other assets D. Liablities

1. Liabilities to banks 1,521,979.43 3,681,221.76

1. Trade receivables 13,149,431.16 16,890,984.76 2. Advance payments received on 
account of orders

2,564,181.96 0.00

2. Receivables from affiliated 
companies

3,405,974.33 1,240,622.63 3. Trade payables 1,260,286.63 2,692,679.28

3. Other assets 876,726.23 1,004,104.89 4. Liabilities to affiliated companies 12,911,538.92 17,914,488.04

5. Other liabilities 1,471,514.20 2,077,154.55

17,432,131.72 19,135,712.28 - thereof from taxes: EUR 
417,002.36 (previous year: EUR 
1,955,225.90)

- thereof for social security: EUR 
0.00 (previous year: EUR 84,078.55)

II. Cash in hand, bank balance and 
checks

3,690,553.50 8,508,803.46 19,729,501.14 26,365,543.63

21,122,685.22 27,644,515.74

C. Prepaid expenses 2,500.07 18,650.98

37,466,019.01 41,079,654.50 37,466,019.01 41,079,654.50
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Income Statement for the Period   
from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021

2020/21 2019/20

EUR EUR EUR

1. Revenues 48,329,657.38 53,932,765.11

2. Increase or decrease in work in process 0.00 0.00

48,329,657.38 53,932,765.11

3. Other operating income 245,714.38 255,713.69

4. Cost of materials

a) Cost of purchased services -10,719,050.97 -21,477,449.89

-10,719,050.97 -21,477,449.89

5. Staff costs

a) Wages and salaries -27,123,890.18 -30,235,472.39

b) Social security and pension costs -4,430,928.23 -5,116,226.80

-31,554,818.41 -35,351,699.19

6. Depreciation and amortisation

a) Amortisation of intangible assets and depreciation

of property, plant and equipment -530,548.86 -551,077.46

-530,548.86 -551,077.46

7. Other operating expenses -5,785,347.32 -5,383,866.65

8. Income from profit and loss transfer agreement 2,274,637.34 217,904.27

9. Other interest and similar income 4,530.54 1,275.40

- thereof from affiliated companies: EUR 4,530.54 (previous 
year: EUR 1,275.40)

10. Interest and similar expenses
- thereof to affiliated companies: EUR -294,575.27 (previous 
year: EUR -166,459.25)

-294,575.27 -166,459.25

11. Loss/ Profit from ordinary operations 1,970,198.81 -8,522,893.97

12. Taxes on income -484,034.36 0.00

13. Net loss/ profit for the year 1,486,164.45 -8,522,893.97
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Notes to Financial Statements
for Fiscal Year 2020/21
I. General information

 KPIT Technologies GmbH has its statutory seat in Munich and is registered at the commercial register Munich 
under the number HRB 163288.

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with provisions of the third book of the 
Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB – German Commercial Code; section 238 ff. of the HGB) under consideration of the 
Bilanzrichtlinie-Umsetzungsgesetz (BilRUG) and the supplementary provisions for companies limited by shares 
(section 264 ff. of the HGB).

 For the profit and loss statement the total cost method (Gesamtkostenverfahren) as defined by section 275 (2) of 
the HGB was applied.

 The company is a large-sized corporation as defined by section 267 (3) of the HGB.

 Insofar classification standards of the HGB have been changed compared to the previous year, the consistency of 
presentation principle (section 265 (1) of the HGB) has been preserved by adjusting the figures of the prior year.

II. Accounting policies

 The following accounting and valuation methods have been applied in preparing the annual financial statements.

 Intangible assets acquired for a consideration are capitalized at their cost of acquisition. Internally generated 
intangible assets were capitalized with the production costs incurred in the development phase. Depreciation 
and amortization are charged on a straight-line basis. Acquisitions during the year are written down pro rata 
temporis.

 Property, plant and equipment is capitalized at its acquisition or production cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Acquisitions during the year are written down pro rata temporis.

 Low value assets are written down in full in the year of acquisition.

 Among financial investments, shares are measured at nominal amount of purchase cost, taking into account 
the principle of lower of purchase cost or market value. Loans are basically stated at their nominal value. Loans 
which bear no or a below market rate of interest are discounted to their present value.

 Services not yet invoiced shown in the line item Inventories are capitalized under consideration of the principle 
of the lower of cost and market with direct costs and an appropriate share of the overheads. Projects, which, in 
an overall view will almost certainly announce a loss, are written down to a lower attributable fair value (loss-
free valuation).

 Receivables and other current assets are reported at their principal amount. Specific risks that can be detected 
are accounted for by valuation allowances. The general credit risk is covered by a global valuation allowance on 
receivables. 

 Cash and cash equivalents are shown at their nominal value.

 The equity capital as shown in the balance sheet corresponds to the articles of association and the commercial 
register.

 Other provisions take into account all recognizable risks and uncertain obligations and were listed at the amount 
of the probable obligations.

 Liabilities are carried at the amount required to settle the obligation.
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Notes to Financial Statements
for Fiscal Year 2020/21
 Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the mean spot rates prevailing at the reporting date. 

Section 253 (1) sentence 1 of the HGB and section 252 (1) no. 4 second half sentence of the HGB are not applied 
to other assets or liabilities with a remaining term of one year or less.

 A distinction of revenue recognition has to be made between contracts of services (Time and material projects) 
and contracts of work (Fixed Price Projects). Assignments based on contracts of service are invoiced according to 
working hours and revenues are recognized at this point. Revenue recognition of contracts of work is made only 
after contract completion or upon buyer’s partial acceptance.

 There was no fundamental change in accounting policies compared with previous year.

III. Balance sheet disclosures

 Fixed assets

 The development of the fixed assets and the depreciation thereof for the financial year are shown in the fixed 
assets movement schedule attached to the notes.

 Financial assets

 The financial assets include the shareholding in MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Munich. KPIT 
Technologies GmbH has entered into a Domination and Profit Transfer Agreement through a shareholders 
resolution on December 18, 2019 with its subsidiary MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH. 

 Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are shown at their nominal value. If necessary, the receivables are reduced by individual value 
adjustments or general value adjustments.

 Receivables from affiliated companies

 An amount of KEUR 3,387 (PY: KEUR 1,241) of the total receivables from subsidiaries has a remaining term of 
more than one year.

 Other assets

 The asset item includes receivables from employees (KEUR 201; PY: KEUR 332) and receivables resulting from 
deposits paid for rented properties (KEUR 568; PY: KEUR 672).

 Restriction of profit distribution

 Total amount of non-distributable profits according to section 268 (8) HGB is KEUR 0 (PY: KEUR 159) resulting of 
capitalization of self-developed intangible assets.

 Equity

 The company increased its registered share capital from KEUR 10,000 by KEUR 15,000 to KEUR 25,000 in a 
shareholders resolution in March 2020, which was registered in the commercial register by 29th July 2020. 

 Provisions

 Other provisions amounting to KEUR 3,854 (PY: KEUR 2,498) mainly include provisions for expenses (KEUR 1,252; 
PY: KEUR 640), provisions for employee bonuses (KEUR 1,265; PY: KEUR 483), and provisions for leave 
encashment (KEUR 747; PY: KEUR 681). 
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 Liabilities

 Liabilities to affiliated companies amounting to KEUR 12,912 (PY: KEUR 17,914) include liabilities to the indirect 
shareholder KPIT Technologies Ltd., Pune/India, amounting to KEUR 4,383 (PY: KEUR 9,749) and liabilities to the 
direct shareholder KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited, Ruislip Manor, Middlesex/UK, amounting to KEUR 4.853 (PY: 
KEUR 7,344).

 The table below shows a summary of the liabilities broken down according to remaining terms. The company has 
no liabilities with a remaining term of more than 5 years.

  March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

remaining 
term up 

to  
1 year

remaining 
term 

between 1 
and 5 years

total remaining 
term up 

to  
1 year

remaining 
term 

between 
1 and 5 years

total

KEUR KEUR KEUR KEUR KEUR KEUR

1. Liabilities to banks 1,522 0 1,522 3,681 0 3,681

2.  Advance payments received on 
account of orders

2,564 0 2,564 0 0 0

3. Trade payables 1,260 0 1,260 2,693 0 2,693

4. Liabilities to affiliated companies 5,559 7,353 12,912 10,721 7,193 17,914

 - thereof to shareholders 0 4,853 4,853 135 7,193 7,328

5. Other liabilities 1,472 0 1,472 2,077 0 2,077

 - thereof from taxes 417 0 417 1,955 0 1,955

 - thereof for social securities 0 0 0 84 0 84

Total liabilities 12,377 7,353 19,730 19,172 7,193 26,365

IV. Income statement disclosures

 The income statement was prepared according to the total cost method (section 275 (2) HGB).

 Revenues

 Broken down by geographic markets, the revenues are:

2020/21 2019/20

KEUR % KEUR %

Domestic 35,394 73.2 44,906 83.3

Export 12,936 26.8 9,027 16.7

Total 48,330 100.0 53,933 100.0
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 Cost of materials

 Cost of purchased services mainly result from affiliated companies with an amount of KEUR 10,719 
(PY: KEUR 21,477).

 Other operating income

 Other operating income of KEUR 246 (PY: KEUR 256) include income from other receipts in an amount of 
KEUR 246 (PY: KEUR 23).

 Other operating expenses

 Other operating expenses of KEUR 5,785 (PY: KEUR 5,384) include rental expenses of KEUR 1,830 (PY: KEUR 674), 
expenses for professional fees of KEUR 538 (PY: KEUR 648) and expenses resulting of exchange rate differences 
of KEUR 311 (PY: KEUR 116).

 Financial result

 Interest and similiar expenses include expenses from interest payments on liabilities to affiliated companies in 
an amount of KEUR 295 (PY: KEUR 166).

V. Other mandatory disclosures 

 Future financial obligations

 In addition to the liabilities stated in the balance sheet, there are future financial obligations from leasing 
agreements of KEUR 14,767.

 Operate- Leasing

 Rental and leasing agreements are concluded to avoid an immediate outflow of liquid funds. Risks from rental 
and leasing contracts are related to the fulfilment of instalments and rental obligations.

 Share property

 According to section 285 (11) of the HGB the company has to give the following information.

Entity Participation 
rate 

Equity Annual result Financial statements 
year ending

MicroFuzzy Industrie-
Elektronic GmbH, München

95 % EUR 4,028,431.73 EUR 0.00 March 31, 2021

 The company has concluded a Domination and Profit Transfer agreement on December 18, 2019 with MicroFuzzy 
Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Munich. All future Profits and Losses are to be transferred to the company. 

 Managing director

 Managing directors in fiscal year 2020/21 were:

 − Mr. Pankaj Maheshwar Sathe, operating managing director

 − Mr. Jens Tillner, operating managing director (as of September 22, 2020)

 In accordance with section 286 (4) of the HGB the disclosure of the management total remuneration is omitted.
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 Average amount of employees during the financial year

 During financial Year 2020/21 on average 363 (previous year 416) persons were employed.

 Auditor’s fee

 For services rendered by the auditor TAP Dr. Schlumberger Krämer Pothorn & Partner mbB 
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Munich, the following fees were charged or 
provided for the Financial Year 2020/2021:

2020/2021

KEUR

Annual audit 29

Other services 7

36

 Appropriation of results

 The net profit of KEUR 1,486 is to be carry forward onto new account.

 Group affiliation

 The financial statements of KPIT Technologies GmbH are included in the consolidated financial statements of 
KPIT Technologies Ltd., Pune/India, as of March 31, 2021.

 The consolidated financial statements of KPIT Technologies Ltd., Pune/India as of March 31, 2021 will be filed 
electronically with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (Government of India) and be disclosed under Company 
Identification Number (CIN) U74999PN2018PLC174192.

 Consolidated financial statements for the subgroup are prepared by KPIT Technologies GmbH, Munich. 

 Significant events

 No events of particular or material significance occurred after the end of the financial year

 Munich, April 26, 2021

 Pankaj Maheshwar Sathe  Jens Tillner
 (Managing Director)    (Managing Director)
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Appendix to the Notes

Fixed Assets Schedule 
as at March 31, 2021

Acquisition and production costs Accumulated depreciation Net block

1 April 2020 Additions Deductions 31 March 2021 1 April 2020 Additions Deductions 31 March 
2021

31 March 
2021

31 March 
2020

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

I. Intangible Assets

1. Internally generated industrial 
property rights and similar 
rights and assets

709,069.38 0.00 0.00 709,069.38 550,332.23 158,737.15 0.00 709,069.38 0.00 158,737.15

2. Consessions, industrial and 
similar rights and licenses in 
such rights and assets

550,526.48 0.00 0.00 550,526.48 424,442.16 78,389.02 0.00 502,831.18 47,695.30 126,084.32

3. Payments on account 26,311.71 4,240.00 26,311.71 4,240.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,240.00 26,311.71

1,285,907.57 4,240.00 26,311.71 1,263,835.86 974,774.47 237,126.17 0.00 1,211,900.56 51,935.30 311,133.18

II. Tangible assets

1. Other equipment, operating 
and office equipment

1,448,869.65 1,272,264.51 73,059.40 2,648,074.76 858,528.92 293,422.69 40,890.20 1,111,061.41 1,537,013.35 590,340.73

III. Non-current financial assets

1. Shares in affiliated companies 12,515,013.87 2,236,871.20 0.00 14,751,885.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,751,885.07 12,515,013.87

12,515,013.87 2,236,871.20 0.00 14,751,885.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,751,885.07 12,515,013.87

15,249,791.09 3,513,375.71 99,371.11 18,663,795.69 1,833,303.39 530,548.86 40,890.20 2,322,961.97 16,340,833.72 13,416,487.78
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Board’s Report
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Euro Euro

Total Income 5,243,642 4,956,183

Net Profit / (Loss) for the period 593,355 398,706

In spite of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, there was gradual increase in the total income of the Company 
resulting in increase in net profit by 48.82%.

Audit

Hence, no separate audit report is given in respect of the Company.

The Company is not required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to issue a report to the 
shareholders on the financial statements. No audit opinion has been sought in respect of these financial statements. 
The accounts are prepared from the internally prepared management accounts of the Company. The same 
management accounts are audited in order for the Group Auditors to give an audit opinion in relation to the group 
accounts i.e. consolidated accounts of KPIT Technologies Limited, the parent company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V. 

Pune Kishor Patil
April 23, 2021 Chairman

KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.
Registered Office: Westerdoksdijk 423, 1013 BX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands.
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1.1  Accountant’s Compilation Report  
Dear members of the board,

1.1 Accoun tant’s com pi la tion re port

 The financial statements of KPIT Technologies 
Netherlands B.V., Amsterdam, have been compiled 
by us using the information provided by you. The 
financial statements comprise the ba lan ce sheet 
as at 31 March 2021 and the profi t and loss ac count 
for the year then ended with the accompanying 
explanatory notes. These notes include a summary of 
the accounting policies which have been applied.

 This compilation engagement has been performed by 
us in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch 
Standard 4410, ‘Compilation engagements’, which is 
applicable to accountants. The standard requires us 
to assist you in the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements in ac cor dan ce with Part 9 of 
Book 2 of the Dutch Ci vil Co de. To this end we have 
applied our professional expertise in accounting and 
financial reporting.

 In a compilation engagement, you are responsible 
for ensuring that you provide us with all relevant 
information and that this information is correct. 
Therefore, we have conducted our work, in 
accordance with the applicable regulations, on the 
assumption that you have fulfilled your responsibility. 
To conclude our work, we have read the financial 
statements as a whole to consider whether the 

financial statements as presented correspond with 
our understanding of KPIT Technologies Netherlands 
B.V. We have not performed any audit or review 
procedures which would enable us to express an 
opinion or a conclusion as to the fair presentation of 
the financial statements.

 During this engagement we have complied with 
the relevant ethical requirements prescribed 
by the ‘Verordening Gedrags- en Beroepsregels 
Accountants’ (VGBA). You and other users of these 
financial statements may therefore assume that we 
have conducted the engagement in a professional, 
competent and objective manner and with due care 
and integrity and that we will treat all information 
provided to us as confidential.

 For further information on the nature and scope of a 
compilation engagement and the VGBA we refer you 
to www.nba.nl/uitleg-samenstellingsverklaring.

 We shall of course be pleased to provide further 
information.

Yours sincerely, 

Mazars N.V. 
drs. R. Hiddes RA
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2.  Financial Statements  

2.1 Balance Sheet   
as at 31 March 2021
(After proposal appropriation of result)

2021 2020
EUR EUR EUR EUR

AS SETS
CUR RENT AS SETS
RE CEI VA BLES
Tra de re cei va bles 1 1,948,582 978,271
Re cei va bles from group com pa nies 2 11,686 107,178
Cur rent ac count sha re hol ders - 468,334
Other re cei va bles, prepayments and ac-
crued in come

3 30,112 14,593

1,990,380 1,568,376
Cash and cash e quiv a lents 4 2,230,417 1,249,182
Total current as sets 4,220,797 2,817,558

4,220,797 2,817,558

EQUITY AND LIA BI LI TIES
E QUI TY
ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL 5 500,000 500,000
Other re ser ve 6 2,007,202 1,413,847

2,507,202 1,913,847
CUR RENT LIA BI LI TIES, AC CRU ALS AND 
DE FER RED IN COME
Tra de pay a bles 7 984,628 473,315
Pay a bles re lat ing to taxes and so cial se-
cu ri ty con tri bu tions

8 565,773 316,909

Other lia bi li ties and ac crued ex pen ses 9 163,194 113,487
1,713,595 903,711

4,220,797 2,817,558
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2.2 Profit and Loss account  
for the period 1 April 2020 until 31 March 2021

1-4-2020 / 31-3-2021 1-4-2019 / 31-3-2020

EUR EUR EUR EUR

Gross mar gin 10 2,124,887 2,013,629

Wa ges and sa la ries 11 1,010,306 1,146,912

So cial se cu ri ty char ges 12 120,729 152,417

Other o pe ra ting ex pen ses 13 235,899 235,188

To tal of sum of ex pen ses 1,366,934 1,534,517

TOTAL OF OP ER A TING RE SULT 757,953 479,112

In te rest and si mi lar in co me 9,289 36,569

TO TAL OF RE SULT BE FO RE TAX 767,242 515,681

In come tax ex pense -173,887 -116,975

TO TAL OF RE SULT AF TER TAX 593,355 398,706
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2.3 Notes to the Financial Statements   
ENTITY INFORMATION 

REGISTERED ADDRESS AND REGISTRATION NUMBER TRADE REGISTER 

The registered and actual address of KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V. is Westerdoksdijk 423, 1013 BX in 
Amsterdam. KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V. is registered at the Chamber of Commerce under number 54907144.

GENERAL NOTES 

THE MOST IMPORTANT ACTIVITIES OF THE ENTITY 

The company was incorporated on 16 March 2012. The principal activities of the Company are to sell and 
commercialize computer programs, software and its applications, to render services of consulting in the areas of 
engineering design, drafting, software development, testing, consulting, architecture services and advisory in types 
and configurations, and also to develop projects to the installation all related to the products commercialized.

The financial year of the company starts on April 1st and ends on March 31st.

IMPACT of COVID‑19

With the outbreak of the Coronavirus and preventive measures taken by governments, there is high economic 
uncertainty. For KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V. it is currently estimated that this impact will have no material 
financial impact. However, things remain very uncertain and subject to change.  

We will continue to build on the work we have done over the past years to drive efficiency in operations and 
strengthen the foundations of the business.

DISCLOSURE OF GROUP STRUCTURE 

KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V. is part of a group headed by KPIT Technologies Ltd. located in Pune, India. The 
financial statements of KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V. are included in the consolidated financial statements of 
KPIT Technologies Limited.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS USED TO PREPARE THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil 
Code and the Dutch Accounting Standards, as published by the Dutch Accounting Standards Board (‘Raad voor de 
Jaarverslaggeving’).

Assets and liabilities are generally valued at historical cost, production cost or at fair value at the time of acquisition. 
If no specific valuation principle has been stated, valuation is at historical cost.

CONVERSION OF AMOUNTS DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

Receivables, liabilities and obligations denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates 
prevailing at balance sheet date.

Transactions in foreign currency during the financial year are recognized in the financial statements at the exchange 
rates prevailing at transaction date. The exchange differences resulting from the translation as at balance sheet date, 
taking into account possible hedge transactions, are recorded in the profit and loss account.
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2.3 Notes to the Financial Statements   
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

RECEIVABLES 

Receivables are initially valued at the fair value of the consideration to be received, including transaction costs 
if material. Receivables are subsequently valued at the amortised cost price. If there is no premium or discount 
and there are no transaction costs, the amortised cost price equals the nominal value of the accounts receivable. 
Provisions for bad debts are deducted from the carrying amount of the receivable.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

Cash at banks and in hand represent cash in hand, bank balances and deposits with terms of less than twelve 
months. Overdrafts at banks are recognised as part of debts to lending institutions under current liabilities. Cash at 
banks and in hand is valued at nominal value.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR DETERMINING THE RESULT 

The result is the difference between the realisable value of the services provided and the costs and other charges 
during the year. The results on transactions are recognised in the year in which they are realised.

REVENUE RECOGNITION  

Net turnover represents amounts invoiced for services supplied during the financial year reported on, net of 
discounts and value added taxes.

Revenues from services are recognized in proportion to the services rendered. The cost price of these services is 
allocated to the same period.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

Costs are determined on a historical basis and are attributed to the reporting year to which they relate.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Tax on the result is calculated based on the result before tax in the profi t and loss ac count, taking account of the 
losses available for set-off from previous financial years and exempt profit components and after the addition of 
non-deductible costs. Due account is also taken of changes which occur in the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities in respect of changes in the applicable tax rate.
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2.4 Notes to the Balance Sheet   

2021 2020

EUR EUR

CURRENT ASSETS

1  TRADE RECEIVABLES

 Trade receivables 1,948,582 978,271

 No provision for bad debts is deemed necessary by the management of the 
Company. 

2   RECEIVABLES FROM GROUP COMPANIES

 KPIT Technologies Inc 2,403 36,067

 KPIT Infosystems Limited - 61,828

 KPIT Technologies GmbH 9,283 9,283

11,686 107,178

 No interest has been calculated.

3   OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

 Accrued income - 13,713

 Prepaid personnel expenses 30,112 880

30,112 14,593

4   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 ING Bank N.V. 580,240 302,864

 HSBC Bank 1,650,177 946,318

2,230,417 1,249,182

 The cash and cash equivalents are freely available to the Company.

 

 EQUITY

5   ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

 Disclosure of share capital paid called up

 The issued and paid-up share capital amounts to EUR 500,000 and consists 
of 5,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of EUR 100 each.

2020/21 2019/20

EUR EUR

6   OTHER RESERVE

 Balance as at 1 April 1,413,847 1,015,141

 Appropriation of result 593,355 398,706

 Balance as at 31 March 2,007,202 1,413,847
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2.4 Notes to the Balance Sheet   

2021 2020

EUR EUR

 CURRENT LIABILITIES, ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

7   TRADE PAYABLES

 Accounts payable 984,628 473,315

 An amount of EUR 984,547 (FY 2019/2020: EUR 472,083) relates to trade 
payables to group companies.

8   PAYABLES RELATING TO TAXES AND SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIBUTIONS

  Value added tax 415,173 225,501

 Wage tax 36,810 42,046

 Company tax 113,790 49,362

565,773 316,909

9   OTHER LIABILITIES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

 Accrued bonus 125,546 45,853

 Other accrued expenses 22,869 67,634

 Accrued income 9,622 -

 Cur rent ac count sha re hol der 5,157 -

163,194 113,487

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

DISCLOSURE OF OPERATING LEASES  

The company has a operational car lease contract with a total future liability of EUR 31,222. For the upcomming year 
the company has an operational car lease liability of EUR 9,607

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No subsequent events have occured that could have an impact on these annual accounts.

PROPOSAL APPROPRIATION OF RESULT

The management of the com pa ny proposes to appropriate the profit as follows:

The ap pro pria tion of pro fit for the pe riod 1 April 2020 un til 31 March 2021 in the amount of EUR593.355 will be added 
in full to the other reserves.

This proposal needs to be approved by the General Shareholders Meeting.



46

KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.

2.5 Notes to the Balance Sheet   

1-4-2020 / 
31-3-2021

1-4-2019 / 
31-3-2020

EUR EUR

10   GROSS MARGIN

Net Turnover 5,234,353 4,919,614

Cost of sales -3,109,466  -2,905,985

Gross margin 2,124,887 2,013,629

NET TURNOVER

Domestic sales back to back 3,762,087 3,055,694

Domestic Sales 1,344,886 1,333,344

Foreign Sales 127,380 530,576

5,234,353 4,919,614

11 WAGES AND SALARIES

Gross salaries 896,351 991,516

Holliday allowance 52,251 114,216

Health insurance 35,186 43,690

Commission 26,518 -2,510

1,010,306 1,146,912

Average number of employees

1-4-2020 / 31-3-2021 Number

Average number of employees 17.00

1-4-2019 / 31-3-2020 Number

Average number of employees 18.00
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2.5 Notes to the Profit and Loss Account   

1-4-2020 / 
31-3-2021

1-4-2019 / 
31-3-2020

EUR EUR

12   SOCIAL SECURITY CHARGES

 Social security charges 120,729 152,417

13 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other expenses of employee benefits 118,352 75,240

Selling expenses 28,971 33,471

Car expenses 13,511 19,489

General expenses 75,065 106,988

235,899 235,188

OTHER EXPENSES OF EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Allowances 33,354 24,466

Other staff expenses 84,998 50,774

118,352 75,240

SELLING EXPENSES

Travelling and hotel expenses 14,779 20,191

Advertising expenses 14,192 13,280

28,971 33,471

GENERAL EXPENSES

Professional fees 66,047 69,813

Other expenses 9,018 37,175

75,065 106,988

INTEREST OF RECEIVABLES FROM GROUP COMPANIES

Interest receivable from Kpit Germany - 6,040

Amsterdam, 29 April 2021
KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.

K.P. Patil
Director

S.D. Tikekar
Director

P.M. Sathe
Director

D. Dholeh
Director
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Fundamental information about the company

MicroFuzzy(“The Company”) operates in the area 
of automotive electrical engineering. We offer our 
customers innovative solutions for next generation 
cars in the area of the electrical vehicles. With our 
experienced engineering team, we are able to provide 
customers with high-end solutions and concepts. 
MicroFuzzy operates from its headquarters in Munich, 
Germany. The Company is part of KPIT Group of 
companies.

KPIT is a global technology company with software 
solutions that will help mobility leapfrog towards 
autonomous, clean, smart and connected future. With 
6000+ Automobelievers across the globe, specializing in 
embedded software, AI & Digital solutions, KPIT enables 
customers accelerate implementation of next generation 
mobility technologies. With development centers in 
Europe, Americas, Japan, China, Thailand and India – 
KPIT works with leaders in mobility and is present where 
the ecosystem is transforming. Thereby being part of 
this group gives MicroFuzzy the option to use the groups 
technical and human resources.

Our customers belong mainly to the automotive industry 
and include OEMs and Tier-1 suppliers. Therefore, we 
can offer our services and solutions to our growing 
customer base globally, not just in Germany. Customers 
are requesting all kind of support and solutions, from 
dedicated engineering support for a specific technical 
problem to complete concepts and solutions for 
electrical powertrain products.

Report on Economic Position

Macro-economic and Sector-specific Environment

During the year FY 20/21, macro-economic conditions 
became a little more instable and GDP growth in 
Germany showed a decrease of 4.9 % in 2020 compared 
to an increase of 0.6 % in 2019. GDP in Quarter-2/ 
2020 was fully hit by COVID-19 outbreak and showed a 
decrease of 9.1 % compared to Quarter-1/ 2020. From 
the end of Quarter-2/2020 GDP recovered and showed 

Management Report 
for the fiscal year 2020-21

a Y-O-Y decline of 0.7% for Quarter-1/2021 compared to 
Quarter-1/2020. So as compared to the previous year, the 
territory did not show the same level of traction in our 
Focus Verticals and the sales cycle continue to remain 
long. Sales have improved in the European Union since 
the financial downturn, but BREXIT has brought in new 
political and economic uncertainty, which might have 
an impact in coming years. The E.U. auto industry is 
figuring out ways to better match production capacity to 
market demand, while simultaneously investing in new 
potentially strong product areas (for example, Electric 
Cars, Small SUVs and Crossovers) and in new automobile 
technologies. The Company was able to maintain 
business with its existing customer base in the region 
and also acquired some new customers. The company’s 
growth for FY 2020-21 was impacted to a certain extent 
due to the ongoing COVID pandemic. The company 
promises to show substantial growth in FY 2021-22 with 
its Auto Business. R & D activities in the automotive 
industry are focused on “electric mobility”, “connected 
driving” and “autonomous driving”.

Progress of business in financial year 2020-21

The Directors are pleased to report that the financial 
year as of March 31, 2021 ended on a more optimistic 
note than it began in March 2020 with the onset of the 
COVID pandemic situation. The Automotive Industry 
saw a severe contraction of sales in H1 of FY21 followed 
by a steady recovery where growth is now expected to 
be in double digits in calendar year 2021. The coming 
decade promises to be one of the largest in terms 
of Investments for Automakers. Megatrends driven 
by Connectivity, Autonomous, Shared mobility and 
Electrification (CASE) continue their secular adoption, as 
they persist to disrupt the Industry. The coming years will 
also see investments getting prioritized by Automakers in 
areas of digital and customer experience. In the German 
territory, the overall economic scenario was mixed in FY 
21 due to ongoing COVID pandemic.

For the operational management of the business 
MicroFuzzy monitors order backlog, revenues and EBITDA 
as the main Key Financial Indicators (KPI’s).

MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH
Registered Office: Taunusstr. 38 80807 Munich, Germany.
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Report on Expected Developments

MicroFuzzy is rapidly growing and working now with 
Engineers in almost all areas of the automotive 
development phase. Our numerous projects are in the 
field of functional safety, software development and 
verification, functional development, hardware and 
numerous test and validation tasks in laboratories or in 
the vehicle itself.

We were able to grow in all these areas, being able to 
offer highly sophisticated technical solutions and also 
complete technical concepts.

We set-up a huge high-voltage, high power testing and 
validation laboratory for testing of electrical powertrain 
components at our premises in Munich.

To optimize costs and quality, an intensive exchange 
of information with other parts of KPIT Group in the 
administrative and engineering area is ongoing.

Financial Position

The company recorded revenues of Euro 42.53 million in 
2020-21 as compared to Euro 37.57 million in 2019-20. 
The EBITDA Margin was 7.68% as compared to 2.32% in 
previous year The company has entered into a Domination 
and Profit Transfer Agreement through a shareholders’ 
resolution on 18th December 2019 with its mother 
Company “KPIT Technologies GmbH”. As a result of this 
agreement, FY 20/21 profits of the Company amounting to 
Euro 2.27 million are consolidated in the results of KPIT 
Technologies GmbH. The Company was able to achieve 
the forecasted revenue, as the projects at the main 
customers generated the predicted growth. In this year, 
the Company has strengthened its Engineering Team in 
Germany and this process is expected to continue in FY 
2021-2022.

Staff costs and other operating expenses have shown 
a proportionate increase as compared to the level of 
revenues of the company.

The company recorded total assets of Euro 22.94 million 
at year-end compared to Euro 18.03 million in the previous 
year. Net assets (total equity) amounts to Euro 4.03 
million as of March 31, 2021 and also in prior year.

The net current assets have increased by Euro 6.01 million 
as compared to the previous year. Out of the total current 
liabilities of Euro 10.08 million, Euro 4.70 million (46.63 

%) are relating to amounts payable to Affiliated Group 
Companies for services availed from them on basis of 
the existing Revenue Model. Other current liabilities and 
provisions are adequately covered with the company’s 
cash balance of Euro 8.56 million and trade receivables 
of Euro 3.06 million. On an overall basis, the company has 
a current ratio of 2.16 as compared to 1.51 in the previous 
year. The Equity Ratio stood at 0.18 as compared to 0.22 in 
the previous year.

The Company does not have any Long-term Debt and is 
fully funded through Shareholders’ Equity. There is a short 
term debt of EUR 3.68 million from DBS Bank and HSBC 
bank towards the factoring service availed.The company’s 
main shareholder, KPIT Technologies GmbH, Munich, is 
committed to provide relevant financial support to the 
company.

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had an average of 210 
Employees as compared to 224 as at the end of previous 
year.

Report on Post Balance Sheet Events

Management of the company monitors the development 
and also consequences of the current COVID-19 crisis 
intensively. At present management expects no material 
negative influence on economic situation in FY 2021-2022 
of the company.

Despite this, the Company does not have any transactions 
of material nature to report under this section.

Report on Expected Developments

In FY 21/22, the Company expects a further increase in 
revenues (topline) and also to improve profitability. The 
Company aims to achieve this by focusing on offerings in 
niche areas, as well as by expanding the customer base 
and stringent cost optimization. This would translate into 
an even improved financial position for the Company.

Mobility is the only focus of our company and Germany 
is a fulcrum for the global automotive industry. Our 
investments have been concentrated on Germany in 
the last 3 to 5 years and we continue to invest in sales, 
delivery, practice and facilities. The Company is also 
working towards improving its Cash Flows by aiming to 
reduce the time for realizing the invoices from customers.

The Company feels that the Business Environment is 
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well suited for its offerings and it is confident to exploit 
the improvement in business conditions to the fullest 
possible extent.

Report on Opportunities and Risks

The area of operation (electric vehicles) is booming and 
offers huge chances and opportunities for MicroFuzzy. 
The actual growth in R&D for electrification of vehicles 
will even intensify in 2021-22. Actually, we see that 
numerous new companies (mainly non-EU companies) 
are trying to enter this market segment in Germany. 
Therefore, our market environment will get more 
competitive and the projects get more price sensitive, 
which we estimate as a medium risk. Being part of the 
KPIT Group, the company can react to this challenge and 
shift some of our development to offshore.

Limiting factor for growth will not be the number of 
new projects but the number of engineers with the 
suitable know-how (medium risk). Therefore, marketing 
campaigns and close collaborations with universities 
are planned to be able to increase the work force as 
required by the projects.

Focus will be put on new customers. Dependency on 
the existing customer base will be reduced, maximum 
revenue with our main client is expected to be reduced 
to 60% of the overall revenue.

The Global economy has been severely impacted over 
the last one year. The pandemic has had its impact 
on all spheres of the economy, driving unemployment 
rates in double digits resulting in contraction of world 
output by 3.3%. The silver lining however is vaccines are 
now developed in record time with promising efficacy 
rates. A sustainable economic recovery with a limited 
handholding by fiscal and monetary policies is certainly 
seen on the horizon. The IMF latest forecasts have 
projected the global economy to grow by 6.0% in 2021 
and the growth rate is expected to moderate to 4.4% in 
2022.

With various governments rapidly implementing 

inoculation programs, covering large sets of the 
populations, future risks of any economic stoppages have 
been reduced to a considerable extent. The economic 
damage due to the pandemic was also addressed by 
Fiscal and Monetary Stimulus, led by the developed 
world economies such as Germany. The economic 
policies promise to remain supportive of growth.

The governments’ fiscal stimulus has supported the 
economy. It is estimated that, private consumption is 
expected to recover sharply towards end of 2021 and 
shall be the key driver of the recovery. Investment is 
expected to recover substantially in 2021 and 2022 and is 
expected to return to pre-crisis level in 2022.

Forecast

We believe that in order to achieve our mission of being 
best software integrator in automotive sector, our 
positioning and existing business with German OEMs 
is a stepping stone towards the same. In the medium 
term, we want to focus on improvement in operating 
profitability with emphasis on productivity improvement, 
increase in offshore revenues, leveraging of fixed costs 
and scaling up in our strategic accounts. The Company 
has taken appropriate measures to tackle the business 
uncertainties during the year and has also taken 
measures to control the cost significantly. Considering 
better momentum with our customers and in the 
Automotive Industry, we expect that the Company’s 
financial performance for the next financial year FY 22 
will improve and will be in a better shape than in FY21. 
The Company will continue to make efforts to capture 
growth and take appropriate measures to increase sales 
realization in FY22.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Microfuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH

Munich, Germany April 23, 2021

Pankaj Maheshwar Sathe
Managing Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Munich

Audit opinions

We have audited the annual financial statements of 
MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Munich, which 
comprise the balance sheet as of 31 March 2021, and the 
statement of profit and loss for the financial year from 
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, and notes to the financial 
statements, including the recognition and measurement 
policies presented therein. In addition, we have audited 
the management report of MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic 
GmbH for the financial year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in 
the audit,

• the accompanying annual financial statements comply, 
in all material respects, with the requirements of 
German commercial law applicable to business 
corporations and give a true and fair view of the assets, 
liabilities and financial position of the Company as of 
31 March 2021 and of its financial performance for the 
financial year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 in 
compliance with German Legally Required Accounting 
Principles, and

• the accompanying management report as a whole 
provides an appropriate view of the Company’s position. 
In all material respects, this management report 
is consistent with the annual financial statements, 
complies with German legal requirements and 
appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of 
future development.

In accordance with section 322 (3) sentence 1 of the HGB 
[“Handelsgesetzbuch”: “German Commercial Code”], we 
declare that our audit has not led to any reservations 
regarding the correctness of the annual financial 
statements.

Basis for the audit opinions

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements 
and of the management report in accordance with Section 
317 HGB and in compliance with German Generally 
Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits 
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute 
of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities 

under those requirements and principles are further 
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Annual Financial Statements and of the 
Management Report” section of our auditor’s report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
requirements of German commercial and professional 
law, and we have fulfilled our other German professional 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinions on the annual financial statements and on the 
management report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Management Report

Management is responsible for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements that comply, in all material 
respects, with the requirements of German commercial 
law applicable to business corporations, and that the 
annual financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial 
performance of the Company in compliance with German 
Legally Required Accounting Principles. In addition, 
management is responsible for such internal control 
as they, in accordance with German Legally Required 
Accounting Principles, have determined necessary to 
enable the preparation of annual financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. They also 
have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern. In addition, they are 
responsible for financial reporting based on the going 
concern basis of accounting, provided no actual or legal 
circumstances conflict therewith.

Furthermore, management is responsible for the 
preparation of the management report that, as a 
whole, provides an appropriate view of the Company’s 
position and is, in all material respects, consistent 
with the annual financial statements, complies with 
German legal requirements, and appropriately presents 
the opportunities and risks of future development. 
In addition, management is responsible for such 
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arrangements and measures (systems) as they have 
considered necessary to enable the preparation of a 
management report that is in accordance with the 
applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to 
provide sufficient appropriate evidence for the assertions 
in the management report.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual 
Financial Statements and of the Management Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the annual financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and whether the management report as 
a whole provides an appropriate view of the Company’s 
position and, in all material respects, is consistent with 
the annual financial statements and the knowledge 
obtained in the audit, complies with the German 
legal requirements and appropriately presents the 
opportunities and risks of future development, as well as 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions on 
the annual financial statements and on the management 
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Section 317 HGB and in compliance with German 
Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement 
Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer 
(IDW) will always detect a material misstatement. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
annual financial statements and this management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the annual financial statements 
and of the management report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
controls.

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit of the annual financial statements and 
of arrangements and measures (systems) relevant 
to the audit of the management report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of these systems of 
the Company.

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used by management and the reasonableness of 
estimates made by the executive directors and 
related disclosures.

• conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the annual financial 
statements and in the management report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our respective 
opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to be able to continue 
as a going concern.

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the annual financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the annual financial 
statements present the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that the annual financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the 
assets, liabilities, financial position and financial 
performance of the Company in compliance with 
German Legally Required Accounting Principles.

• evaluate the consistency of the management report 
with the annual financial statements, its conformity 
with [German] law, and the view of the Company’s 
position it provides.

• perform audit procedures on the prospective 
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information presented by management in the 
management report. On the basis of sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, 
the significant assumptions used by management as 
a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate 
the proper derivation of the prospective information 
from these assumptions. We do not express a 
separate opinion on the prospective information 
and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a 
substantial unavoidable risk that future events will 
differ materially from the prospective information.

We discuss with those responsible for monitoring, 
among other things, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant findings of the audit, including 

any deficiencies in the internal control system that we 
identify during our audit.

Munich, April 23, 2021

TAP Dr. Schlumberger Krämer Pothorn & Partner mbB
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

[Original German version signed by:]

Krämer
Wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]
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Balance Sheet 
as of March 31, 2021

Assets Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 Equity and liablities Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

A. Fixed assets A. Equity

I. Intangible assets I. Called up share capital

1. Concessions, industrial and 
similar rights and licenses in 
such rights and assets

200,638.23 295,915.00 1. Capital subscribed 26,000.00 26,000.00

26,000.00 26,000.00

200,638.23 295,915.00

II. Profit/loss carried forward 4,002,431.73 4,002,431.73

II. Tangible assets

III. Net profit/loss for the year 0.00 0.00

1. Land, land rights and bulidungs 
including buildings on third 
party land

198,896.80 208,112.00

2. Technical equipment and 
machines

42,240.17 54,355.00

3. Other equipment, operating and 
office equipment

741,817.29 807,759.00 4,028,431.73 4,028,431.73

4. Payments on account and 
assets under construction

0.00 17,629.00

B. Provisions

982,954.26 1,087,855.00

1. Tax provisions 1,204,723.60 1,030,305.74

III. Non-current financial assets 2. Other provisions 7,632,735.92 2,017,744.28

1. Shares in cooperatives 5,000.00 5,000.00 8,837,459.52 3,048,050.02

5,000.00 5,000.00 C. Liablities

1. Liabilities to Banks 3,683,398.66 1,875,078.00

1,188,592.49 1,388,770.00 2. Trade payables 1,327,844.13 1,102,352.30

3. Liabilities to affiliated companies 4,698,908.56 7,503,224.17

B. Current assets 4. Other liabilities 366,902.10 475,734.80

- thereof from taxes: EUR 250,684.77 
(previous year: EUR 288,955.91)

I. Inventories - thereof for social security: EUR 
5,553.09 (previous year: EUR 107,913.32)

1. Work in process 1,734,047.26 0.00

10,077,053.45 10,956,389.27

1,734,047.26 0.00

II. Receivables and other assets

1. Trade receivables 3,059,786.50 8,548,774.30

2. Receivables from affiliated 
companies

3,390,640.11 1,477,693.55

3. Other assets 4,974,935.66 818,914.49

11,425,362.27 10,845,382.34

III. Cash in hand, bank balance and 
checks

8,564,675.25 5,752,407.12

21,724,084.78 16,597,789.46

C. Prepaid expenses 30,267.43 46,311.56

D. Deferred taxes assets 0.00 0.00

22,942,944.70 18,032,871.02 22,942,944.70 18,032,871.02
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Income Statement 
for the Period from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021

2020/21 2019/20

EUR EUR EUR

1. Revenues 42,530,870.58 37,572,877.91

2. Increase or decrease in work in process 1,703,402.75 -1,725,488.55

44,234,273.33 35,847,389.36

3. Other operating income 419,221.36 43,991.83

4. Cost of materials

a) Cost of raw materials, supplies and of purchased 
merchandise

-1,613,447.49 -176,291.87

b) Cost of purchased services -18,154,942.60 -14,369,039.04

-19,768,390.09 -14,545,330.91

5. Staff costs

a) Wages and salaries -15,254,709.14 -14,569,131.46

b) Social security and pension costs -2,683,163.06 -2,454,738.65

-17,937,872.20 -17,023,870.11

6. Depreciation and amortisation

a) Amortisation of intangible assets and depreciation
of property, plant and equipment -458,572.70

b) Depreciation of current assets -136.56 -505,130.88

-458,709.26 -505,130.88

7. Other operating expenses -3,965,545.76 -3,540,937.94

8. Income from other investments and long term loans 0.00 55.22

9. Other interest and similar income 2,443.22 4,141.56

10. Interest and similar expenses
- thereof to affiliated companies: EUR -9,820.55
(previous year: EUR -5,470.00)

-84,153.55 -5,929.85

11. Profit from ordinary operations 2,441,267.05 274,378.28

12. Taxes on income -164,821.64 -54,894.91

13. Other taxes -1,808.07 -1,579.10

14. Expenses from profit and loss transfer agreement -2,274,637.34 -217,904.27

15. Net profit/loss for the year 0.00 0.00
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Notes 
General information about the annual financial statements

Information identifying the company according to the registry court

Company name according to registry court:   MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH

Registered company address according to registry court:  Munich

Registry entry:        Handelsregister

Registry court:        Munich

Registry court number:      HRB 104401

MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH is a medium-sized corporation within the meaning of § 267 Abs. 2 HGB. The 
simplifications pursuant to § 288 Abs. 2 HGB have been applied.

Disclosures on accounting policies

Accounting policies

Purchased intangible assets were recognised at cost; finite-lived intangible assets are amortised.

Internally generated intangible assets were recognised at their development cost.

Tangible assets were recognised at cost; finite-lived tangible assets are depreciated.

Depreciation and amortisation is charged using the straight line method on the basis of the expected useful life of 
the assets.

Long-term financial assets are recognised and measured as follows:

–  Long-term equity investments at cost

If necessary, the applicable lower value was recognised at the reporting date.

Inventories were recognised at cost. Any lower current values at the reporting date were recognised.

The measurement of receivables and securities reflects all identifiable risks.

The other provisions were recognised for all further uncertain liabilities. They reflect all identifiable risks.

Liabilities are recognised at their settlement amount.

The annual financial statements include foreign currency items translated into EUR.

Foreign currency receivables and liabilities are measured with the average spot exchange rate on the balance 
sheet date. The rate on the date of the transaction is recognized, as far as it was lower for receivables or higher for 
liabilities.

Accounting policies that have changed as against the prior year

There was no fundamental change in accounting policies compared with the prior year.

Balance sheet disclosures

Fixed assets

The information per item in the balance sheet can be found in the statement of changes in fixed assets.
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Provisions

The other provisions of EUR 7,632,735.92 mainly relate to provisions for outstanding invoices (EUR 6,520,318.91).

Disclosure on receivables with a remaining term of more than one year

The amount of receivables with a remaining term of more than one year amounts to EUR 26,593.92 (prior year: EUR 
26,031.36).

Disclosures on receivables from shareholders

Receivables from shareholders amount to EUR 2,621,261.14 (prior year: EUR 425,967.18).

Disclosure on remaining maturity comments

Type of liability as at 31/03/2021 Total thereof remaining term

< 1 year > 1 year

TEUR TEUR TEUR

Liabilities to banks 3,683.4 3,683.4 0.0

Trade payables 1,327.8 1,327.8 0.0

Liabilities to affiliated companies 4,698.9 4,698.9 0.0

Other liabilities 366.9 366.9 0.0

Total 10,077.0 10,077.0 0.0

Type of liability as at 31/03/2020 Total thereof remaining term

< 1 year > 1 year

TEUR TEUR TEUR

Liabilities to banks 1,875.1 1,875.1 0.0

Trade payables 1,102.4 1,102.4 0.0

Liabilities to affiliated companies 7,503.2 7,503.2 0.0

Other liabilities 475.7 475.7 0.0

Total 10,956.4 10,956.4 0.0

Disclosures on liabilities to shareholders

Liabilities to shareholders amount to EUR 4,076,504.82 (prior year: EUR 3,214,692.15).

Unrecognized other financial obligations

In addition to the liabilities presented in the balance sheet, there are other financial obligations amounting to EUR 
2,797,944.18.

These obligations relate specifically to the following items:

-  Obligations from rental agreements for real estate

Notes 
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Income statement disclosures

Explanation of prior period income

The profit and loss statement contains prior period income amounting to EUR 167,941.77.

The amount is shown under line item other operating income.

The prior period income relates to corrections of liabilities which were in error double recognized in prior periods.

Explanation of prior period expenses

The profit and loss statement contains prior expense amounting to EUR 110,439.02.

The amount is shown under line item other operating expenses.

The prior period expenses relate to an advance payment, which was not recorded as expense when the service was 
provided in prior periods as well as the contribution to employers' liability insurance association for the year 2019.

Other disclosures

Average number of employees during the financial year

The following employee groups were employed in the company during the financial year:

Employee groups 2020/2021 2019/2020

Management 1 2

Direct employee 196 240

Marketing 1 4

Support 12 7

Names of managing directors

The business of the company was managed by the following persons in the past financial year

Pankaj Maheshwar Sathe Occupation: Managing Director

Markus Waidelich Occupation: Managing Director

Membership of group

MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH was included in the consolidated financial statements of KPIT Technologies 
Ltd., Pune (India).

KPIT Technologies GmbH, Munich prepares consolidated financial statements for the smallest group of companies. 
The consolidated financial statements will be published at the German Federal Gazette.

KPIT Technologies Ltd., Pune (India) prepares consolidated financial statements for the largest group of companies. 
The consolidated financial statements are available at the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

Notes 
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Significant events

There were no events of particular significance after the end of the financial year.

Proposal or resolution on the appropriation of net profit

Due to the profit and loss transfer agreement with the KPIT Technologies GmbH, Munich no resolution on the 
appropriation of net profit is applicable.

Signature of management

Munich, 23 April 2021

Pankaj Maheshwar Sathe 
(Managing Director)
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Appendix to the Notes

Fixed Assets Schedule 
as at March 31, 2021

Acquisition- and production costs Accumulated depreciation Net block

April 1, 2020 Additions Disposals Transfer March 31, 
2021

April 1, 2020 Additions Disposals March 31, 
2021

March 31, 
2021

March 31, 
2020

EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

I. Intangible assets

1. Concessions, 
industrial and similar 
rights and licenses 
in such rights and 
assets

499,475.95 26,400.00 0.00 0.00 525,875.95 203,560.95 121,676.77 0.00 325,237.72 200,638.23 295,915.00

499,475.95 26,400.00 0.00 0.00 525,875.95 203,560.95 121,676.77 0.00 325,237.72 200,638.23 295,915.00

II. Tangible assets

1. Land, land rights and 
buildings including 
buildings on third 
party land

230,384.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 230,384.68 22,272.68 9,215.20 0.00 31,487.88 198,896.80 208,112.00

2. Technical equipment 
and machines

551,146.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 551,146.92 496,791.92 12,114.83 0.00 508,906.75 42,240.17 54,355.00

3. Other equipment, 
operating and office 
equipment

1,800,696.22 231,995.19 -779.83 17,629.00 2,049,540.58 992,937.22 315,565.90 -779.83 1,307,723.29 741,817.29 807,759.00

4. Payments on account 
and assets under 
construction

17,629.00 0.00 0.00 -17,629.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,629.00

2,599,856.82 231,995.19 -779.83 0.00 2,831,072.18 1,512,001.82 336,895.93 -779.83 1,848,117.92 982,954.26 1,087,855.00

III. Non-current financial 
assets

1. Shares in 
cooperatives

5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

3,104,332.77 258,395.19 -779.83 0.00 3,361,948.13 1,715,562.77 458,572.70 -779.83 2,173,355.64 1,188,592.49 1,388,770.00
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Board’s Report  
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

USD USD

Total Income 881   -   

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year (14,465) (1,833)

The Company has not commenced its operations. Further, due to impact of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-
2021, the Company has incurred losses of USD 14,465.

Audit

The Company is not required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to issue a report to the 
shareholders on the financial statements. No audit opinion has been sought in respect of these financial statements. 
The accounts are prepared from the internally prepared management accounts of the Company. The same 
management accounts are audited in order for the Group Auditors to give an audit opinion in relation to the group 
accounts i.e. consolidated accounts of KPIT Technologies Limited, the parent company. Hence, no separate audit 
report is given in respect of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.

Pune Kishor Patil
April 23, 2021 Chairman

KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.
Registered Office: 1209 Orange Street-Corporation Trust Centre, New Castle County, Wilmington, Delaware 19801.
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.

Kishor Patil      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director

Place: Pune
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)

Note  31 March 2021  31 March 2020 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Financial assets

 Investments 2  14,400,250  14,400,250 

 14,400,250  14,400,250 

Current assets

Financial assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 3  2,583,452  2,598,167 

 2,583,452  2,598,167 

TOTAL ASSETS  16,983,702  16,998,417 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 4  17,000,000  17,000,000 

Other equity  (16,298)  (1,833)

 16,983,702  16,998,167 

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

 Other financial liabilities 5  -  250 

 -  250 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  16,983,702  16,998,417 

Significant accounting policies 1

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial 
statements

2 - 9
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Statement of Profit and Loss  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of      
KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.      

     

Kishor Patil      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director     

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)

Note  For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2021 

 For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020 

Other income 6  881  - 

Total income  881  - 

Expenses

Other expenses 7  15,346  1,833 

Total expenses  15,346  1,833 

Loss before tax  (14,465)  (1,833)

Tax expenses

Current tax  -  - 

Total tax expense  -  - 

Loss for the year  (14,465)  (1,833)

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  (14,465)  (1,833)

Significant accounting policies 1

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial 
statements

2 - 9
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of      
KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.      

     

Kishor Patil      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director     

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

Statement of Changes in Equity  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

(Amount in USD)
A Equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March 2019  17,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2020  17,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2021  17,000,000 

B Other equity

Particulars Reserves & 
surplus

Total

Retained 
earnings

Balance as on 1 April 2019  -  - 

Loss for the year  (1,833)  (1,833)

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  (1,833)  (1,833)

Balance as on 31 March 2020  (1,833)  (1,833)

Loss for the year  (14,465)  (14,465)

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  (16,298)  (16,298)

Balance as on 31 March 2021  (16,298)  (16,298)

Significant accounting policies 1

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 2 - 9
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Statement of Cash Flows  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of      
KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.      

     

Kishor Patil      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director     

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)
PARTICULARS  For the year 

ended on  
31 March 2021 

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020
A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Loss for the year  (14,465)  (1,833)
 Adjustments for:
 Interest income  (881)  - 
 Changes in other current liabilities  (250)  - 
 Net cash used in operating activities (A)  (15,596)  (1,833)

B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Interest received  881  - 
 Net cash used in investing activities (B)  881  - 

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A + B)  (14,715)  (1,833)

 Cash & cash equivalents at close of the period (Refer note 1 below)  2,583,452  2,598,167 
 Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the period (Refer note 1 below)  2,598,167  2,600,000 
 Cash surplus/(deficit) for the year  (14,715)  (1,833)

Note 1:
Cash and cash equivalents include:
Balance with banks 
- In  current  accounts   2,583,452  2,598,167 
Total Cash and cash equivalents   2,583,452  2,598,167 

Note 2:
Figures in brackets represent outflows of cash and cash equivalents.
Note 3:
The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method, as set out in the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind-AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021
Company Overview

KPIT Technologies Holding Inc. ("the Company") is a company incorporated on 6 September 2018 in the state of 
Delaware, USA. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of KPIT Technologies Limited, India (erstwhile KPIT 
Engineering Limited, India).

The Company provides Technology solutions in embedded software for the Automobile and Mobility Industry. 

1. Significant accounting policies

 1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind-AS") as 
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements are presented in US Dollars ("USD"), unless 
otherwise stated.

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in 
use.

 These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the 
accounting policies below.

 Use of estimates

 The preparation of  financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating 
to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and 
expenditure during the year. Actual results could differ from estimates. Differences between actual results and 
estimates are recognised in the year in which the results are known / materialised.

 Critical accounting estimates

 a. Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

  The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost (net of impairment, if any) annually, or 
more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying 
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 b. Provisions and contingent liabilities

  The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is 
probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

  The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. 

 c. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

  In view of pandemic relating to COVID -19, the Company has considered internal and external information 
and has performed sensitivity analysis based on current estimates in assessing the recoverability of 
investment in subsidiaries and other financial assets. The Company has also assessed the impact of this 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

whole situation on its capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity position, internal financial 
reporting controls etc. and is of the view that based on its present assessment this situation does not 
materially impact this financial statements as on 31 March 2021. However, the actual impact of COVID-19 on 
the Company's financial statements, in future, may differ from that estimated and the Company will continue 
to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

1.2 Current–non-current classification

 All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

 Assets

 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

 a. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating 
cycle;

 b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 c. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

 d. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least 12 months after the reporting date.

 Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

 Liabilities

 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

 a. it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

 b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 c. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

 d. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

 Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as 
non-current.

 Operating cycle

 Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 
equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company is less than twelve months.

1.3 Foreign currency transactions

 a. Functional and presentation currency

  US Dollars ("USD") is the Company's functional as well as presentation currency.

 b Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

translated into the functional currency at the year-end rates. The exchange differences so determined and 
also the realised exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies and measured at fair value are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies and measured at historical cost are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

1.4 Income taxes

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is 
recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and 
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the  financial statements. 

 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates 
on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the 
enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and 
tax losses can be utilised. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 
and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the 
foreseeable future. 

 The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.

1.5 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

 The Company recognises provisions only when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

 Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

 No provision is recognised for –

 a. Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or

 b. Present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because-

  1)  It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation; or

  2) A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.
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 Such obligations are disclosed as contingent liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part of the 
obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except in 
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

 Contingent assets are not recognised in the  financial statements since this may result in the recognition of 
income that may never be realised. 

1.6 Investment in subsidiaries

 Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment.

1.7 Financial instruments

 a. Initial recognition

  Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except 
for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value 
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

 b. Subsequent measurement

  Non-derivative financial instruments

  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

  A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding.

  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

  A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through 
profit or loss. 

  However, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election for particular investments in equity 
instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, the subsequent changes 
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

  Financial liabilities

  Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognised in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, 
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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 c. Derecognition of financial instruments

  The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind-AS 109. 
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

 d. Fair value of financial instruments

  When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be measured based on quoted prices 
in active markets, the Company uses discounted cash flow analysis method for the fair value of its financial 
instruments except for employee stock options (ESOP), where Black and Scholes options pricing model is 
used. The method of assessing fair value results in general approximation of value and such value may never 
actually be realised.

  For all other financial instruments the carrying amount approximates fair value due to short maturity of 
those instruments.

1.8 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short term, highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value and have a short maturity of three months or less from the date of investment.

(Amount in USD)

 31 March 2021  31 March 2020

2 Non current investments

Investments in equity instrument of fellow subsidiary (at cost)

KPIT Technologias Ltda  250  250 

1 (Previous year 1) equity share of BRL 1 each fully paid up

Investments in equity instrument of subsidiary (at cost)

KPIT Technologies Inc., USA  14,400,000  14,400,000 

5,000,000 (Previous year 5,000,000) shares of common stock at par 
value of USD 1 each

 14,400,250  14,400,250 

3  Cash and bank balances 

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks 

- In current accounts  2,583,452  2,598,167 

 2,583,452  2,598,167 

4 Share capital

Authorised:

17,000,000 shares of common stock at par value of USD 1 each  17,000,000  17,000,000 

Issued subscribed and fully paid up:

17,000,000 shares of common stock at par value of USD 1 each  17,000,000  17,000,000 

 17,000,000  17,000,000 
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 31 March 2021  31 March 2020
5 Other current financial liabilities

Other than trade payables :

Payable to related parties (Refer Note 9)  -  250

 -  250

6 Other income

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2021

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020
Interest income 881 -

881 -

7 Other expenses

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2021

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020
Rates & taxes  13,700 -
Legal and professional fees  875  1,833 
Miscellaneous expenses (net)  771 -

 15,346  1,833 

Note
Certain expenses are net of recoveries/reimbursements from customers.

8 Contingent liabilities and Commitments
 The Company has no contingent liabilities and commitments as at 31 March 2021.
9 Related party disclosures
 i. Name of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists:

Relationship Name of related party

Holding Company KPIT Technologies Limited, India (erstwhile KPIT Engineering Limited)
Subsidiary Company KPIT Technologies Inc., USA
Fellow Subsidiary 
Companies

KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited
KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co. Limited, China
KPIT Technologies GK, Japan
Impact Automotive Solutions Limited
KPIT Technologias Ltda
KPIT Technologies Pte. Ltd.
KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.
KPIT Technologies GmbH, Germany (Through KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited)
MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Germany (Through KPIT Technologies 
GmbH, Germany)

(Amount in USD)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.

     

Kishor Patil      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director 

Place: Pune
Date: 23 April 2021

 ii. Transactions with related parties:

No. Name of related party FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Amount of 

transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD) 

Balance as on  
31 March 2021 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD) 

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD) 

Balance as on  
31 March 2020 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD) 

Transactions with holding and subsidiary 
companies
1 KPIT Technologies Limited (erstwhile 

KPIT Engineering Limited)
Reimbursement of expenses (net) NIL NIL  250  (250)
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Board’s Report  
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

USD USD

Total Income 114,070,881 126,160,226 

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 4,049,855 1,357,078 

Due to impact of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, the total income of the Company has decreased by 
9.58% as compared to previous year however, the Company has witnessed remarkable increase in profits.

Directors

During the year under review, Mr. Nickhil Jakatdar, Mr. Chinmay Pandit and Mr. Rajeeb Nath were appointed as a 
Directors of the Company with effect from August 4, 2020.

Audit

The Company is not required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to issue a report to the 
shareholders on the financial statements. No audit opinion has been sought in respect of these financial statements. 
The accounts are prepared from the internally prepared management accounts of the Company. The same 
management accounts are audited in order for the Group Auditors to give an audit opinion in relation to the group 
accounts i.e. consolidated accounts of KPIT Technologies Limited, the parent company. Hence, no separate audit 
report is given in respect of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
KPIT Technologies Inc.

Pune Kishor Patil
April 23, 2021 Chairman

KPIT Technologies Inc.
Registered Office: 1209 Orange Street-Corporation Trust Centre, New Castle County, Wilmington, Delaware 19801.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Inc.

Rajeeb Nath      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director 

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)
Note  31 March 2021  31 March 2020 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2A  139,624  106,379 
Right-of-use assets 2B  1,200,198  1,374,669 
Other intangible assets 2C  5,511  227,911 
Financial assets
 Loans 3  3,492  7,978 
Income tax assets (net)  369,440  1,535,964 
Deferred tax assets 4  1,055,055  464,574 
Other non-current assets 5  1,746  72 

 2,775,066  3,717,547 
Current assets
Financial assets
 Trade receivables 6  12,893,824  16,768,426 
 Cash and bank balance 7  16,371,382  12,185,044 
 Unbilled revenue  2,351,864  2,921,960 
 Other financial assets 8  1,831,388  3,180,577 
Other current assets 9  219,113  833,559 

 33,667,571  35,889,566 

TOTAL ASSETS  36,442,637  39,607,113 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital 10  5,000,000  5,000,000 
Other equity  14,243,821  10,193,966 

 19,243,821  15,193,966 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 Lease liabilities  1,275,598  1,419,784 
 Other financial liabilities 11  574,800  - 

 1,850,398  1,419,784 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 Trade payables  6,738,509  15,298,530 
 Lease liabilities  144,186  128,004 
 Other financial liabilities 12  1,139,506  1,362,499 
Other current liabilities 13  6,464,517  4,460,702 
Provisions 14  429,552  628,214 
Income tax liabilities (net)  432,148  1,115,414 

 15,348,418  22,993,363 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  36,442,637  39,607,113 

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 2 - 24
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for the year ended on 31 March 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Inc.

Rajeeb Nath      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director 

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)
Note  For the year 

ended on  
31 March 2021 

 For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020 
Revenue from operations 15  114,003,847  126,076,374 
Other income 16  67,034  83,852 
Total income  114,070,881  126,160,226 

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17  40,674,757  46,568,592 
Finance costs 18  305,058  322,239 
Depreciation and amortization 2  435,161  294,400 
Other expenses 19  67,238,684  76,268,459 
Total expenses  108,653,660  123,453,690 

Profit before tax  5,417,221  2,706,536 

Tax expenses
Current tax  1,957,847  1,341,081 
Deferred tax benefit  (590,481)  8,377 
Total tax expense  1,367,366  1,349,458 

Profit for the year  4,049,855  1,357,078 

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  4,049,855  1,357,078 

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial 
statements

 2 - 24 
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Inc.

Rajeeb Nath      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director 

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)

A Equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March 2019  5,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2020  5,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2021  5,000,000 

B Other equity

Particulars  Reserves & surplus Total

 Capital 
Reserve 

Retained 
earnings

Balance as on 1 April 2019  7,081,510  1,841,484  8,922,994 

Profit for the year  -  1,357,078  1,357,078 

Effect of transition to Ind-AS 116  -  (86,106)  (86,106)

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  1,270,972  1,270,972 

Balance as on 31 March 2020  7,081,510  3,112,456  10,193,966 

Balance as on 1 April 2020  7,081,510  3,112,456  10,193,966 

Profit for the year  -  4,049,855  4,049,855 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  4,049,855  4,049,855 

Balance as on 31 March 2021  7,081,510  7,162,311  14,243,821 
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Statement of Cash Flows  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

(Amount in USD)

PARTICULARS For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2021

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020

A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Profit for the year  4,049,855  1,357,078 

 Adjustments for:

 Tax expense  1,367,366  1,349,458 

 Depreciation / Amortization  435,161  294,400 

 Interest expense  305,058  322,239 

 Interest income  (9,167)  (63,116)

 Bad debts written off  169,867  156,190 

 Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)  560,691  156,044 

 Unrealised foreign exchange Profit/(Loss)  10,174  (11,570)

 Operating profit before working capital changes  6,889,005  3,560,723 

 

 Adjustments for changes in working capital: 

 Trade receivables and unbilled revenue  3,713,504  14,960,552 

 Loans, other financials assets and other assets  1,967,280  3,442,562 

 Trade payables  (8,569,559)  (4,405,453)

 Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions  2,156,960  (6,338,594)

 Cash generated from operations  6,157,190  11,219,790 

 Taxes paid (net)  (1,474,589)  (868,994)

 Net cash from operating activities (A)  4,682,601  10,350,796 

B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (71,535)  (393,351)

 Interest received  8,334  62,949 

 Deposit with banks (net)  (4,608,034)  (10,534,798)

 Net cash used in investing activities (B)  (4,671,235)  (10,865,200)
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Statement of Cash Flows  
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Inc.

Rajeeb Nath      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director 

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021

(Amount in USD)

PARTICULARS For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2021

For the year 
ended on  

31 March 2020

C] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 Payment of lease liabilities  (225,257)  (208,948)

 Interest and finance charges paid  (207,805)  (219,444)

 Net cash used in financing activities (C)  (433,062)  (428,392)

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A + B + C)  (421,696)  (942,796)

 Cash & cash equivalents at close of the year (Refer note 1 below)  1,228,550  1,650,246 

 Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Refer note 1 below)  1,650,246  2,593,042 

 Cash surplus/(deficit) for the year  (421,696)  (942,796)

 Note 1:

 Cash and cash equivalents include:

 Balance with banks 

 - In current accounts   1,228,550  1,650,246 

 Total Cash and cash equivalents   1,228,550  1,650,246 

 Note 2:

 Figures in bracket represent outflows of cash and cash equivalents.

 Note 3:

  The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method, as set out in the Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.
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Company Overview

KPIT Technologies Inc. ("the Company") is a company incorporated on 3 April 2018 in the state of Delaware, USA. The 
Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of KPIT Technologies Holding Inc., USA.

The Company provides Technology solutions in embedded software for the Automobile and Mobility Industry. 

1 Significant accounting policies

 1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

  The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind-AS") as 
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 
and the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements are presented in US Dollars ("USD"), 
unless otherwise stated.

  Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

  These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the 
accounting policies below.

  Use of estimates

  The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures 
relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 
income and expenditure during the year. Actual results could differ from estimates. Differences between 
actual results and estimates are recognised in the year in which the results are known / materialised.

  Critical accounting estimates

  i. Revenue Recognition

   The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. 
Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to determine the costs expended 
to date as a proportion of the total estimated costs to be expended. Costs expended have been used 
to measure progress towards completion as generally it is estimated that there is a direct relationship 
between input and output in respect of work completed.

   Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which 
such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the period end date.

  ii. Income Tax

   Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount 
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions (if any).
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  iii.  Provisions and contingent liabilities

   The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it 
is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

   The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. 

  iv.  Leases

   The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind-AS 
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in 
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

   The Company reassesses the lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a significant 
change in circumstances that is within the control of the Company and affects whether it is reasonably 
certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the lease term, or not to 
exercise an option previously included in its determination of the lease term.

  v. Valuation of deferred tax assets

   The Company reviews carrying amount of deferred tax asset at the end of each reporting period. The 
policy has been explained under note 1.12.

  vi. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

   In view of pandemic relating to COVID -19, the Company has considered internal and external information 
and has performed sensitivity analysis based on current estimates in assessing the recoverability 
of receivables, unbilled receivables, intangible assets and other financial assets. The Company has 
also assessed the impact of this whole situation on its capital and financial resources, profitability, 
liquidity position, internal financial reporting controls etc. and is of the view that based on its present 
assessment this situation does not materially impact this financial statements as on 31 March 2021. 
However, the actual impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements, in future, may differ 
from that estimated and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future 
economic conditions.

 1.2 Current–non-current classification

  All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

  Assets

  An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

  a. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating 
cycle;

  b.  it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

  c. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

  d. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 
at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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  Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as 

non-current.

  Liabilities

  A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

  a. it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;

  b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

  c. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

  d. the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

   Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are 
classified as non-current.

   Operating cycle

   Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
or cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company is less than twelve months.

 1.3 Revenue recognition

  The Company derives revenues primarily from providing engineering services which includes design 
engineering services, embedded software development with its related services and from the sale of licenses 
and products. 

  The following is the summary of significant accounting policies related to revenue recognition:

  Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services or products to customers for an amount 
that reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange of those services or products.

  Arrangements with customers for such engineering and its related services are bifurcated into following key 
categories:

  a. Revenue on time and material contracts for the reporting period is recognised as and when the related 
services are performed and billed to the end customers. If billing for the related services is not done 
during the reporting period, revenue is recognized as unbilled revenue at the end of the reporting period.

  b. Revenue from fixed price contracts where the performance obligations are directly linked to costs 
expended and are satisfied over time and there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of 
consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion method.  Percentage of completion 
is determined based on project costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated project 
costs required to complete the project. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards 
completion towards completion as generally there is a direct relationship between input and output in 
respect of work completed. 

  c. Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement.

  d. Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is 
recognised as the services are performed.
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  e. Revenue from internally developed software product licenses where the customer obtains a “right to 

use” the license is recognised at the time the license is made available to the customer. Revenue from 
licenses where the customer obtains a “right to access” is recognised over the access period. 

  f. Revenue from sale of third party licenses is recognised only when the sale is completed by passing 
ownership.

  g. Revenue from sale of hardware products is recognized upon actual delivery of goods along with transfer 
of control and significant risks and rewards to the customers.

  The following are the details of key significant accounting policies related to revenue recognition for all the 
above mentioned categories:

   a. Revenue in excess of invoicing is classified either as contract asset (unbilled revenue) or financial 
asset (unbilled revenue), while invoicing in excess of revenue is classified as contract liabilities 
(unearned revenue).

   b. Unbilled revenue is classified as contract asset when there is a right to consideration in exchange 
for goods or services which is conditional on something other than the passage of time. Whereas, it 
is classified as financial asset when such right to consideration in exchange for goods or services is 
conditional only on passage of time.

   c. Amount billed in advance, without services being rendered, is classified as unearned revenue 
(contract liabilities).

    Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and incentives, if any, as specified in the 
contract with the customer. Expenses reimbursed by customers during the project execution are 
recorded as reduction to associated costs.

   d. The Company accounts for volume and / or trade discounts to customers as a reduction of revenue. 
Also, when the level of discount varies with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the company 
recognises the liability based on its estimate of the customer's future purchases. The Company 
recognises changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which 
the change occurs. The discounts are passed on to the customer either as direct payments or as a 
reduction of payments due from the customer.

   e. When there is an uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is 
postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. 

   f. In accordance with Ind-AS 37, provision for onerous contract/ estimated losses, if any, on 
uncompleted contracts are recorded in a period in which such losses become probable based on the 
expected contract estimates at the period end date.

   g. The Company presents revenues net of indirect tax in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

   h. Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements: license, implementation 
and Annual Technical Services(ATS). The Company has applied the principles under Ind-AS 115 
to account for revenues from these performance obligations. When implementation services are 
provided in conjunction with the licensing arrangement and the license and implementation have 
been identified as two separate performance obligations, the transaction price for such contracts 
is allocated to each performance obligation of the contract based on its relative standalone selling 
prices. In the absence of standalone selling price for implementation, the performance obligation 
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is estimated using the expected cost plus margin approach. Where the license is required to be 
substantially customised as part of the implementation service, the entire arrangement fee for 
license and implementation is considered to be a single performance obligation and the revenue 
is recognised using the percentage-of-completion method as the implementation is performed. 
Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of software products 
is recognised as the performance obligations are satisfied. ATS revenue is recognised ratably over the 
period in which the services are rendered. 

   i. In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be 
received.

   Significant judgments in revenue recognition:

   a. The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and 
services to a customer. The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and 
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance 
obligation involves judgment to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit 
independently from such deliverables.

   b. Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price 
could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements 
such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and 
incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the 
contract includes a significant financing component. The estimated amount of variable consideration 
is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant 
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur and is reassessed at the end 
of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the 
performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one 
or more distinct performance obligations.

   c. The Company uses judgment to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance 
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis 
of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. 
Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin 
approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

   d. The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at 
a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer 
consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or 
existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product 
or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the 
customer, etc.

   e. Revenue from fixed price contracts where the performance obligations are directly linked to costs 
expended and are satisfied over time and there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability 
of consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion method. The Company uses 
judgment to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the 
degree of the completion of the performance obligation.
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 1.4 Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

  The exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent that they are regarded as 
an adjustment to interest costs, are regrouped from foreign exchange differences  to finance costs.

 1.5 Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation 
and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its 
purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives , than they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon 
sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.  Assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

 1.6 Intangible assets

  Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. 

  In case of internally generated intangibles, costs incurred during the research phase of a project are 
expensed when incurred. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or 
substantially improved products or processes. Development expenditure is capitalised only if development 
costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future 
economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete 
development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct 
labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly 
attributable borrowing costs (in the same manner as in the case of property, plant and equipment). Other 
development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

  Intangible fixed assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use and subsequent disposal or when the economic benefits are not measurable.

 1.7 Depreciation and amortisation

  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives 
of the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Type of asset Useful life  
(No. of years)

Plant and equipment(1) 4

Office Equipment(1) 10

Furniture and fixtures(1) 8

  (1) For these class of assets, based on internal assessment, the useful lives as given above are believed to best 
represent the period over which the assets are expected to be used. Hence the useful lives for these assets are 
different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.
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  The right-of-use asset is depreciated over shorter of useful life and lease term.

  Perpetual software licenses are amortised over 4 years. However, time‑based software licenses are amortised 
over the license period.

  The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the 
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain 
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

  Improvements to leased premises are amortised over the remaining non-cancellable period of the lease.

  Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

 1.8 Impairment 

  a.  Financial assets

   The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. Ind-AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. 
The Group recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal 
to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition 
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. Loss allowances for trade receivables are always 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses 
(or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 
required to be recognised is recorded as an impairment gain or loss in Statement of Profit or Loss.

   The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted 
to reflect current and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and 
anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the Company deals with and the countries 
where it operates. While assessing the recoverability of receivables including unbilled receivables, the 
Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial 
statements including credit reports and economic forecasts. The Company expects to recover the 
carrying amount of these assets.

  b.  Non- financial assets

   Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

   The management periodically assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying value of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s fair value less 
cost of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets (cash generating unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

   Intangible assets which are not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. Other assets 
(tangible and intangible) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication 
of impairment. For assets in respect of which any such indication exists and for intangible assets 
mandatorily tested annually for impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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   If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer 

exists or has decreased, the assets or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets other than 
goodwill, the impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised. Such a reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 1.9 Leases

  A contract, or part of a contract, is a lease if that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for 
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

  The Company as a lessee

  The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease 
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the 
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the 
non-lease components. 

  The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease 
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall 
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently 
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted 
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line 
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The 
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant 
and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

  The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company 
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease 
by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental 
borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease 
payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects 
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by 
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease 
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

  The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to 
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend 
a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances 
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that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to 
exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the 
non-cancellable period of a lease.

  The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further 
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the 
re-measurement in Statement of Profit and Loss.

  The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind-AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease 
payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

  The Company as a lessor

  Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of 
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified 
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.   When the Company is an intermediate 
lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified 
as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. For 
operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.  If 
a head lease is a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it 
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, 
the Company applies Ind-AS 115 Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract.

 1.10 Foreign currency transactions

  a. Functional and presentation currency

   US Dollar ("USD") is the Company's functional as well as presentation currency.

  b. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the 
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the year-end rates. The exchange differences 
so determined and also the realised exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies and measured at fair value are translated 
into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies and measured at historical cost are 
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

 1.11 Employee benefits

  a. Defined contribution plan

   A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified 
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes 
specified monthly contributions towards employee contribution plans which are defined contribution 
plans. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
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  b. Other employee benefits

   The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
services rendered by employees is recognised during the period when the employee renders the service. 
These benefits include compensated absences (which cannot be carried forward) such as paid annual 
leave, overseas social security contributions and performance incentives. 

 1.12 Income taxes

  Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods 
is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income 
tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 

  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years 
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax 
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that 
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences and tax losses can be utilized. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, 
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 1.13 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

  The Company recognises provisions only when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

  Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

  No provision is recognised for –

  a. Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company; or

  b. Present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because-

   1) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation; or

   2) A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

   Such obligations are disclosed as contingent liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part 
of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided 
for, except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.
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   Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition 

of income that may never be realised.

   Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is 
established the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

 1.14 Employee stock option

  In respect of stock options granted pursuant to the Company’s Employee Stock Option Scheme, the 
Company recognises employee compensation expense, using the grant date fair value in accordance with 
Ind-AS 102 - Share Based Payment, on straight line basis over the period over which the employees would 
become unconditionally entitled to apply for the shares.

  When the terms of the share-based payment arrangement are modified, the minimum expense recognised 
is the expense had the terms not been modified. Additional expense is recognised on modification that 
increase the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement or are otherwise beneficial to the 
employee. Where the grant of equity instruments is cancelled by the entity, the remaining fair value is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss.

 1.15 Financial instruments

  a. Initial recognition

   Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except 
for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair 
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

  b. Subsequent measurement

   i) Non-derivative financial instruments

    Financial assets carried at amortised cost

    A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

    Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

    A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.
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    Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

    A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued 
through profit or loss. 

    However, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election for particular investments 
in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, the 
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

    Financial liabilities

    Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
except for contingent consideration recognised in a business combination which is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year 
from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of 
these instruments.

  c. Derecognition of financial instruments

   The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under 
Ind-AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the group's balance 
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

  d. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

   When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be measured based on quoted prices 
in active markets, the Group uses discounted cash flow analysis method for the fair value of its financial 
instruments except for employee stock options (ESOP) , where Black and Scholes options pricing model 
is used. The method of assessing fair value results in general approximation of value and such value may 
never actually be realised.

   For all other financial instruments the carrying amount approximates fair value due to short maturity of 
those instruments.

 1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value and have a short maturity of three months or less from the date of investment.
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(Amount in USD)

2A Property, plant and equipment

 Plant and 
equipment 

 Office 
Equipment 

 Furniture 
and 

Fixtures 

 Leasehold 
Improvements 

 Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2019  123,032  8,511  25,128  -  156,671 

Additions  69,021  -  14,300  12,356  95,677 

Disposal/Retirements/Derecognition  -  -  -  -  - 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2020  192,053  8,511  39,428  12,356  252,348 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2019  99,094  2,062  14,150  -  115,306 

Depreciation for the year  26,315  851  2,376  1,121  30,663 

Disposal/Retirements/Derecognition  -  -  -  -  - 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 
2020

 125,409  2,913  16,526  1,121  145,969 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2019  23,938  6,449  10,978  -  41,365 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2020  66,644  5,598  22,902  11,235  106,379 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020  192,053  8,511  39,428  12,356  252,348 

Additions  54,735  10,700  -  -  65,435 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2021  246,788  19,211  39,428  12,356  317,783 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 
2020

 125,409  2,913  16,526  1,121  145,969 

Depreciation for the year  25,779  1,470  3,605  1,336  32,190 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 
2021

 151,188  4,383  20,131  2,457  178,159 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2020  66,644  5,598  22,902  11,235  106,379 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2021  95,600  14,828  19,297  9,899  139,624 
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(Amount in USD)

2B Right-of-use assets

 Building 
(Leasehold) 

 Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2019  -  - 

Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS 116  1,422,185  1,422,185 

Additions  117,152  117,152 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2020  1,539,337  1,539,337 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2019  -  - 

Depreciation for the year  164,668  164,668 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2020  164,668  164,668 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2019  -  - 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2020  1,374,669  1,374,669 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020  1,539,337  1,539,337 

Additions  -  - 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2021  1,539,337  1,539,337 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2020  164,668  164,668 

Depreciation for the year  174,471  174,471 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2021  339,139  339,139 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2020  1,374,669  1,374,669 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2021  1,200,198  1,200,198 
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2C Other intangible assets

 Internally 
Generated 

 Other than 
Internally 

Generated 
Software 

 Total 

 Product 
Development 

Cost 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2019  47,612  -  47,612 

Additions  297,674  -  297,674 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2020  345,286  -  345,286 

Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2019  18,306  -  18,306 

Amortisation for the year  99,069  -  99,069 

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2020  117,375  -  117,375 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2019  29,306  -  29,306 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2020  227,911  -  227,911 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2020  345,286  -  345,286 

Additions  -  6,100  6,100 

Disposal/Retirements/Derecognition  -  -  -   

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2021  345,286  6,100  351,386 

Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020  117,375  -  117,375 

Amortisation for the year  227,025  1,475  228,500 

Disposal/Retirements/Derecognition  -  -  -   

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021  344,400  1,475  345,875 

Carrying amount as at 1 April 2020  227,911  -  227,911 

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2021  886  4,625  5,511 
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(Amount in USD)

 31 March 
2021

 31 March 
2020

3 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good with no significant increase in credit risk or credit 
impaired, unless otherwise stated)
Loans and advances to other than related parties
- Security deposits  3,492  7,978 

 3,492  7,978
4 Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets
-  Provision for leave encashment  107,196  142,700 
-  Subcontractor payable  181,303  20,783 
-  Provision for doubtful debts and advances  363,435  71,676 
-  Others  439,229  311,779 

 1,091,163  546,938 
Deferred tax liabilities
- Excess of depreciation/amortisation on property, plant and equipment and 

other intangible assets under income-tax law over depreciation/amortisation 
provided in accounts

 36,108  82,364 

 36,108  82,364 

Net deferred tax asset  1,055,055  464,574 

5 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advance rentals  1,746 72

 1,746 72

6 Trade receivables 

(Unsecured)

Receivables considered good  12,893,824  16,768,426 

Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -   

Receivables - credit impaired  1,443,420  277,348 

 14,337,244  17,045,774 

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful trade receivables  1,443,420  277,348 

 12,893,824  16,768,426 

Note:

Trade receivables from related parties are disclosed in note 21.
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(Amount in USD)

 31 March 
2021

 31 March 
2020

7 Cash and bank balances 

Cash and cash equivalents

 Balances with banks  

- In current accounts  1,228,550  1,650,246 

Other bank balances  15,142,832  10,534,798 

 16,371,382  12,185,044 

8  Other current financials assets 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Receivable from related parties (Refer note 21) -  28,151 

Receivable from other than related parties  1,831,388  3,152,426 

 1,831,388  3,180,577 

9  Other current assets 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advance rentals  272  172 

Employee advances  46,946  132,116 

Advance to suppliers  -    56,196 

Contract assets  171,895  645,075 

 219,113  833,559 

10 Share capital

Authorised:

7,500,000 shares of common stock at par value of USD 1 each  7,500,000  7,500,000 

 7,500,000  7,500,000 

Issued subscribed and fully paid up:

5,000,000 shares of common stock at par value of USD 1 each  5,000,000  5,000,000 

 5,000,000  5,000,000

11 Other non-current financial liabilities

Other than trade payables

Accrued employee costs  574,800 -

 574,800 -



96

KPIT Technologies Inc.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

(Amount in USD)

 31 March 
2021

 31 March 
2020

12 Other current financial liabilities

Accrued employee costs  970,409  818,037

Payable to related parties (Refer note 21)  85,313 427,875

Payable to other than related parties  83,784 116,587

 1,139,506 1,362,499

13 Other current liabilities

Unearned revenue  4,633,722  3,819,440 

Statutory remittances  1,830,795  641,262 

 6,464,517  4,460,702 

14 Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefit

-  Compensated absences  429,552  628,214 

 429,552  628,214 
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(Amount in USD)
For the year 

ended on  
31 March 

2021

For the year 
ended on  
31 March  

2020 
15 Revenue from operations

Software services  114,003,847  126,076,374 
 114,003,847  126,076,374

16 Other income
Interest income  9,167  63,116 
Foreign exchange gain (net)  5,307  20,736 
Other non operating income (net of expenses directly attributable to such 
income) (including miscellaneous income)

 52,560  -   

 67,034  83,852 
17 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and incentives  40,477,806  46,414,810 
Staff welfare expenses  18,138  40,441 
Share based compensation to employees  178,813  113,341 

 40,674,757  46,568,592 
18 Finance costs

Finance cost on lease liabilities (Refer note 22)  97,253  102,795 
Other interest expense  207,805  219,444 

 305,058  322,239 
19 Other expenses

Travel and overseas expenses (net)  1,519,839  2,803,744 
Transport and conveyance (net)  10,498  261,344 
Cost of service delivery (net)  57,954,786  61,796,056 
Cost of professional sub-contracting (net)  5,387,242  4,398,371 
Recruitment and training expenses  98,073  167,984 
Power and fuel  26,077  37,185 
Rent (Refer note 22)  131,055  147,262 
Repairs and maintenance 
- plant & equipment  6,221  4,521 
- others  6,143  12,076 
Insurance  27,154  47,078 
Rates & taxes  198,711  179,321 
Communication expenses (net)  230,003  616,125 
Legal and professional fees  438,870  401,446 
Settlement of lawsuit with Copart Inc., USA (Refer note 23)  -    2,800,000 
Marketing expenses  127,570  534,466 
Bad debts written off  169,867  156,190 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)  560,691  156,044 
Miscellaneous expenses (net)  345,884  1,749,246 

 67,238,684  76,268,459 
 Note
 Certain expenses are net of recoveries/reimbursements from customers.
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20 Contingent liabilities and Commitments

 The Company has no contingent liabilities and commitments as at 31 March 2021.

21 Related party disclosures

 i. Name of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists:

Relationship Name of related party

Ultimate Holding Company KPIT Technologies Limited, India (erstwhile KPIT Engineering Limited)

Holding Company KPIT Technologies Holding Inc., USA

Fellow Subsidiary Companies KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited

KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co. Limited, China

KPIT Technologies GK, Japan

Impact Automotive Solutions Limited

KPIT Technologias Ltda.

KPIT Technologies Pte. Ltd.

KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.

KPIT Technologies GmbH, Germany (Through KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited)

ThaiGerTec Co. Ltd. (w.e.f. 1 April 2019)

MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Germany (Through KPIT 
Technologies GmbH, Germany)

 ii. List of entities jointly controlled by a Group which had joint control over the reporting entities:

Entities jointly controlled by a 
Group which had joint control 
over the reporting entities  
(till 31 January 2020)*

Birlasoft Limited (erstwhile KPIT Technologies Limited)

Birlasoft Solutions Inc., USA (erstwhile KPIT Infosystems Incorporated, 
USA)

Birlasoft Solutions France (erstwhile KPIT Technologies France)

Birlasoft Consulting Inc., USA (erstwhile Sparta Consulting Inc., USA)

Birlasoft Computer Corporation, USA (erstwhile SYSTIME Computer 
Corporation)

Birlasoft Solutions ME FZE (erstwhile KPIT Infosystems ME FZE)

Birlasoft Technologies Canada Corporation (erstwhile KPIT Technologies 
Corporation)
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Birlaosft Solutions Ltda (erstwhile KPIT Technologies Solucoes Em 
Informatica Ltda)

Birlasoft Solutions GmbH (erstwhile KPIT Solutions GmbH)

Birlasoft Solutions Mexico, S.A. DE C.V. (erstwhile KPIT Infosystems 
Mexico, S.A. DE C.V.)

Birlasoft Solutions Limited (erstwhile KPIT Infosystems Limited (UK))

*As per the agreement between the parties, consequent to the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
approved Composite Scheme, the joint control between the Transferee Company i.e. Birlasoft Limited 
(erstwhile KPIT Technologies Limited)  and the Resulting Company i.e. KPIT Technologies Limited (erstwhile 
KPIT Engineering Limited)  has concluded effective 1 February 2020. 

 iii. List of Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Kishor Patil Director

Mr. Sachin Tikekar Director

Mr. Nickhil Jakatdar Director (w.e.f August 4, 2020)

Mr. Chinmay Pandit Director (w.e.f August 4, 2020)

Mr. Rajeeb Nath Director (w.e.f August 4, 2020), President

Mr. Rajeev Kulkarni Secretary and Treasurer

 iv. Transactions with related parties:

No. Name of related party FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 2021 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 

2020 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Transactions with entities jointly controlled by a Group which had joint control over the reporting  
entities(i) & (ii)

1. Birlasoft Limited (erstwhile KPIT Technologies Limited)

Sales  NA 

NA

 NIL 

NILSoftware service charges  NA  NIL 

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  NA  (1,501,908)
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No. Name of related party FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 2021 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 

2020 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

2. Birlasoft Solutions Inc., USA (erstwhile KPIT Infosystems Incorporated, USA)

Sales  NA 

NA

 1,064,522 

NIL

Software service charges  NA  NIL 

Other transactions pertaining to customer/
vendor novation which are pending or 
completed post demerger scheme.

 NA  7,269,470 

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  NA  3,826,592 

Advance Given (net)  NA  NIL 

3. Birlasoft Technologies Canada Corporation (erstwhile KPIT Technologies Corporation)

Sales  NA 

 NA 

 NIL 

NILSoftware service charges  NA  NIL 

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  NA  176,740 

4. Birlasoft Consulting Inc., USA (erstwhile Sparta Consulting Inc., USA)

Software service charges  NA 

 NA 

 NIL 

NIL
Other transactions pertaining to customer/
vendor novation which are pending or 
completed post demerger scheme.

 NA  (98,932)

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  NA  2,838,056 

5. Birlasoft Computer Corporation, USA (erstwhile SYSTIME Computer Corporation)

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  NA 

 NA 

 299,318 

NILSales  NA  7,933 

Software service charges  NA  NIL 
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No. Name of related party FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 2021 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 

2020 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Transactions with holding and subsidiary companies (i)

1 KPIT Technologies Limited (erstwhile KPIT Engineering Limited)

Sales  NIL  1,687  NIL  656 

Software service charges  53,850,183 
 (5,721,335)

 57,373,803 
 (13,760,788)Allocation of administrative support 

charges
 1,729,340  2,057,784 

Advance received (net)  46,457 
 (85,313)

 207,113 
 (427,875)

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  222,318  151,434 

2 KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.

Sales  1,181  NIL  1,448  74 

Software service charges  2,919  (2,919)  16  (41,060)

3 KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co. 
Limited, China

Sales  6,257  (364)  7,964  45 

Software service charges  3,592  (1,443)  93,184  NIL 

4 KPIT Technologies GK (South Korea Branch)

Sales  2,290  2,386  541  35 

Software service charges  160,871  (58,582)  145,996  (188,273)

5 KPIT Technologies GK, Japan

Sales  31,115  (9,062)  55,828  1,011 

Software service charges  30,883  NIL  11,828  (10,554)

6 KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited

Sales  59,795  (9,149)  103,433  39,191 

Software service charges  82,333  (6,512)  1,251  (23,140)

7 KPIT Technologies GmbH, Germany

Sales  29,115  106,641  89,098  85,442 

Software service charges  5,066,479  (541,223)  4,664,828  (571,763)

Loan given  NIL 

 NIL 

 2,000,000 

 28,151 
Interest income received  28,151  NIL 

Interest income NIL 28,151

Loan repayment received  NIL 2,000,000
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for the year ended on 31 March 2021

No. Name of related party FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 2021 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 

2020 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

8 KPIT Technologies Pte. Ltd.

Sales  13,265  NIL  1,241  97 

9 KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited (Sweden branch)

Sales  14,612  14,112  194  NIL 

Software service charges  2,071  NIL  NIL  NIL 

10 KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited (Italy branch)

Sales  77  NIL  310  NIL 

11 MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH 

Sales  3,461  (949)  4,954  4,548 

Software service charges  314,125  (8,763)  1,768,627  (970,950)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021

No. Name of related party FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 2021 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Amount of 
transactions 
during the 

period 
(USD)

Balance as on  
31 March 

2020 
Debit/(Credit) 

(USD)

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

1 Mr. Sachin Tikekar 

Employee benefits (other than share 
compensation expense)

 4,800  NIL  4,800  NIL 

2 Mr. Rajeeb Nath

Employee benefits (other than share 
compensation expense)

 503,572  NIL  548,172  NIL 

Reimbursement of expenses (net)  10,517  NIL  NIL  NIL 

Share based compensation  22,064  NIL  32,698  NIL 

3 Mr. Rajeev Kulkarni

Employee benefits (other than share 
compensation expense)

 279,590  NIL  339,250  NIL 

Share based compensation  9,251  NIL  4,008  NIL 

i. All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis.

ii.  For the entities jointly controlled by a Group, since the joint control  has concluded effective 1 February 
2020, the balances outstanding as at 31 March 2020 are not reflected under related party disclosures.

22 Lease transactions

 Company as a lessee

 The Company’s lease asset classes mainly include rental office premises.

 The Company had adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019 and applied the 
standard to its leases, using the modified retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of initially applying 
the Standard, recognised in the opening equity as of 1 April 2019. This had resulted in recognising a right-of-use 
asset of  USD 1,422,185 and a corresponding lease liability of USD 1,536,789 by adjusting retained earnings net of 
taxes of USD 86,106 as at 1 April 2019. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 6.71% was applied to 
lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application.

 i. Refer note 2(B) for changes in the carrying amount of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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for the year ended on 31 March 2021
 ii. Break up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-current lease liabilities  1,275,598  1,419,784 

Current lease liabilities  144,186  128,004 

Total  1,419,784  1,547,788 

 iii. Movement in lease liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,547,788  1,536,789 
Additions during the year  -    117,152 
Finance cost accrued on lease liabilities  97,253  102,795 
Payment of lease liabilities  (225,257)  (208,948)
Balance at the end of the year  1,419,784  1,547,788 

 iv. Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted cash flows basis

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Not later than one year  232,966  225,257 
Later than one year and not later than five years  974,276  970,759 
Later than five years  596,779  833,261 
Total undiscounted lease liabilities  1,804,021  2,029,277 

 Rent expenses recorded for short term and low value leases for the year ended 31 March 2020 is USD 131,055 
(Previous year USD 147,262).

 The Company does not face significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

 Refer note 24 (2) for the impact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic).

23 Birlasoft Limited (erstwhile KPIT Technologies Limited) had made a disclosure on 14 September 2018, towards an 
update on lawsuit filed by Copart Inc. (“Copart”) against Sparta Consulting, Inc. (“Sparta”), Birlasoft Solutions Inc. 
(erstwhile KPIT Infosystems, Inc.) and Birlasoft Limited (erstwhile KPIT Technologies Limited).

 During the year ended 31 March 2019, Sparta, inter alia, entered into a settlement agreement with Copart. The 
parties reached an amicable settlement, and entered into a settlement agreement for USD 2,800,000 payable by 
Sparta to Copart with no party admitting any liability or wrong doing, resulting in the Court dismissing the case. 
The Company has paid Sparta the full amount and the same has been accounted for during the previous year for 
USD 2,800,000.

 As a part of merger and demerger scheme, where engineering business of Birlasoft Limited (erstwhile KPIT 
Technologies Limited) had demerged into KPIT Engineering Limited (now KPIT Technologies Limited) as a resulting 
entity, entire legal liability / recourse / proceedings, costs and expenses related to the legal proceedings and 
monetary benefits and reliefs, if any, relating to Copart matter was with KPIT Technologies Limited (erstwhile 
KPIT Engineering Limited) and/or its subsidiary KPIT Technologies Inc., USA.  Sparta / Birlasoft Limited was fully 
indemnified via contractual agreement by KPIT Engineering Limited (now KPIT Technologies Limited).
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  
for the year ended on 31 March 2021
 Consequently, the Company paid the settlement amount to Sparta, which was further paid by Sparta to Copart. 

With the above outcome, the matter related to Copart is closed and there is no further exposure.

24 Impact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic)

 1. Revenue from operations

  The Company has evaluated the impact of COVID-19 resulting from (i) the probable constraints to render 
services which may require revision of estimation of costs to complete the contract; (ii) onerous obligations; 
(iii) penalties relating to breaches of service level agreements and (iv) termination or deferment of contracts 
by customers. The Company has concluded that the impact of COVID-19 is not material based on these 
estimates. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to 
identify significant uncertainties relating to revenue in future periods.

 2. Right-of-use assets (Lease arrangements)

  The Company does not foresee any large-scale contraction in demand which could result in significant 
down-sizing of its employee base rendering the physical infrastructure redundant. The leases that the 
Company has entered with lessors towards properties used as delivery centers / sales offices are long 
term in nature and the Company does not expect any change due to global pandemic in the terms of lease 
arrangements including renewal options assessed in this regard while assessing the right-of-use assets.

 3. Financial Instruments

  Trade receivables and contract assets including unbilled revenue

  Trade receivables and contract assets including unbilled revenue, have been valued after making allowance 
for expected credit losses based on factors like ageing, likelihood of increased credit risk and expected 
realizability, nature of customer, geographies, considering impact of COVID – 19 on customers and related 
customer verticals and geographies. In addition the Company has also considered credit reports and other 
credit information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in future and has taken into 
account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic. The Company believes that the carrying amount 
of allowance for expected credit loss with respect to trade receivables, unbilled revenue and other financial 
assets is adequate.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KPIT Technologies Inc.

Rajeeb Nath      Sachin Tikekar
Director       Director 

Place: Pune      
Date: 23 April 2021
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Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results 

Particulars 2020-21
R$

2019-20
R$

Total Income 5,905,091 2,047,035 

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 486,903 (91,048)

In spite of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, there was increase in the total income of the Company and the 
Company has earned profits. 

Change in name

During the year under review, name of the Company was changed from MicroFuzzy KPIT Tecnologia Ltda to KPIT 
Technologias Ltda.

Audit

The Company appointed Actual Contabilidade S. S. as auditors to conduct the audit and the audit report issued by 
the auditors is attached with the accounts of the Company.  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KPIT Technologias Ltda.

Pune Kishor Patil 
April 19, 2021 Chairman 

Board’s Report

KPIT Technologias Ltda. 
Registered Office: Rua James Watt, 84 – 8º andar – Jardim Edith  CEP 04576-050 – São Paulo / SP – Brasil
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Review Report of Financial Statements
To
The Management of
KPIT Technologias Ltda. (ex-Microfuzzy KPIT Tecnologia 
Ltda.)
São Paulo - SP

Opinion

We reviewed the financial statements of KPIT 
Technologias Ltda. (ex-Microfuzzy KPIT Tecnologia Ltda.) 
(“Company”) comprising the balance sheet on March 
31st, 2021 and respective income statements, changes in 
shareholders’ equity, and cash flow for the year ended 
on such date, as well as the summary of the main 
accounting policies and explanatory notes, comprising 
the significant accounting practices and other clarifying 
information.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any fact 
that let us to believe that the financial statements do 
not present accordingly, in all material matters, the 
financial position of KPIT Technologias Ltda., on March 
31, 2021, the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the year ended in such date in accordance with 
accounting practices adopted in Brazil and international 
financial report standards (IFRS) issued by International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for conclusion of opinion

Our review was carried out according to Brazilian and 
International audit standards. Our responsibilities, in 
accordance with such standards, are described in the 
following section titled “Auditor’s responsibility for the 
audit of the financial statements”. We are independent 
in relation to the Company in accordance with the 
relevant ethical principles set out in the Code of Ethics 
of Professional Accountants and professional standards 
issued by the Federal Accounting Council and have 
complied with other ethical responsibilities according to 
these standards.

We believe the evidence obtained by audit is enough and 
proper to establish the grounds for our opinion.

Emphasis: Economic dependence due to business 
concentration

The financial statements referred to in the first 
paragraph were prepared in accordance with the 
accounting principles and practices adopted in Brazil and 
with the international financial reporting standards (IFRS) 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB), which presuppose the continuity of business 
activities by indefinite period, through realization of 
assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course 
of business. The revenue from services rendered by 
the Company derives from only a single customer, a 
circumstance that exposes and links its operational 
continuity to the permanent success in maintaining the 
provision of services with the FCA Group (Fiat Chrysler 
Automóveis). These same financial statements do not 
reflect any necessary adjustments and reclassifications 
in the event of an eventual discontinuation of operations 
due to the subject mentioned above. Our opinion is not 
qualified in relation to this matter.

Management’s liability on the financial statements

Company’s management is liable for preparing and 
submitting the financial statements  according to the 
accounting practices adopted in Brazil according to 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
issued by International Accounting Standards Board – 
(IASB) and the internal control determined as necessary 
to allow preparing such financial statements free 
from relevant misstatement irrespective if caused by 
fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue operational, disclosing, as applicable, 
issues related to its operational continuity and using 
this accounting basis in the preparation of the financial 
statements unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative to avoid closing the operations. 

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial 
statements

Our goals are to obtain reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements, as a whole, are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
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issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit carried out in accordance 
with Brazilian and international standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements should arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.  As part of an audit carried out 
in accordance with Brazilian and International Auditing 
Standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

• Identify and assess the relevant risks of material 
misstatement in the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Understand internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by Management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going operational accounting basis and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability for operational continuity of 
Company. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors’ report, however, adverse 
events or future conditions may eventually cause 
the Company to no longer remain in operational 
continuity.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the correspondent transactions and events 
in a manner compatible with proper presentation.

• Audit evidence was obtained, suitable and sufficient, 
regarding financial information to express an opinion 
on the financial statements. We are responsible for 
the guidance, supervision and performance of the 
audit and, consequently, for the audit opinion.

We communicate with the responsible for governance 
regarding, among other issues, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identified during our audit.

São Paulo, April 19, 2021

Actual Contabilidade S.S.
CRC-SP – 2SP024780/O-6

Rodrigo Aparecido Leme de Oliveira
Accountant CRC – 1SP309141/O-1
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Assets 2021 2020  Liabilities 2021 2020

Current assets: Current liabilities:

Cash and cash equivalents 348,477 435,652 Suppliers 22,805 34,613

Accounts receivable 852,485 211,284 Supplier Intercompany 270 -

Recoverable taxes 191,121 85,162 Provision for employee benefits 292,849 122,185

Other accounts receivable 295,314 88,570 Taxes and contributions payable 211,599 56,791

1,687,397 820,668 527,523 213,589

Non-Current liabilities:

Non-Current assets: Supplier Intercompany 263,367 -

Long Term Debt:

 Judicial Deposits 11,127 11,127

Property, plant and equipment 301,320 104,115 Shareholders’ equity:

Capital stock 1,000 1,000

312,447 115,242 Accumulated profits 1,207,954 721,321

1,208,954 722,321

1,999,844 935,910 1,999,844 935,910

Balanços Patrimoniais 
As of March 31, 2021 and 2020
(In Brazilian reais without cents)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Income Statements 
For the Years Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
(In Brazilian reais without cents, except profit (loss) per sharequota)

2021 2020

Gross revenue:

 Services revenue - domestic market  6,318,983  2,190,513 

Deductions:

 Sales Taxes  (413,892)  (143,478)

Operational net revenue  5,905,091  2,047,035 

Cost of services rendered  (4,670,780)  (1,726,384)

Gross profit  1,234,311  320,651 

Operational expenses

 Administrative and general expenses  (560,017)  (408,962)

 Tax expenses  (82,570)  (1,125)

 Finance (expenses) revenues, net  (8,102)  (1,612)

 (650,689)  (411,699)

Profit (loss) before financial result  583,622  (91,048)

Income and Social contributions tax  (96,989)  - 

Profit (loss) for the year  486,633  (91,048)

Profit (loss) per sharequota  486.63  (91.05)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 
For the Years Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
(In Brazilian reais without cents)

 Accumulated 

 Capital Stock  profits  Total 

Balances at April 1st, 2019  1,000  812,369  813,369 

Loss for the year  -  (91,048)  (91,048)

Balances at March 31, 2020  1,000  721,321  722,321 

Profit for the year  -  486,633  486,633 

Balances at March 31, 2021  1,000  1,207,954  1,208,954 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES

Profit (loss) for the year  486,633  (91,048)

Adjustments to reconcile the fiscal year net profit with Cash generated by 
operational activities:

Depreciation  60,513  15,105 

Decrease (Increase) in the operational assets:

 Accounts receivable from clients  (641,201)  (211,284)

 Recoverable taxes  (105,959)  (49,556)

 Others accounts receivable  (206,744)  (88,020)

 Judicial deposits  - 

 Intercompany loan agreement  - 

Increase (decrease) in the operational liabilities:

 Suppliers  (11,808)  20,396 

 Supplier Intercompany  263,637  - 

 Provision for employee benefits  170,664  122,185 

 Taxes and contributions payable  154,808  55,700 

 Accounts payable  -  (41,972)

Cash generated by (invested in) operational activities  170,543  (268,494)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

  Acquisition of fixed assets  (257,718)  (112,986)

DECREASE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS BALANCE  (87,175)  (381,480)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Opening Balance  435,652  817,132 

Ending Balance  348,477  435,652 

DECREASE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS BALANCE  (87,175)  (381,480)

Cash Flow Statements 
For the Years Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
(In Brazilian reais without cents)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
Years Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
(In Brazilian reais without cents)

1 - Operational context

 The Company's activities include basically: (i) the 
computer customized programs  development, 
including the systems development to attend the 
customers’ needs and the programming using tools, 
languages and technical documentation of computer 
programs, developed  upon customization; (ii) the 
consulting services in the information technology 
area; (iii) the development and license of customized 
and non-customized computer programs; (iv) 
participation in other companies.

 In accordance with the 9th Amendment to the 
Articles of Association, the Company changed its 
name from Microfuzzy KPIT Tecnologia Ltda. to KPIT 
Technologias Ltda. as of January 21, 2021.

2- Presentation of the Financial Statements

 a.  Statement of compliance with IFRS and BRGAAP 
standards

  Financial Statements have been prepared 
according to the accounting practices adopted 
in Brazil which encompasses the Business 
Corporations Laws, and Pronouncing, Guidance 
And Interpretation issued by Accounting 
Pronouncing Committee - CPC.

   On April 19th, 2021, The Administration of 
Company authorized the conclusion of such 
financial statements.

 b. Measurement base

  The financial statements have been prepared 
based on the historic cost except the following 
material items recognized in the balance sheet:

  Non-derivative financial Instruments designated 
at fair value by means of the results are 
measured at fair value.

   The financial assets available for sale are 
measured by the fair value.

 c. Functional Currency and presentation currency

  The items included in the financial statements 
have been measured by adopting the currency 
of the economic environment in which the 

Company operates (functional currency). The 
financial statements are showed in Brazilian 
Reais, which is the Company’s functional 
currency.

 d. Estimates use and judgment

  The preparation of the financial statements 
according to the accounting practices 
adopted in Brazil requires the use of the  
judgments, estimates, and suppositions by 
The Administration of Company affecting the 
accounting policies use and reported values of 
the assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses. The 
actual results might differ from the estimates.

  The estimates and assumptions are reviewed 
annually by The Administration of Company. The 
changes are recognized in the financial year in 
which such estimates are reviewed and in future 
years affected.

3 - Main Accounting Practices

 a. Financial instruments

   The Company’s non-derivative financial assets 
and liability are classified under the following 
categories:

	 	 i.	 Non-Derivative	financial	assets

   Company recognizes the loans and 
receivables and deposits firstly on the 
origin date.  All other financial assets 
(including assets designated by fair value 
through the results) are recognized firstly 
on the negotiation date when the Company 
becomes a party in the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

   The Company classifies the non-derivative 
financial assets in the following categories: 
financial assets measured at fair value 
through the income and receivables.

	 	 ii.	 Receivables

   Receivables are financial assets with fixed 
or determined payments, which are not 
offered in the active market. Such assets 
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are recognized firstly at the fair value added 
from any attributed cost of the transactions. 
After the initial recognition, the loans and 
receivables are measured by the amortized 
cost using the actual interest method, 
reduced from the loss due to the reduction 
on the recoverable amount.

   Receivables encompass the cash and cash 
equivalent, accounts receivables from 
customers and other receivables.

	 	 iii.	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents

   Include cash, bank sight deposits and 
temporary short term investments up to 90 
days from the date of investment or deemed 
of immediate liquidity or convertible into 
known amount of cash, which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value 
and are recorded by the cost values added 
by the income earned up to the balance 
sheet date and do not exceed its market or 
performance value.  

	 	 iv.	 Non-derivative	financial	liabilities

   Firstly, Company recognizes the debt 
instruments issued on the date they are 
originated. All other financial liabilities are 
recognized firstly on the negotiation date 
when Company becomes a party in the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Company writes off the financial liability 
when the contractual obligations are 
withdrew, canceled or overdue.

   Such financial liabilities are recognized 
first by fair value deducted by any cost of 
the related transactions. After the initial 
recognition, such financial liabilities are 
measured by the amortized cost using the 
actual interest method, as applicable, in 
order to reflect the costs incurred up to the 
balance sheet date.

   The Non-derivative financial liabilities of 
the Company refer  basically  to imports 
payable to holding  added by exchange 
rate variation incurred up to the balance 

sheet date, suppliers and other accounts 
payable showed  by known values or to 
be determined, updated by monetary 
adjustment index and interest, as applicable, 
to reflect the costs incurred up to the 
balance sheet date.

 b. Fixed Assets

	 	 Acknowledgement	and	measurement: Fixed 
assets are measured by acquisition historic 
cost, deducting the accrued depreciation and 
losses from the reduction to recoverable amount 
(impairment) as required. The fixed assets 
costs include the expenses directly attributable 
to the assets acquisition. Other expenses are 
capitalized only when there is an increase in 
the economic benefits of the fixed assets item.  
Any other expense, when incurred, is recognized 
in results as expense. Gains and losses in the 
fixed assets disposal determined by comparing 
the resources from disposal and fixed assets 
accounting value are recognized as net in other 
incomes in the results.

  Depreciation: The depreciation is computed 
by the straight-line method, at rates deemed 
compatible with the useful life.

 c. Reduction on the assets recoverable amount 

	 	 	Non-derivative	Financial	Assets	(including	
receivables)

  The financial assets are evaluated at each 
submission date if it is not measured by fair 
value in order to determine any objective 
evidence of loss in the recoverable value.  The 
assets has the loss in recoverable value if there 
is objective evidence of loss resulting from one 
or more events taking place after the assets 
initial recognition, and such loss event had a 
negative effect on the future cash flows forecast 
which should be estimated reliably.

  The objective evidence of the financial assets  
lost value should include the debtor default 
or delay in payment, the renegotiation of 
the amount payable to the Company under 
conditions that The Company  should not accept 
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on other transactions, indications the debtor or 
issuer should be bankrupted or the end of the 
active market for the securities.

 d. Provisions

  A provision is recognized in respect to the past 
event, if the Company’s legal or constructive 
obligation could be estimated reliably and is 
likely to be an economic resource required 
to settle the obligation. The provisions are 
determined by means of deduction to cash flow 
expected at a rate before taxes reflecting the 
evaluations by current market regarding the 
value of money in time and the specific risks to 
the liability.

  Company supported by legal opinion by its legal 
advisors and Management represents to have 
no knowledge of tax, civil and labor proceedings 
affecting materially its business, in addition 
to those already reflected in the financial 
statements on March 31st, 2021.

 e. Financial income and financial expenses

  The financial income comprises interest income 
on investments, discounts obtained and yields 
from instruments classified as cash equivalents. 
The interest income is recognized in the results, 
by means of the effective interest method.

  The financial expenses comprise interest 
expense on contractual expenses, bank charges, 
losses in fair value of financial assets measured 
at fair value by means of results and contingent 
consideration, etc.

4 - Capital Stock

 The capital, totally paid up, is of R$ 1,000, divided 
in 1,000 quotas at the nominal amount of R$ 1.00 
each, distributed to quota holders in the following 
proportion:

 Shareholder Number of  
 Sharequotas
 KPIT Technologies Limited 999
 KPIT Technologies Holding, Inc 1
 1,000
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Board’s Report
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report on the operations of the Company together with 
the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

RMB RMB

Total Income 38,525,073 47,489,768 

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 2,803,285 3,391,984

Due to impact of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, the total income of the Company has decreased by 
18.88% as compared to previous year, however, the Company has earned profits.

Directors

During the year under review, Mr. Rajesh Janwadkar was appointed as a Director of the Company with effect from 
August 4, 2020.

Audit

The Company is required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to audit the books of accounts of the 
Company and to issue a report to the shareholders. Therefore, the Company appointed ShineWing CPAs as auditors 
to conduct the audit and the audit report issued by them is attached with the accounts of the Company.   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co., Ltd. 

Pune Kishor Patil
April 20, 2021 Chairman

KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co., Ltd.
Registered Office: 1603-1604, Tower B, Central Towers, 567 Langao Road, Shanghai 200333, PRC.
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Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of KPIT (Shanghai) Software 
Technology Co., Ltd.:

1. Opinion 

 We have audited the financial statements of KPIT 
(Shanghai) Software Technology Co., Ltd. (the 
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 
31 March 2021, the income statement, the cash flow 
statement and the statement of changes in owners’ 
equity for the year then ended March 31st, 2021, and 
the related notes to the financial statements.

 In our opinion, the accompanying financial 
statements of KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology 
Co., Ltd. present fairly, in all material respects, the 
Company’s financial position as at 31 March 2021, the 
Company’s results of operations and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Accounting 
Standards for Business Enterprises.

2. Basis for Opinion

 We conducted our audit in accordance with 
China Standards on Auditing for Chinese Certified 
Public Accountants. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the 
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements” section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public 
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities of the code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit. 

3. Responsibilities of the Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

 The Management is responsible for the preparation 
of the financial statements in accordance with 
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises 
to achieve fair presentation; and designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal control which 
is necessary to enable that the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

 In preparing the financial statements, the 
Management is responsible for assessing the 

company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Management either intends 
to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

 Those charged with governance are responsible to 
overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

4. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with 
auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are generally 
considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

 During the course of audit in accordance with 
auditing standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism. We 
also carry out the following works:

 (1) Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

 (2) Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
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expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its 
internal control.

 (3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Management.

 (4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the 
Management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements 
in accordance with the auditing standards or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, we shall 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 

our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

 (5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and also whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings etc., 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

ShineWing CPAs 
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China 

April 20, 2021 
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2021
Prepared by KPIT (SHANGHAI) SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Currency:RMB
Item Line 

No.
March 31st, 

2021
March 31st, 

2020
Item Line 

No.
March 31st, 

2021
March 31st, 

2020
Current Assets: 1 — — Current Liabilities: 65 — —
Cash and bank balance 2 13,961,472.04 5,772,522.31 Short-term loans 66
Deposit Reservation for Balance 3 Borrowing from the central bank 67
Lendings to Banks and Other Financial 
Institutions

4 Absorb deposit and storage 68

Financial Asssets at fair value through profit 
or loss

5 Borrowings from Banks and Other Financial 
Institutions

69

Note receivable 6 Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss

70

Accounts receivable 7 6,117,304.45 18,988,079.13 Notes payable 71
Prepayments 8  133,870.12  227,329.86 Accounts payable 72 5,206,392.78 12,612,816.58 
Premiums receivable 9 Advance from customers 73  76,031.07 
Reinsurance receivable 10 Financial assets sold under repurchase 74
Reserve receivable of reinsurance contracts 11 Fee and commission payable 75
Interest receivable 12 Accrued payroll and welfare 76  1,198,945.04  1,853,237.49 
Dividends receivable 13 Including: Accrued payroll 77  1,198,945.04  1,853,237.49 
Other receivable 14  4,668,343.77  5,528,420.86        Accrued welfare 78
Financial assets purchased under resale 15 Including: employee award and welfare fund 79
Inventory 16 Tax payable 80 0.00 0.00 
Including: Raw material 17 Including: Tax payable 81 0.00 0.00 
       Finished goods 18 Interest payable 82
Assets held for sale 19 Dividends payable 83
Non-current assets maturing within 1 year 20 Other payable 84 4,177,928.10 4,718,903.28 
Other current assets 21 387,445.30  398,708.18 Reinsurance payable 85
Total Current Assets 22 25,268,435.68 30,915,060.34 Reserve of insurance contract 86
Non-current Assets: 23  — — Agents sale of security 87
Loans and advances 24 Liabilities held for sale 88
Available-for-sale financail assets 25 Non-current liabilities maturing within 1 year 89
Held-to-maturity investment 26 Other current liabilities 90
Long-term receivable 27 Total Current Liabilities 91 10,659,296.99 19,184,957.35 
Long-term equity investment 28 Non-current Liabilities 92 — —
Investment real estate 29 Long-term loans 93  -  - 
Fixed assets - cost 30  618,499.56  618,499.56 Bonds payable 94  -  - 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 31 613,462.07  552,053.78 Long-term payable 95  -  - 
Fixed assets - net value 32  5,037.49  66,445.78 Grants(special) payable 96  -  - 
Less: Provision for impairment of fixed assets 33  -  - Estimated liabilities 97  -  - 
Fixed assets - net book value 34  5,037.49 66,445.78 Deferred tax liability 98  -  - 
Constrction in process 35 Other non-current liabilities 99  -  - 
Right-of-use asset 36  2,482,798.83  - Lease liability 100  2,497,141.12  - 
Liquidation(Disposal) of fixed assets 37 Total Non-current Liabilities 101  2,497,141.12  - 
Productive biological assets 38 Total Liabilities 102 13,156,438.11 19,184,957.35 
Oil gas assets 39 Owners’ Equity(or shareholders’ equity): 103 — —
Intangible assets 40  -  - Paid-in capital (or share) 104 14,074,702.40 14,074,702.40 
Research and development cost 41 State capital 105  -  - 
Goodwill 42 Including: state-owned legal person’s capital 106  -  - 
Long-term prepaid expense 43  -  - Collective capital 107  -  - 
Deferred tax assets 44 Private capital 108  -  - 
Other non-current assets 45 Including: Personal capital 109  -  - 
Including: Specially approved reserving 
materials

46 Foreign businessmen’s capital 110  14,074,702.40  14,074,702.40 

Total Non - current Assets 47 2,487,836.32 66,445.78 Less: treasury share 111  -  - 
48 Net paid-in capital (or share) 112 14,074,702.40  14,074,702.40 
49 Capital surplus 113  21,916.98  21,916.98 
50 Less: reasury share 114  -  - 
51 Other comprehensive income 115  -  - 
52 Special reserve 116  -  - 
53 Surplus reserve 117
54 including: Statutory reserve 118  -  - 
55   Voluntary reserve 119
56   Reserve fund 120
57   Development fund 121
58   Profit for returing investment 122  -  - 
59 General risk reserve 123  -  - 
60 Undistributed profits 124  503,214.51  -2,300,070.61 
61 Total Equity attributable to the Parent 

Company
125  14,599,833.89  11,796,548.77 

62 Minority shareholders` equity 126  -  - 
63 Total Owner’s Equity 127  14,599,833.89  11,796,548.77 

Total Assets 64  27,756,272.00 30,981,506.12 Total Liabilities & Owners’ Equity 128 27,756,272.00 30,981,506.12 
Note:The accompanying notes to accounting statement as an integral part of financial statements
Legal representative: Kishor Patil Person in charge of accouting function Sanjay Bapat Person in charge of accounting department: Merry Li
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Income Statement
for the Year Ended March 31st, 2021
Prepared by KPIT (SHANGHAI) SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Currency:RMB

Items Line 
No.

Year ended 
March 31st, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31st, 

2020

Items Line 
No.

Year ended 
March 31st, 
2021

Year ended 
March 31st, 
2020

1. Gross Operating Income 1 38,525,073.35 47,489,767.87 Others 29  -  - 

 Operating income 2 38,525,073.35 47,489,767.87 Add : gain on the changes in fair value (“-” 
means “Loss”)

30  -  - 

 Including : main operations 3 38,525,073.35 47,451,742.56 Investment income (“-” means “Loss”) 31  -  - 

  other operations 4 0.00 38,025.31 Including : Income from investments in 
associated enterprises and joint ventures 

32  -  - 

 Interest income 5  -  - Gain from disposal of assets(“-” means “Loss”) 33  -  - 

 Earned premiums 6  -  - Including : gain or loss from diposal of non-
current assets in debt restructuring 

34  -  - 

 Fees and commision income 7  -  - gain or loss from the exchange of non-
monetary assets 

35  -  - 

2. Gross Operating cost 8 36,608,155.87 44,300,282.27 Other income 36  971,162.06  159,594.71 

 Operating cost 9 22,325,256.42 18,564,871.99 Including : Government grants 37  971,162.06  159,594.71 

 Including : main operations 10 22,325,256.42 18,564,871.99 3. Operating profit (“-” means “Loss”) 38 2,888,079.54 3,349,080.31 

  other operations 11  Add : Non-operating income 39  37,582.65  42,903.47 

 Interest expense 12  -  -  Including : Government grants 40  -  - 

 Fees and commision expense 13  -  -  Profits from debt restructuring 41  -  - 

 Surrender payment 14  -  -  Less : Non-operating expenses 42  -  - 

 Net compensate 15  -  -   Including: Loss from damaged or scarrped 
non-current assets 

43  -  - 

  Net extraction of the insurance contract 
reserve

16  -  -  Losses from debt restructuring 44

 Policy dividend payment 17  -  - 4. Total profit (“-” means “Loss”) 45  2,925,662.19  3,391,983.78 

 Reinsurance costs 18  -  -  Less : income tax 46  122,377.07  - 

 Business tax and surcharge 19  63,344.94  220,214.66 5. Net Profit (“-” means “Loss”) 47  2,803,285.12  3,391,983.78 

 Selling and distribution expenses 20   Net profit from going concern (“-” means 
“Loss”)

48 2,803,285.12 3,391,983.78 

 General and administrative expenses 21 14,089,600.98 25,472,683.51   Net profit from discontinued operation (“-” 
means “Loss”)

49 0.00 0.00 

 Including : Entertainment expenses 22 50,310.50 61,494.75 6. Other comprehensive income 50 0.00 0.00 

   Research and development 
expense

23 7. Total comprehensive income 51 2,803,285.12 3,391,983.78 

 Finance expenses 24 129,953.53 42,512.11 Total comprehensive income attributable to 
the Parent Company

52  2,803,285.12  3,391,983.78 

 Including : Interest expenses  25 30,979.96 Total comprehensive income attributable to 
the minority shareholder

53  -  - 

  Interest income 26  31,706.80  35,714.09 8. Earnings per share: 54  -  - 

   Net foreign exchange loss(“-” 
means “gain”) 

27 119,932.51 66,446.50  Basic earnings per share 55  -  - 

 Assets impairment losses  28  -  -  Diluted earnings per share 56  -  - 

Note:The accompanying notes to accounting statement as an integral part of financial statements
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Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended March 31st, 2021
Prepared by KPIT (SHANGHAI) SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Currency:RMB

Items Line 
No.

Year ended 
March 31st, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31st, 

2020

Items Line 
No.

Year ended 
March 31st, 

2021

Year ended 
March 31st, 

2020

1. Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 1 — —   Net cash received from disposal of fixed 
assets, intangible assets and other long-
term assets 

30  -  - 

  Cash received from sales of goods or 
rendering of services 

2 53,614,533.88 50,741,982.06   Net Cash received from disposal of 
subsidiary or other operating business 
units 

31  -  - 

  Net increase of customer deposits and 
storage

3  -  -   Cash received relating to other investing 
activities  

32  -  - 

  Net increase of borrowing from central 
bank

4  -  -  Sub-total of cash inflows 33  -  - 

  Net increase of borrowing from other 
financial institutions

5  -  -   Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, 
intangible assets and other long-term 
assets 

34  -  - 

  Cash received from original insurance 
contract premiums

6  -  -  Cash paid to acquire investments 35

 Net cash received from reinsurance 7  -  -  Net increase of mortgage Loan 36  -  - 

  Net increase of insurance deposit and 
investment

8  -  -   Net cash received from subsidiary and 
other operating business units 

37  -  - 

  Net increase of disposal trading financial 
assets

9  -  -   Cash paid relating to other investing 
activities 

38  -  - 

  Cash received from interest expense, 
fees and commission

10  -  -   Sub-total of cash outflows 39  -  - 

  Net increase in borrowings from banks 
and other financial institutions

11  -  -  Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 40  -  - 

 Net cash received from repurchase 12  -  -  3. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 41 — —

 Refunds of taxes and levies 13  Cash received from capital contributions 42  -  - 

  Cash received relating to other operating 
activities 

14 1,040,451.51 276,237.58   Including: subsidiary received cash from 
minority interest’s investments  

43  -  - 

 Sub-total of cash inflows 15 54,654,985.39 51,018,219.64  Cash received from borrowings 44  -  - 

 Cash paid for goods and services 16 31,437,633.73 27,919,564.36  Cash received from bonds issued 45  -  - 

  Net increase of loans and advance to 
customers

17   Cash received relating to other financing 
activities 

46  -  - 

  Net increase in due from central bank 
and other financial institutions

18  Sub-total of cash inflows 47  -  - 

  Cash payment for original insurance 
contract

19  cash repayments of amounts borrowed 48  -  - 

  Cash payment for interest expense, fees 
and commission

20   cash payments for interest expenses and 
distribution of dividends or profits 

49

 Cash payment for policy dividend 21   Including:subsidiary paid dividends and 
profit to minority interests 

50  -  - 

 Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 22 12,192,273.16 21,312,655.69   Cash payments relating to other financing 
activities 

51  -  - 

 Payments of taxes and levies 23 522,510.55 2,217,223.66   Sub-total of cash outflows 52  -  - 

  Cash paid relating to other operating 
activities 

24 2,193,685.71 5,765,709.72   Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 53  -  - 

 Sub-total of cash outflows 25 46,346,103.15 57,215,153.43  4.  Effect of Foreign exchange rate changes 
on cash and cash equivalents 

54  -119,932.51  8,482.93 

 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 26 8,308,882.24 -6,196,933.79 5.  Net Increase in Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 

55 8,188,949.73 -6,188,450.86 

2. Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 27 — —   Add: opening balance of cash and cash 
equivalents  

56 5,772,522.31 11,960,973.17 

  Cash received from disposal of 
investments 

28  -  - 6.  Ending balance of cash and cash 
equivalents 

57 13,961,472.04 5,772,522.31 

  Cash received from returns on 
investments  

29

Note:The accompanying notes to accounting statement as an integral part of financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2021
Prepared by KPIT (SHANGHAI) SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Currency:RMB

Item Line 
No.

As at March 31st, 2021

Owner’s Equity Attributable to the Parent Company Minority 
share-

holders` 
equity

Total 
Owner’s 

EquityPaid-in 
Capital (or 

Stock)

Capital 
Surplus

Less:    
Treasury 

Share

Special 
reserve 

Surplus 
reserve 

General 
risk 

reserve

Undistributed 
profits

Other Subtotal

Column No. 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

1. Ending balance of last year 1  14,074,702.40  21,916.98  -  -  -  -  -2,300,070.61 11,796,548.77 11,796,548.77 

  Add: Changes in Accounting 
Policies

2  -  -  -  - 

  Correction of error from previous 
period

3  -  -  -  - 

2. Opening balance of this year 4  14,074,702.40  21,916.98  -  -  -  -  -2,300,070.61 11,796,548.77 11,796,548.77 

3.  Increase or decrease of Current 
Period( for decrease filled in “-”)

5  -  -  -  -  -  -  2,803,285.12  2,803,285.12  2,803,285.12 

(1)  Subtotal of comprehensive 
income

6  -  -  -  2,803,285.12  2,803,285.12  2,803,285.12 

(2)  Capital invested or reduced by 
the owners 

7  -  -  -  - 

1. Capital invested by the owner 8  -  -  -  - 

2.  Payment for shares attributed 
into owner’s equity

9  -  -  -  - 

3. Others 10  -  -  -  - 

(3)  Extraction and use of special 
reserves

11  -  -  -  - 

1. Extraction of special reserves 12  -  -  -  - 

2. Use of special reserves 13  -  -  -  - 

(4) Profit Distribution 14  -  -  -  -  -  - 

1. Withdrawal surplus reserve 15  -  -  -  - 

Including : Statutory fund 16  -  -  -  - 

  Voluntary reserve 17  -  -  -  - 

  Reserve fund 18  -  -  -  - 

  Development fund 19  -  -  -  - 

   Profit for returing 
investment

20  -  -  -  - 

2. Extraction of general risk reserve 21  -  -  -  - 

3.  Profits distributed to owners (or 
shareholders)

22  -  -  -  -  -  - 

4. Others 23  -  -  -  - 

(5)  Internal transfer of owner’s 
equity

24  -  -  -  - 

1.  Capital surplus transfer to share 
capital

25  -  -  -  - 

2.  Surplus reserves transfer to 
share capital

26  -  -  -  - 

3. Surplus reserves covering losses 27  -  -  -  - 

4. Others 28  -  -  -  - 

4. Closing balance of this year 29  14,074,702.40  21,916.98  -  503,214.51 14,599,833.89 14,599,833.89 

Note:The accompanying notes to accounting statement as an integral part of financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2021
Prepared by KPIT (SHANGHAI) SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Currency:RMB

Item Line 
No.

As at March 31st, 2021

Owner’s Equity Attributable to the Parent Company Minority 
share-

holders` 
equity

Total Owner’s 
Equity

Paid-in Capital 
(or Stock)

Capital 
Surplus

Less:    
Treasury 

Share

Special 
reserve 

Surplus 
reserve 

General 
risk 

reserve

Undistributed 
profits

Other Subtotal

Column No. 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

1. Ending balance of last year 1 14,074,702.40 21,916.98 0 0  - 0 -5,692,054.39 8,404,564.99 8,404,564.99 

  Add: Changes in Accounting 
Policies

2  -  -  -  - 

  Correction of error from 
previous period

3  -  -  -  - 

2.  Opening balance of this year 4 14,074,702.40 21,916.98  -  -  -  - -5,692,054.39  - 8,404,564.99 8,404,564.99 

3.  Increase or decrease of 
Current Period( for decrease 
filled in “-”)

5  -  -  -  -  -  -  3,391,983.78  -  3,391,983.78  3,391,983.78 

(1)  Subtotal of comprehensive 
income

6  -  -  -  3,391,983.78  3,391,983.78  3,391,983.78 

(2)  Capital invested or reduced by 
the owners 

7  -  -  -  - 

1.  Capital invested by the owner 8  -  -  -  - 

2.  Payment for shares attributed 
into owner’s equity

9  -  -  -  - 

3. Others 10  -  -  -  - 

(3)  Extraction and use of special 
reserves

11  -  -  -  - 

1.  Extraction of special reserves 12  -  -  -  - 

2. Use of special reserves 13  -  -  -  - 

(4) Profit Distribution 14  -  -  -  -  - 

1. Withdrawal surplus reserve 15  -  -  -  - 

Including : Statutory fund 16  -  -  -  - 

  Voluntary reserve 17  -  -  -  - 

  Reserve fund 18  -  -  -  - 

  Development fund 19  -  -  -  - 

   Profit for returing 
investment

20  -  -  -  - 

2.  Extraction of general risk 
reserve

21  -  -  -  - 

3.  Profits distributed to owners 
(or shareholders)

22  -  -  -  -  - 

4. Others 23  -  -  -  - 

(5)  Internal transfer of owner’s 
equity

24  -  -  -  - 

1.   Capital surplus transfer to 
share capital

25  -  -  -  - 

2.  Surplus reserves transfer to 
share capital

26  -  -  -  - 

3.  Surplus reserves covering 
losses

27  -  -  -  - 

4. Others 28  -  -  -  - 

4. Closing balance of this year 29 14,074,702.40 21,916.98  -  -2,300,070.61  11,796,548.77  11,796,548.77 

Note:The accompanying notes to accounting statement as an integral part of financial statements
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended on 31 March 2021
1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

 KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated 
in Shanghai, People’s Republic of China (“PRC) on January 5th, 2011 by KPIT Cummins Infosystems Limited, which 
changed its name to KPIT Technologies Limited on January 15th, 2013. The Company has a certificate of approval 
for establishment of enterprises with foreign investment in the People’s Republic of China, approval number 
[2011]0035, issued by the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government and an updated business licence with the 
union social credit code of 91310000568001786C, approved by Shanghai Administration Bureau for Industry and 
Commerce on September 8th, 2016. The legal representative of the Company is Kishor Patil. The legal address of 
the Company is Room 2258, No. 3 of Xuanhua Road, Chang Ning District, Shanghai, PRC. The approved operating 
period is 30 years to 11th January, 2041. 

 On December 1st, 2012, the Company approved a resolution of the board of directors on increasing the registered 
capital from RMB 5,080,000.00 to RMB 9,480,000.00. As at January 29th, 2013, the Company has received a capital 
injection of RMB 3,142,487.15 from KPIT Cummins Infosystems Limited.

 On December 26th, 2013, the Company approved a resolution of the board of directors on increasing the 
registered capital from RMB 9,480,000.00 to RMB 21,786,400.00. On July 22nd, 2014 and November 19th, 2014, 
the Company has received capital injections of RMB 1,257,512.85 and RMB 1,534,863.60 respectively from the 
investor KPIT Technologies Limited. As at December 31st, 2014, the paid-in capital of the Company was RMB 
11,014,863.60. On May 27th, 2015, the Company has received capital injections of USD 499,990.00 (equivalent to 
RMB 3,059,838.80) from the investor KPIT Technologies Limited. As at December 31st, 2015, the paid-in capital of 
the Company was RMB 14,074,702.41.

 On June 19th, 2017, the Company approved a resolution of the board of directors on revise the business scope. 
The Company has a renewal business licence with the union social credit code of 91310000568001786C, approved 
by Shanghai Administration Bureau for Industry and Commerce on July 28th, 2017.

 The Company’s approved business scope includes: research & development and design of computer software, 
and transfer of research achievement; development of network technique and technical support; designing, 
testing, and maintaining of system integration; providing relevant technical consulting and service. Computer 
hardware and software (except for the electronic publications) wholesale, commission agency (excluding auction) 
and provide related services, self-owned equipment leasing (Do not involve the state-owned trading managed 
goods. For the quota and license managed goods, apply upon the relevant regulation of the state) .The Company’s 
operating period is 30 years.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. The actual transactions and events are 
recorded in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance 
of the PRC (“the MOF”) and relevant principles, and based on the accounting policies and estimates in notes 4 
“Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates”.

3. ANNOUNCEMENT

 The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for 
Business Enterprises and were presented truly and integrally, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company as at March 31st, 2021, and the results of operations and cash flows of the Company for the year ended 
March 31st, 2021.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

 1. Accounting period

  The Company adopts the period from 1 April to 31 March as its accounting year. 

 2. Recording currency 

  The recording currency of the Company is in Renminbi (RMB).

 3. Basis of accounting and measurement bases

  The Company applies the accrual basis of accounting, and uses the historical cost as the principle of 
measurement unless otherwise specified.

 4. Cash and cash equivalents

  For the purposes of preparing the cash flow statement, cash refers to all cash in hands and call deposits. 
Cash equivalents refer to short-term and highly-liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value.

5. Foreign Currency Transactions and Conversion Method

 The Company’s foreign currency transactions are recorded in RMB, based on the spot exchange rate of that day. 
All foreign currency monetary items shall be translated to RMB at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet 
date. Aside from the translation differences arising from specific foreign currency loans to meet the conditions of 
capitalization that are procurement-related or production-related, all translation differences shall be recorded in 
current profit and loss.

6. Financial assets

 Financial assets are classified into four categories according to the purposes of investments and their economic 
substance: “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “Held-to-maturity investments”, “Loan and 
receivables” and “Available-for-sale financial assets”.

 1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets that have been acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling in the short terms. They are presented in the balance sheets as 
“Financial assets held for trading”.

 2) Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed maturity and fixed or 
determinable payments that management has positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

 3) Loan and receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market.

 4) Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this 
category or not classified as financial assets of any other class at initial recognition.

 Financial assets are measured initially at fair value. For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, any 
related directly attributable transaction costs are charged to profit or loss; for other categories of financial 
assets, any related directly attributable transaction costs are included in their initial costs.

 A financial asset is derecognized when any one of the following conditions is satisfied: i) the rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset expire, ii) the financial asset has been transferred and the company transfers 
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the financial assets to the  transferee.
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 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently 

measured at fair value. Loan and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method.

 Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded as ‘Gain or loss from 
changes in fair value’. Interest or cash dividends received during the period in which such financial assets are 
held, are recognized as ‘Investment income’. On disposal, the difference between fair value of disposal and initial 
recorded amount are recognized as ‘Gain or loss on Investment’ and adjust the gain or loss from changes in fair 
value accordingly.

 Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are directly recorded in shareholders’ equity. Interests 
for the period in which the assets are held is calculated using the effective interest method is charge to profit 
or loss for the period as ‘Investment income’. Cash dividends declared by the investee company relating to 
available-for-sale equity instruments are charged to profit or loss for the period as ‘Investment income’. Until 
such financial assets is derecognized, the differences between the consideration received and the carrying 
amount of assets after deducting the accumulated fair value adjustments previously recorded in equity are 
charged to profit or loss for the period as ‘Investment income’.

 When there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets, the 
accumulated losses in fair value that was previously directly recorded in shareholder’s equity are transferred 
out and recognized as impairment losses. For the available-for-sale investment on debt instruments which 
impairment losses have been recognized, if in subsequent period, its fair value increases and the increase is 
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the previous 
recognized impairment loss is reversed into profit or loss for the period.  For an investment in an equity 
instrument classified as available-for-sale equity on which impairment loss has been recognized, the increase in 
its fair value in a subsequent period is directly charged into shareholders’ equity. For those equity instruments 
which have no quotation in the active market and of which the fair value cannot be measured reliably, their 
losses on impairment cannot be reversed.

7. Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities of the company are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” and 
“other financial liabilities” on initial recognition.

 A financial liability is derecognised when the underlying present obligations (or part of it) are discharged. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is 
recognised in profit or loss for the period.

8. Provision for bad debts of receivable

 Provision for bad debt of receivable that may occur are accounted for based on the allowance method, of which 
the aging analysis and specific identification methods are utilized to calculate the bad debt provision, which will 
be included in the profit and loss statement. For receivables that are evidently uncollectible, in accordance with 
the Company’s guideline procedures, shall be treated as bad debts, and provision shall be written off and treated 
as losses. 

9. Fixed assets

 The Company’s fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, which have useful lives of more than one year and 
have relatively high unit price.
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 The Company’s fixed assets include electronic and office equipment, and are recorded at actual cost upon 

acquisition.

 Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. 
Impairment is calculated based on the difference between the expected recoverable amount and the book value, 
only if the recoverable amount is lower than the book value. 

 Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The estimated 
useful life and the estimated residual value of fixed assets are as follows:

Item Estimated useful life Estimated residual 
value

Annual depreciation 
rate

1 Electronic & Office equipment 4 years 0% 25%

 At the end of each year, the estimated useful life, estimated residual value, and depreciation method of fixed 
assets are reviewed. If there are any changes to the above, it shall be treated changes of accounting estimates. 

 When fixed assets are disposed, or if they are no longer of any future economic benefits, they shall no longer 
be recognized as fixed assets. The amount received from fixed assets being sold, transferred, scrapped or 
destroyed, minus the book value, minus related tax, shall be recorded in profit and loss. 

10. Intangible assets

 Intangible assets of the Company include software. Intangible assets are measured at actual cost on acquisition. 
The cost of intangible assets purchased from outsiders includes purchase prices and other relevant expenditure. 
The cost of intangible assets injected by investors to the Group is measured at the consideration as specified in 
the investment contracts or agreements. In the case where the consideration of the contracts or agreements is 
not a fair value, the assets are measured at its fair value.

 The estimated useful life and amortisation method of intangible assets with finite useful life are reviewed at the 
end of each financial year. Any changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. The estimated 
useful life of intangible assets with indefinite useful life is reviewed in each accounting period. Where there 
are objective evidences that the useful life of the intangible assets become definite, then the useful life of the 
assets is estimated and amortisation is provided over its estimated useful life.

11. Long-term prepaid expense

 Long-term prepaid expense of the Company are expenditures (office Decoration and fire protection) that have 
been incurred but shall be amortised over the current period and subsequent periods of more than one year. 
The expenditures are amortised evenly over the estimated beneficial period. If the long-term prepayments are no 
longer beneficial to the subsequent accounting periods, the unamortised balance is then transferred to profit or 
loss for the period.

12. Payroll and welfare

 Payroll and welfare refers to various forms of remuneration or compensation (except share-based payment) given 
by the company to obtain services provided by employees or to terminate labour relations. Payroll and welfare 
includes short-term payroll, after-service benefits, dismissal benefits and other long-term employee benefits. 
The company provides benefits for employee spouse, children, dependents, deceased employee survivors and 
other beneficiaries, which are also recognised as payroll and welfare.
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 (1) Short-term payroll refers to the salary of the staffs that need to be fully paid within twelve months after 

the end of the annual report of the services provided by the staffs, except the compensation given by the 
dissolution of labour relationships. The short-term payroll includes employees’ salaries, bonus, allowances 
and subsidies, employees’ welfare, medical insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and 
other social insurance, housing fund and other short-term payroll.

  Short-term payroll is recognised as liabilities during the accounting period when the employee renders 
services to the company. Short-term payroll is allocated to related cost of assets and expense based on 
different beneficiaries. The non-monetary welfare of short-term payroll is measured according to the fair 
value.

 (2) After-service benefits refer to the various forms of remuneration and welfare provided by the company 
for the service provided by the emplouees after retirement or the dissolution of labor relations with the 
company, with the exception of short-term remuneration and dismissal benefits.

  The company’s defined contribution plan refers to the payment of basic pension insurance and 
unemployment insurance for the staffs according to the relevant regulations of the local government. During 
the accounting period for the employees providing service to the company, the amount should be calculated 
according to the local regulations and the proportion of the payment, which are recognized as liabilities, and 
are included in the profit and loss of the current period or the cost of the related assets.

 (3) The dismissal benefits refers to the compensation that the company is relieved of labor relations with 
the employees before the labor contract is due, or to encourage the employees to voluntarily accept the 
reduction. Although the employees do not dissolve the labor contract with the company but no longer 
provide service to the company in the future and can not bring economic benefits to the company, the 
company promises to provide economic compensation in essence with the nature of dismissal. If the “early 
retirement” situation occurs, it should be dismissal before the positive retirement date. After the official 
retirement date, it will be disposed of according to the post retirement benefits.

13. Revenue recognition

 The Company’s operating income is mainly service income. The revenue recognition principle is as follows:

 When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 
associated with the transaction shall be recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following 
conditions are satisfied:

 · The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

 · It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

 · The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and 

 · The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue 
shall be recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable. 

14. Government grants

 Government grants refer to the monetary assets or non monetary assets obtained by the Company from the 
government (but do not include the capital invested by the government as the owner). It is mainly divided into 
two types, which are sssets-related government grants and income-related government grants. 
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 Assets-related government grants are reducing the book value of related assets or recognised as deferred 

income. As for assets-related government grants are recognised as deferred income, evenly amortised to profit 
or loss over the useful life of the related asset according to a rational and systematic method. Government 
grants are recognised as other income which are related to the daily activities of the company, otherwise, 
recognized as non operating income.  

 Assets, which are sold, transferred, scrapped or damaged before the end of useful life, should be transferred the 
undistributed deferred income balance into the profit or loss of the asset disposal for the period.

 Government grants measured at nominal amount should be directly recognised as the profit or loss for the period.

 Income-related government grants are processed with the following situations respectively: Income-related 
government grant that is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods are 
recognised as deferred income and also be recognised as profit or loss for the current period or credited to the 
relevant period when the related expense are incurred; Government grants relating to compensation for related 
expenses or losses already incurred are charged directly to the profit or loss for the period or credited to the 
relevant period when the related expense are incurred. According to the business substance, government grants 
which are related to the daily activities of the company should be recognised as other income or credited to the 
relevant period when the related expenses are incurred. Otherwise, government grants are recognized as non 
operating income.

15. Leases

 Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit. 
Lease income from operating leases shall be recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, 
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the 
leased asset is diminished. 

16. Related party

 If the Company has direct or indirect control of another entity, or has significant influence over another entity; 
or another entity has direct or indirect control of the Company, or has significant influence over the Company; or 
the Company and another entity or entities are all controlled by the same party, then the Company and the other 
entities are all considered as related parties. A related party can be a person or an entity. 

17. Income taxes

 The accounting treatment on income tax utilizes the balance sheet liability method. 

 The income tax comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred tax expense (deferred tax 
income). Apart from the transactions and related matters of current tax and deferred tax that recognized directly 
in equity, the rest of current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred tax expense (deferred tax income) 
should be recorded in current profit and loss. 

 Current tax is the a amount of the income taxes payable (recoverable), in accordance with the taxation 
requirement, in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for a period; deferred tax  assets are the amounts of 
income taxes payable (recoverable) in future period in respect of taxable temporary differences. 
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5. TAXATION

 The tax categories and applicable tax rates to the Company are as follows:

 1. Enterprise income tax

  The Company’s applicable enterprise income tax rate is 25%.

 2. Value added tax

  The Company’s products sales income and services rendered income are subjected to the value added tax 
(VAT). The applicable tax rates for domestic sales and rendering of services are 16% ，13%and 6% respectively.  
Input VAT on purchases of raw materials can be deducted from output VAT. VAT payable is the net difference 
between output and deductible input VAT. 

 3. Surcharges

  The surcharge is inclusive of city construction tax, education surcharge and local education surcharge, which 
the taxes are levied at 7%, 3%, 2% and 1%  respectively, of the VAT. 

 4. Tax concessions and approvals

  According to the Announcement of the State Administration of Taxation on Issuing the Measures for the 
Exemption of Value-Added Tax on Cross-Border Taxable Acts during the Replacement of Business Tax with 
Value-Added Tax (for Trial Implementation) (2016 No.29), the Company can apply for exemption of VAT of their 
revenue on rendering of transborder services. 

6. SIGNIFCANT ITEMS IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31st, 2021

 1. Cash and Cash at banks

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Original 
currency

Exchange 
rate

Amount 
(RMB)

Original 
currency

Exchange 
rate

Amount 
(RMB)

Bank - - - - - -

RMB 13,878,191.52 1.0000 13,878,191.52  5,668,561.65 1.0000  5,668,561.65 

USD 12,673.37 6.5713 83,280.52  14,673.14 7.0851  103,960.66 

Total - - 13,961,472.04 - -  5,772,522.31 

 2. Accounts receivable

  (1) Aging analysis

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Amount % Bad debt Amount % Bad debt

Within 1 year 6,055,947.52 97.93 - 15,358,580.93 80.60 -

Over 1 year 128,239.56 2.07  66,882.63  3,696,380.83 19.40  66,882.63 

Total 6,184,187.08 100.00  66,882.63 19,054,961.76  100.00  66,882.63 

  (2) The policy of bad debt provision can be referred to this note 4.7.
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  (3) The balance of accounts receivable due from related parties as of March 31st, 2021 was RMB 180,226.26, 

which is 2.91% of the total ending balance.

 3. Prepayments

  (1) Aging analysis

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Amount % Amount %

Within 1 year 133,870.12 100.00 227,329.86 100.00

1 - 2 years - - - -

Total 133,870.12 100.00 227,329.86 100.00

  (2) There is no balance of prepayments to related parties.

 4. Other receivable

  (1) Aging analysis

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Amount % Bad debt Amount % Bad debt

Within 1 year 266,083.67 5.70 -  4,961,207.20 89.74 -

1 - 2 years 3,850,998.49 82.49 -  330,943.84 5.99 -

2 - 3 years 314,991.79 6.75 - - - -

Over 3 years 236,269.82 5.06 -  236,269.82 4.27 -

Total 4,668,343.77 100.00 - 5,528,420.86 100.00 -

  (2) The balance as at March 31st, 2021 is mainly the domestic unbilled revenue debtors, deposit for office 
rental, staff cash advance and bid bond.  

 5. Fixed Assets

Item March 31st, 2020 Additions Deductions March 31st, 2021

Cost 618,499.56 - - 618,499.56

Electronic & Office equipment 618,499.56 - - 618,499.56

Accumulated depreciation  552,053.78 61,408.29 -  613,462.07

Electronic & Office equipment  552,053.78 61,408.29 -  613,462.07

Net book value  66,445.78 — —  5,037.49 

Electronic & Office equipment 66,445.78 — —  5,037.49 
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 6. Intangible assets

Item March 31st, 2020 Additions Deductions March 31st, 2021
Cost 75,641.02 - - 75,641.02
Software 75,641.02 - - 75,641.02
Accumulated amortisation 75,641.02 - - 75,641.02
Software 75,641.02 - - 75,641.02
Net book value - - - -
Software - - - -

 7. Right-of-use asset

Item March 31st, 2020 Additions Deductions March 31st, 2021
Cost -  2,664,467.04 -  2,664,467.04
Office Rent -  2,664,467.04 -  2,664,467.04 
Accumulated amortisation - 181,668.21 - 181,668.21 
Office Rent - 181,668.21 - 181,668.21 
Net book value - - - 2,482,798.83 
Office Rent - - - 2,482,798.83 

 8. Accounts payable

  (1) Aging analysis

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Total  5,206,392.78  12,612,816.58

Including : Over 1 year -  704,140.88 

  (2) The balance of related-party’s accounts payable was RMB 5,206,392.78 accounting for 100.00% of total 
balance.

9. Accrued Payroll

Item March 31st, 2020 Additions Deductions March 31st, 2021
Short-term payroll 1,853,237.49 11,162,591.31 11,816,883.76 1,198,945.04
Salaries (including bonus, subsidy 
and allowance)

 1,853,237.49  9,941,122.34 10,595,414.79 1,198,945.04 

Social insurance -  540,230.97  540,230.97 -
Among: Medical insurance -  525,693.88  525,693.88 -
Injury insurance -  5,654.34  5,654.34 -
Maternity insurance -  8,882.75  8,882.75 -
Housing fund -  681,238.00  681,238.00 -
Defined Contribution Plans -  375,389.40  375,389.40 -
Basic endowment insurance -  359,466.38  359,466.38 -
Unemployment insurance -  15,923.02  15,923.02 -
Total  1,853,237.49 11,537,980.71 12,192,273.16 1,198,945.04 
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10. Tax Payable

Item March 31st, 2020 Additions Deductions March 31st, 2021
Value added tax -  144,483.75  144,483.75  - 
Withholding value added tax  - 1,867,544.00 1,867,544.00 -
Enterprise income tax  -  122,377.07  122,377.07 -
Individual income tax  - 1,212,909.32 1,212,909.32  - 
City construction tax -  140,841.95  140,841.95  - 

Education surcharge -  60,360.82  60,360.82  - 
Local education surcharge -  40,240.56  40,240.56  - 
Stamp tax -  14,206.40  14,206.40  - 
Others -  - 
Total - 3,771,275.54 3,771,275.54  - 

11. Other Payable

 (1) Other payable

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Total  4,177,928.10  4,718,903.28

Including : Over 1 year 480,053.90  139,008.53 

 (2) The balance of other payable due to related parties as at March 31st, 2021 was RMB 466,517.00, which is 11.17% 
of the total ending balance.

 12. Lease liability

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020

Total 2,497,141.12 -

Including : Over 1 year 689,491.67 -

 13. Paid–in Capital

Investor March 31st, 2020
Additions Deductions

March 31st, 2021

Amount % Amount %

KPIT Technologies 
Limited

14,074,702.40 100.00 - - 14,074,702.40 100.00

Total 14,074,702.40 100.00 - - 14,074,702.40 100.00

 14. Capital Surplus

Item March 31st, 2020 Additions Deductions March 31st, 2021

Capital (Share) premium 21,916.98 - - 21,916.98

Total 21,916.98 - - 21,916.98
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 15. Undistributed Profits

Item March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
Opening balance  -2,300,070.61 -5,692,054.39
Additions: Net profit  2,803,285.12  3,391,983.78
Deductions: Statutory surplus reserve - -
Closing balance  503,214.51  -2,300,070.61 
Including: cash dividend to be distributed - -

 16. Operating income and operating cost

Item 2021 2020
Operating 
income

Operating cost Operating 
income

Operating cost

Gross operating 38,525,073.35 22,325,256.42  47,451,742.56  18,564,871.99 
Service income 38,525,073.35 22,325,256.42  47,451,742.56  18,564,871.99 
Other income - -  38,025.31 -
Total 38,525,073.35 22,325,256.42 47,489,767.87 18,564,871.99 

 17. Finance Expenses

Item 2021 2020
Interest expense 30,979.96 -
Deductions: interest income 31,706.80  35,714.09 
Additions: foreign exchange loss (“-” means gain) 119,932.51 66,446.50 
Additions: bank service charge 10,747.86  11,779.70 
Total 129,953.53  42,512.11 

 18. Other income

Item Type 2021 2020
Government grants related to daily activities Income-related  971,162.06  159,594.71 
Total  971,162.06  159,594.71 

 19. Non-operating Income

Item 2021 2020
Individual income tax refund  37,582.65  42,903.47 
Total  37,582.65  42,903.47 

 20. Income Tax

Item 2021 2020
Current year income tax  122,377.07 -
Total  122,377.07 -
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 21. Cash Flow Statement

  (1) Supplementary information of cash flow statement

Item 2021 2020
1. Reconciliation of net loss to cash flows used in operating activities: — —
 Net profit 2,634,973.45 3,391,983.78
 Additions: Asset impairment — —
  Provision for bad debt - -
   Depreciation of fixed assets, oil and gas assets, and 

productive biological assets
243,076.50 113,557.56

  Amortization of intangible assets - 13,425.86
  Amortization of long-term prepaid expense - 30,825.35
   Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets, and 

other long-term assets (“-“ means “Gain”)
- -

  Losses on scrap of fixed assets (“-“ means “Gain”) - -
  Losses on changes in fair value (“-“ means “Gain”) - -
  Finance expenses (“-“ means “Income”) 119,932.51 -8,482.93
  Losses on investment (“-“ means “Gain”) - -
  Decrease in deferred tax assets (“-“ means “Increase”) - -
  Increase in deferred tax liabilities (“-“ means “Decrease”) - -
  Decrease in inventory (“-“ means  “Increase”) - -
  Decrease in other current assets (“-“ means  “Increase”) 11,262.88 -398,708.18
  Decrease in operating receivables (“-“ means  “Increase”) 13,824,311.51 -5,053,128.56
  Increase in operating payables (“-“ means “Decrease”) -8,524,674.61 -4,286,406.67
  Other - -
 Net cash flows from operating activities 8,308,882.24 -6,196,933.79
2. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents: — —
 Ending balance of cash 13,961,472.04 5,772,522.31
 Less: Opening balance of cash 5,772,522.31 11,960,973.17
 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,188,949.73 -6,188,450.86

7. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS

 A. Related party relationship

  1  Parent company

   (1) Parent company background information

Parent Company Nature Registered address Main transactions

KPIT Technologies Limited Investing India Receiving of services 
Expenses paid on behalf 
of the company
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   (2) Equity shares and changes in equity shares held by the parent company

Parent company Equity shares Equity shares  
percentage (%)

Voting right  
percentage (%)

March 31st, 
2021

March 31st, 
2020

March 31st, 
2021

March 31st, 
2020

March 31st, 
2021

March 31st, 
2020

KPIT Technologies 
Limited

14,074,702.40 14,074,702.40 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

  2  Other related parties

Relationship with the Company Name of related parties
Main transactions 
address

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company Sparta Consulting Inc. Rendering of services
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT MFZ Receiving of services
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT NL Receiving of services
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT Technologies (Japan) 

Branch
Rendering of services

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT Technologies GK (Japan) Rendering of services
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT Infosystems Inc. Receiving of services
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company

KPIT Infosystems ME FZE Korea
Rendering & Receiving 
of services

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company
KPIT Technologies (UK)Limited

Rendering & Receiving 
of services

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT Infosystems ME FZE 
Australia

Receiving of services

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT Technologies Gmbh Receiving of services
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company KPIT Technologies Limited 

Singapore
Rendering of services

 B. Due to/from related parties

  1  Accounts receivable

Name of related parties March 31st,  
2021

March 31st,  
2020

KPIT Technologies GK (Japan) 2,615.75 5,733.06

KPIT Technologies Ltd-Japan Branch 100,495.75 100,495.75

KPIT Technologies GmbH 74,773.18 158.41

KPIT Technologies Inc 2,322.50 -317.26

KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited - -1,341.25

KPIT Technology GK(Branch) South Korea 19.08 -

Total 180,226.26 104,728.71
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  2  Accounts payable

Name of related parties March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
KPIT Technologies Limited 4,867,241.40 11,821,163.40 
KPIT Technologies Gmbh 367,123.42 809,233.88
KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited -17,580.70 -17,580.70
KPIT Technologies Inc  -10,391.34 -
Total 5,206,392.78 12,612,816.58

  3  Other payable

Name of related parties March 31st, 2021 March 31st, 2020
KPIT Technologies Limited 466,517.00 754,646.13
Total 466,517.00 754,646.13

 C. Related party transactions

  1  Rendering of services

Name of related parties 2021 2020
KPIT Technologies Inc 24,443.74 591,021.48
KPIT Technologies GmbH 70,391.29 149.44
KPIT Technologies GK (Japan) 2,591.09 -
KPIT Technology GK(Branch) South Korea 18.00 -
Total 97,444.12 591,170.92

  2  Receiving of services and expenses paid by related parties

Name of related parties 2021 2020
KPIT Technologies Limited 21,281,664.47 19,364,575.29
KPIT Technologies Gmbh 375,950.17 90,250.00
KPIT Technologies Inc 57,587.32 52,866.25
KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited - -2,738.10
Total 21,715,201.96 19,504,953.44

 8. CONTINGENCIES

  As at March 31st, 2021, the Company does not have any significant contingencies to be disclosed.

 9. COMMITMENTS

  As at March 31st, 2021, the Company does not have any significant commitments to be disclosed.

 10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

  As the financial statements of the Company are approved to issue, the Company does not have any 
significant subsequent events to be disclosed.

 11. Approval of Financial Reports

  The Company’s financial statements as at March 31st, 2021 have been approved by the board of the Company.
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Board’s Report
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Financial Results 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

SGD SGD 

Total Income 1,202,204 1,513,157

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 351,852 (170,228)

Due to impact of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, the total income of the Company has decreased by 
20.55% however, the Company has earned profits.

Investment

During the year under review, the Company has transferred 1,000 shares (face value of 10 Baht each) at 53.73 Baht 
each held in ThaiGerTec Co., Limited to KPIT Technologies Limited, its parent company.

Audit

The Company is required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to audit the books of accounts of the 
Company and to issue a report to the shareholders. Therefore, the Company appointed JBS Practice PAC as auditors 
to conduct the audit and the audit report issued by them is attached with the accounts of the Company.     

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited

Pune Kishor Patil
April 21, 2021 Chairman

KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited
Registered Office: 9 Raffles Place #27-00 Republic Plaza Singapore 048619
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The directors are pleased to present their statement 
to the member together with the audited financial 
statements of KPIT TECHNOLOGIES PTE. LIMITED (the 
“Company”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

OPINION OF THE DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the directors,

(a) the accompanying financial statements of the 
Company together with notes thereto are drawn 
up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and of 
its financial performance, changes in equity and cash 
flows for the financial year then ended; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable 
grounds to believe that the Company will be able to 
pay its debts as and when they fall due.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this 
statement are:

Sachin Dattatraya Tikekar
Kishor Parshuram Patil
Mrs Gowri Wade

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE 
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial 
year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
object was to enable the directors of the Company to 
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares 
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body 
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings 
kept by the Company for the purpose of Section 164 of 
the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, none of the 

Directors’ Statement
directors of the Company holding office at the end of the 
financial year had any interest in shares of the Company 
and its related corporations, except as detailed below:

No. of ordinary shares

As at 
31.03.2020

As at 
31.03.2021

Ultimate holding company

KPIT Technologies Limited

Ordinary shares @ ` 10 per share

Kishor Parshuram Patil 19,395,605 19,395,605

Sachin Dattatraya Tikekar 840,800 840,800

SHARE OPTIONS

There were no share options granted during the financial 
year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company.

No shares have been issued during the financial year 
by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued 
shares of the Company.

There were no unissued shares of the Company under 
option at the end of the financial year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Messrs JBS Practice Public Accounting Corporation, has 
expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the board of the directors

Sachin Dattatraya Tikekar
Director

Kishor Parshuram Patil
Director

21 April 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of KPIT 
TECHNOLOGIES PTE. LIMITED (the “Company”) as set 
out on pages 8 to 34, which comprise the statement 
of financial position of the Company as at 31 March 
2021 and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2021, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and 
Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so 
as to give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and of the financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore 
Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Accounting 
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of 
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants 
and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the General Information 
set out on page 1, the Directors’ Statement set out on 
pages 2 to 3, and the accompanying Schedule of Other 
Operating Expenses.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed 
on the other information that we obtained prior to this 
auditors report, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, 
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal 
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss 
from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions 
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as 
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair 
financial statements and to maintain accountability of 
assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
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level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required 
by the Act to be kept by the Company have been 
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act.

JBS PRACTICE PAC
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Singapore 

21 April 2021
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Statement of Financial Position  
as at 31 March 2021

Note 2021 2020

S$ S$

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4 110,469 202,243

Trade and other receivables 5 672,064 1,647,651

Total assets 782,533 1,849,894

Non-current asset

Financial asset, at FVOCI 6 - 199

Total assets 782,533 1,850,093

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 52,867 780,916

Contract liabilities 9 - 701,993

Income tax payable 10,630 -

Total liabilities 63,497 1,482,909

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 719,036 367,184

EQUITY

Share capital 8 672,230 672,230

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) 46,806 (305,046)

TOTAL EQUITY 719,036 367,184



144

KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and other 
Comprehensive Income  
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021

Note 2021 2020

S$ S$

Revenue

Revenue 9 1,190,805 1,513,157

Other income 11,399 -   

1,202,204 1,513,157

Cost and Expenses

Direct cost 10 (706,361) (1,195,177)

Other operating expenses 11 (105,235) (126,706)

Employee benefits expense 12 (8,566) (297,035)

(820,162) (1,618,918)

Profit/(loss) before income tax 382,042 (105,761)

Income tax expense 13 (30,190) (64,467)

Net profit/(loss), representing total comprehensive income/(loss) for 
the financial year

351,852 (170,228)
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021

Share capital Retained 
earnings/ 

accumulated
losses

Total

S$    S$ S$

2021

Balance as at 1 April 2020 672,230 (305,046) 367,184

Net profit, representing total comprehensive income for the year - 351,852 351,852

Balance as at 31 March 2021 672,230 46,806 719,036

2020

Balance as at 1 April 2019 1 (134,818) (134,817)

Issuance of shares 672,229 - 672,229

Net loss, representing total comprehensive loss for the year - (170,228) (170,228)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 672,230 (305,046) 367,184
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Statement of Cash Flows  
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021

Note 2021 2020

S$ S$

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Profit/(loss) before income tax 382,042 (105,761)

Working capital changes, excluding changes relating to cash:

Trade and other receivables 975,786 (1,457,830)

Trade and other payables (728,049) 380,354

Contract liabilities (701,993) 663,347

Cash used in operation (72,214) (519,890)

Income tax paid (19,560) (64,467)

Net cash used in from operating activities (91,774) (584,357)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceed from issuance of shares 8 - 672,229

Investment in financial asset, at FVOCI - (199)

Net cash generated from financing activity - 672,030

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (91,774) 87,673

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 202,243 114,570

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 4 110,469 202,243
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

 KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited (Company Registration No.: 201839531R) is domiciled in Singapore. The Company’s 
principal place of business is at 9 Raffles Place, #27-00 Republic Plaza, Singapore 048619.

 The principal activities of the Company are those of outsourced information technology consultancy services, 
engineering design and other related consultancy activities.

 There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

 The financial statements of KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited as at 31 March 2021 and for the financial year then 
ended were authorised and approved by the directors for issuance on 21 April 2021.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 a) Basis of preparation

  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 
(“FRS”) as required by the Singapore Companies Act. The financial statements, which are expressed in 
Singapore dollars, are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the 
accounting policies below.

  In the current financial year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of 
FRS (“INT FRS”) that are mandatory for application from that date. The adoption of these new and revised 
FRSs and INT FRSs have no material effect on the financial statements.

 b) Development of COVID-19 outbreak and its corresponding impact on the Company 

  The outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the Singapore and other 
governments as well as the travel and trade restrictions imposed by Singapore and other countries in early 
2020 have caused disruption to businesses and economic activity. The Company evaluated the impact on its 
business operations, liquidity, assets and financial position and based on management’s review of current 
indicators and economic conditions there is no material impacts and adjustments required on its financial 
results as at 31 March 2021. The Company will continue monitor any material changes to future economic 
conditions and impact, if any.

  As the situation remains fluid (due to evolving changes in government policy and evolving business and 
customer reactions thereto) as at the date these financial statements are authorised for issue, the directors 
of the Company considered that the financial effects of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements 
cannot be reasonably estimated for future financial periods.

  Based on the management’s latest assessment, there is no indicator that the going concern assumption in 
preparing the financial statements is inappropriate.

 c) Currency translation

  Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured in the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). The financial statements of the 
Company are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

  In preparing the financial statements of the Company, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies 
are translated into Singapore dollars at rates of exchange closely approximate to those ruling at the end 
of the reporting period and transactions in foreign currencies during the financial period are translated at 
rates ruling on transaction dates. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021
  Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items 

are included in the profit or loss for the year. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in the profit or loss for the year except for differences 
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain 
or loss is also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

 d) Financial assets

  (i) Classification and measurement

   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

   • Amortised cost;

   • Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and

   • Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

   The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets as well 
as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset.

   Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

   The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

   At initial recognition

   At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through 
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

   At subsequent measurement

   (a) Debt instruments

    Debt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

     There are three subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Company’s business model 
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset:

    • Amortised cost: Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised 
cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is 
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised 
or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest income using the 
effective interest rate method.

    •  FVOCI: Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sale, and 
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are classified 
as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and 
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021

accumulated in fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit and loss. 
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented in “other gains and losses”. 
Interest income from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate 
method and presented in “interest income”.

    • FVPL: Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet the criteria 
for classification as amortised cost or FVOCI are classified as FVPL. Movement in fair values and 
interest income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises and presented in 
“other gains and losses”.

   (b) Equity investments

    The Company subsequently measures all its equity investments at their fair values. Equity 
investments are classified as FVPL with movements in their fair values recognised in profit or 
loss in the period in which the changes arise and presented in “other gains and losses”, except 
for those equity securities which are not held for trading. The Company has elected to recognise 
changes in fair value of equity securities not held for trading in other comprehensive income as 
these are strategic investments and the Company considers this to be more relevant. Movements 
in fair values of investments classified as FVOCI are presented as “fair value gains / losses” in 
Other Comprehensive Income. Dividends from equity investments are recognised in profit or loss as 
“dividend income”.

  (ii) Impairment

   The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt 
financial assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 16 details how the Company determines 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

   Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result 
from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit 
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss 
allowance is recognised for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of 
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

   For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by the FRS 109, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

   A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual 
cash flows. 

  (iii) Recognition and derecognition

   Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which 
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

   Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021
   On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale proceeds is 

recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income relating to 
that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.

   On disposal of an equity investment, the difference between the carrying amount and sales proceed 
is recognised in profit or loss if there was no election made to recognise fair value changes in other 
comprehensive income. If there was an election made, any difference between the carrying amount and 
sales proceed amount would be recognised in other comprehensive income and transferred to retained 
profits along with the amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that 
asset.

 e) Offsetting of financial instruments 

  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

 f) Cash and cash equivalents

  For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at 
bank only.

 g) Financial liabilities

  (i) Initial recognition and measurement

   Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its 
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

   All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities not at 
FVPL, directly attributable transaction costs.

  (ii) Subsequent measurement

   After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at FVPL are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss 
when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

  (iii) Derecognition

   A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts and the consideration paid is 
recognised in profit or loss.

 h) Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

  Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021
  Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 

obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised in the profit or loss as finance expense.

  Changes in the estimated timing or amount of the expenditure or discount rate are recognised in the profit 
or loss when the changes arise.

 i) Share capital

  Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new 
ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital account.

 j) Revenue recognition

  Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for transferring promised services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

  Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised 
services to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the service. When performance 
obligation is satisfied over time, the amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied 
performance obligation.

  The specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised is disclosed in Note 9 to the 
financial statements.

 k) Taxes

  Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or 
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

  Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

  A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

  Deferred income tax is measured:

  (a)  at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or 
the deferred income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period; and

   (b) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the 
end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

   Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expense in the profit or loss except 
when they relate to items credited or debited outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity), in which case the tax is also recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively).
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Notes to the Financial Statements   
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  Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

  • where the GST incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of 
the expense item as applicable; and

  • receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of GST included.

  The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

 l) Employee benefits expense

  Employee benefits are recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

  Defined contribution plans

  Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed 
contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund (CPF) on a mandatory, contractual or 
voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

 m) Related parties

  A related party is defined as follows:

  (i)   A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:

   (a) Has control or joint control over the Company;

   (b) Has significant influence over the Company; or

   (c) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

  (ii)   An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

   (a) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

   (b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 
member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

   (c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

   (d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

   (e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or 
an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are 
also related to the Company;

   (f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i);

   (g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

   (h) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 
services to the Company or to the parent of the Company
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS 

 The presentation of financial statements in conforming with FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates, assumptions and judgements in applying the accounting policies. These estimates, assumptions 
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 The following are the critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements for preparation of financial 
statements:

 (a) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

  In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies which are described in Note 2 above, 
management is of the opinion that there are no critical judgements involved, apart from those involving 
estimations that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 (b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

  The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date 
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

  i) Loss allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables

   Management determines the expected loss arising from default for trade and other receivables by 
categorised them based on its historical loss pattern, historical payment profile as well as credit risk 
profile of customer.

   Notwithstanding the above, the Company evaluates the expected credit loss on customers in financial 
difficulties separately. There is no customer in financial difficulties during the financial year.

   Management determines whether there is significant increase in credit risk of these third parties since 
initial recognition. Management considers various operating performance ratios as well as liquidity ratios 
of these companies. There is no significant increase in credit risk as at 31 March 2021.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

S$ S$

Cash at bank 110,469 202,243

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

S$ S$

Singapore dollars 46,030 67,846

United States dollars 64,439 134,397

110,469    202,243
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5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

S$ S$

Trade receivables:-

Third parties - 1,219,425

Other receivables:-

Amount owing by holding company 672,015 -

Goods and service tax receivables 49 781

Deferred cost - 427,445

672,064 1,647,651

 In 2020, trade receivables were non-interest bearing with credit terms up to 45 days or were in accordance with 
the contract or agreements with the customers.

 In 2020, deferred cost represented cost that the Company had already incurred, but which would not be charged 
to expense until a later reporting period as the service had not yet been consumed or rendered.

 Trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

S$ S$

Singapore dollars 49 781

United States dollars 672,015 1,638,418

Australian dollars -   8,452

672,064 1,647,651

6. FINANCIAL ASSET, AT FVOCI

2021 2020

S$ S$

Beginning of the financial year 199 -

Addition during the year - 199

Disposal during the year (199) -

End of the financial year - 199

 The investment has been disposed during the financial year.

 In 2020, the fair value of unlisted equity instrument represented its cost.

 In 2020, financial assets, at FVOCI were denominated in Euro.
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7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020

S$ S$

Trade payables:-

Holding company -   715,801

Related party -   597

Third party -   9,234

-   725,632

Other payables:-

Amounts due to related parties -   1,281

Provision for employee unutilised leave -   3,895

Accruals for operating expenses 52,867 50,209

Others -                 (101)

52,867 55,284

52,867 780,916

 Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled on 60 days terms.

 Amounts due to related parties were non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

 Trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

S$ S$

Singapore dollars 52,867 339,067

United States dollars - 422,207

Australian Dollar - 19,046

Euro - (1,122)

Japanese Yen - 1,718

52,867 780,916

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020

Number of issued shares S$ S$

Ordinary shares

At beginning of the financial year 672,230 1 672,230 1

Add: shares issued - 672,229 - 672,229

At end of the financial year 672,230 672,230 672,230 672,230
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 All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these shares.

 In 2020, the Company had increased its share capital from S$1 to S$672,230 by way of further allotment of 
672,229 ordinary shares for a cash consideration of S$672,229 in order to achieve an optimal capital structure as 
to provide funds for working capital purpose.

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled 
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual 
assets.

9. REVENUE

2021 2020

S$ S$

Service income :

- Non T & M Projects 1,190,805 1,287,217

- T & M Projects - 225,940

1,190,805 1,513,157

 Service income are recognised over time.

  The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance 
obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition 
policies on the next page.

Nature of services Company mainly provides following types of services:

• Information technology consultancy

• Engineering design and other related consultancy activities

When revenue is 
recognised 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers 
in an amount that reflects the consideration that expected to be received in 
exchange of those services.

More specifically:

1) T & M projects: Revenue is recognised based on actual billable efforts put in.

2) Non T & M: Revenue recognition is based on percentage of completion method

Significant payment terms Payment is due as per credit terms up to 45 days or are in accordance with the 
contract or agreements with the customers.

 Contract liabilities

2021 2020

S$ S$

Contract liabilities 

- Service income - 701,993
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Significant changes in contract liabilities

2021 2020

S$ S$

Contract liabilities

At 1 April 701,993            38,646

Amount recognised as revenue          (701,993)          (38,646)

Cash received in advance of performance and not recognised as revenue - 701,993

- 701,993

The contract liabilities arise from service income mainly due to the cumulative payments received from customer 
at end of reporting year do not necessarily equal to the amount of revenue recognised on the contracts.

10. DIRECT COST

 Direct cost represents software development charges relating to employee cost paid to various related parties. 

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2021 2020

S$ S$

Bank charges 16,062 2,411

Foreign exchange loss 35,842 5,833

Legal and professional fees 53,331 46,485

Travelling expenses - 70,259

Others - 1,718

105,235 126,706

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2021 2020

S$ S$

Salaries 8,566 207,374

Allowance - 2,912

Commission - 86,749

8,566 297,035
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2021 2020

S$ S$

Income tax expense 10,630 -

Foreign tax paid 19,560 64,467

30,190 64,467

The current year’s income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying 
the applicable Singapore statutory income tax rate of 17% (2020:17%) to the loss before income tax as a result of 
the following differences:

2021 2020

S$ S$

Profit/(loss) before taxation 382,042 (105,761)

Income tax expense at applicable rate 64,947 (17,979)

Deferred tax assets not recognised - 17,979

Utilisation of deferred tax assets (54,317) -

Foreign tax paid 19,560 64,467

30,190 64,467

14. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

 The Company’s immediate holding company is KPIT Technologies Limited, a company incorporated in India.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had 
transactions with the immediate holding company and related companies on terms agreed between them with 
respect to the following during the financial year/ period.

2021 2020

S$ S$

Software development charge to holding company 687,923 1,191,162

Software development charge to related party 18,721 3,751

 Related companies are companies under common control.

 There are no key management compensation during the financial year.

16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 Financial risk factors

 The Company’s activities expose it to market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise adverse effects from 
the unpredictability of financial markets on the Company’s financial performance.
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 a)    Market risk  

  i) Foreign currency risk

   The Company is exposed to a certain degree of foreign exchange risk arising from its transactions 
denominated in United States dollars, Australian dollars, and Euro. However, the Company does not use 
any hedging instruments to protect against the volatility associated with foreign currency transactions, 
other assets and liabilities created in the normal course of business.

   The Company’s significant currency exposure to United States dollars, Australian dollars and Euro based 
on the information provided to key management is as follows:

USD AUD EUR

S$ S$ S$

2021

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 672,015 -   -   

Cash and cash equivalents 64,439 -   -   

Net currency exposure on financial assets 736,454 - -

2020

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 1,210,973       8,452 -

Cash and cash equivalents 134,397 - -

Financial asset, at FVOCI - - 199

Financial liability

Trade and other payables (422,207) (19,046) 1,122

Net currency exposure on financial assets/ (liability) 923,163 (10,594) 1,321

   If the United States dollars, Australian dollars and Euro had weakened/ strengthened by 5% (2020: 1%), 
Nil (2020: 4%) and Nil (2020: 1%) against Singapore dollars with all other variables including tax rate 
being held constant, the Company’s loss after tax for the financial period would have been approximately 
S$36,800 (2020: S$9,200), nil (2020: S$400) and nil (2020: S$10) lower/ higher respectively, as a result of 
currency translation gains/losses arising from the net financial assets/ (liability).

  ii) Interest rate risk

   The Company has no significant exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates.

 b) Credit risk

  Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in 
financial loss to the Company. The major classes of financial assets of the Company are bank balances and 
other receivables. For banks and financial institutions, deposits are placed with regulated banks which has 
Aa credit-ratings assigned by Moody’s, a credit-rating agency. For credit exposures to customer, management 
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and 
other factors



160

KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements   
for the Financial year ended 31 March 2021
  As the Company does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial 

instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statement of 
financial position.

  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit 
risk.

  Cash and cash equivalents are subject to immaterial credit loss.

  The Company has applied the simplified approach by using the provision matrix to measure lifetime 
expected credit losses for trade receivables. Apart from trade receivables, for other financial assets, based 
on assessment of qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default (including 
but not limited to external ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow 
projections, and available press information, if available, and applying experienced credit judgement), these 
exposures are considered to have low risk credit risk. Therefore impairment on these balances has been 
measured on the 12 months expected credit loss basis, and the amount of the allowance is insignificant.

  The credit risk for trade receivables based on the information provided by key management is as follows:

2020

S$

By geographical areas

Malaysia 1,210,973

Australia 8,452

1,219,425

 c) Liquidity risk

  The Company is reliant on the ultimate holding company to provide the necessary financial support. The 
ultimate holding company believes that the Company is able to generate funds from its own operating 
activities. The ultimate holding company has confirmed that its policy and intent are to ensure that the 
Company’s capital and liquidity levels are maintained with standards of prudence generally accepted for its 
field of business in particular by providing the funds to meet the repayment of any liabilities owed by the 
Company.

  Non-derivative financial liabilities

  The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The 
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest 
date on which the Company can be required to pay. The table represents interest and principal cash flows.

2021 2020

S$ S$

On demand or within 1 year

Trade and other payables 52,867 780,916
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 d) Fair value measurement

  Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts 
are reasonable approximation of fair value.

  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and other payables approximate their 
fair values due to their short-term nature.

  The carrying amount of trade receivables and trade payables approximate their fair values as they were 
subject to normal trade credit terms.

 e) Categories of financial instruments

  The following table sets out the Company’s financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
S$ S$

Financial assets, at amortised cost 782,484 1,421,668
Financial asset, at FVOCI - 199
Financial liabilities, at amortised cost 52,867 780,916

17. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value. The capital structure 
of the Company consists of its issued capital and retained earnings. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares, buy back issued shares or obtain borrowings.

 The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and its overall strategy remained 
unchanged for the financial year/ period ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

18. STANDARD ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

 At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Company has not adopted the following FRSs and 
amendments to FRS that were issued but not yet effective:

Description Effective for annual 
periods beginning 

on or after
Amendments to FRS 1: Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
Amendments to FRS 103: Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to FRS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
Amendments to FRS 37: Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
Annual Improvements to FRSs 2018 -2020 1 January 2022
Amendments to FRS 109, FRS 39, FRS 107, FRS 116: Interest Rate benchmark Reform – Phase 2 1 January 2021

 The Company has not applied those FRSs and INT FRSs that have been issued but are effective only in next 
financial year. The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no financial effect on the 
financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2021 2020

S$ S$

Bank charges 16,062 2,411

Foreign exchange loss 35,842 5,833

Legal and professional fees 53,331 46,485

Travelling expenses -   70,259

Rates -   1,718

105,235 126,706
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Board’s Report  
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

JPY JPY

Total Income 2,796,255,212 3,788,811,502 

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 83,336,173 109,901,200 

Due to impact of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, the total income of the Company has decreased by 
26.20 % as compared to previous year, however, the Company has earned profits.

Directors

During the year under review, Mr. Rajesh Janwadkar was appointed as a Director of the Company with effect from 
August 4, 2020.

Audit

The Company is required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to audit the books of accounts of the 
Company and to issue a report to the shareholders. Therefore, the Company appointed Mazars Audit LLC as auditors 
to conduct the audit and the audit report issued by them is attached with the accounts of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
KPIT Technologies GK

Pune Kishor Patil
April 23, 2021 Chairman

KPIT Technologies GK
Registered Office: Senikaikan 5 F, 3-1-11 Nihonbashi-Honcho Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan 103-0023.
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Independent Auditor’s Report   
To KPIT Technologies GK
Representative Member KPIT Technologies Ltd
Executive Manager, 
Mr. Rohan Sohoni

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of KPIT Technologies GK (the “Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as of March 31, 2021, income 
statement and statement of changes in net assets for 
the fiscal year then ended, including the notes to the 
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance 
with Rules of Corporate Accounting, applying its article 
98-2(5), and generally accepted accounting principles in 
Japan.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities	of	Management	for	the	Financial	
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements in accordance with Rules of 
Corporate Accounting, applying its article 98-2(5), and 
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and 
for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in Japan, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for our risk 
assessment, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control.

Evaluate the appropriates of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

Evaluate whether the overall presentation of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, are in accordance 
with Rules of Corporate Accounting, applying its article 
98-2(5), and accounting principles generally accepted in 
Japan.
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We communicate with the management regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

Interest

Our firm and the Designated Responsible Partner do 
not have any financial interest in the Company which 
disclosures is required under the provisions of the 
Certified Public Accountants Act in Japan.

Mazars Audit LLC
April 23, 2021

Masashi Uchida
Designated Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant
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(Amount in yen)

Account Amount Account Amount

ASSETS LIABILITIES

Current Assets: Current Liabilities :

Cash and cash equivalents 654,117,982 Trade payables 552,151,187

Trade receivables 778,432,705 Other payables 12,128,575

Other receivables 532,192,071 Accrued employee costs 14,252,813

Prepaid expenses 3,182,367 Income tax payable 26,585,981

Unbilled revenue 13,181,928 Consumption Tax payable 157,524,192

Other current assets 2,675,651 Withholdings 17,894,201

Unearned revenue 812,669,725

Provision for Bonuses 44,716,213

Total current assets 1,983,782,704 Total Current Liabilities 1,637,922,887

Non-current Assets : Non-current Liabilities :

Tangible fixed assets Asset Retirement Obligation 4,301,506

Tools, furniture and fixtures 8,544,328

Total tangible fixed assets 8,544,328 Total non-current Liabilities 4,301,506

Investments and other 
Security Deposit

21,364,777 Ne t Assets:  
Member’s equity: Capital

27,396,250

Deferred tax asset 27,306,482 Retained earnings 371,377,648

Total investments and other 48,671,259 Total Member’s equity 398,773,898

Total non-current Assets 57,215,587 Total Net Assets 398,773,898

TOTAL ASSETS 2,040,998,291 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS

2,040,998,291
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for the year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

(Amount in yen)

Account Name Amount

Net sales 2,791,849,955

Cost of goods sold 2,370,807,046

 Gross profit 421,042,909

Selling, general and administrative expenses 300,652,328

 Operating profit 120,390,581

Non-operating income

Interest income 717,988

Foreign exchange loss 3,687,269 4,405,257

 Ordinary income 124,795,838

Profit before income taxes 124,795,838

Income taxes 53,081,196

Deferred tax expenses (11,621,531)

Net income 83,336,173
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets  
for the year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

(Amount in yen)

Member’s Equity Total Net 
AssetsCapital Retained 

Earnings
Total Member’s 

Equity

Balance at beginning of the year 27,396,250 288,041,475 315,437,725 315,437,725

Change in the year

Net Income 83,336,173 83,336,173 83,336,173

Total change in the year - 83,336,173 83,336,173 83,336,173

Balance at end of the year 27,396,250 371,377,648 398,773,898 398,773,898
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I.  Significant Accounting Policies

 1. Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets

  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives 
of the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
(No. of years)

Plant and equipment 4-5

Office Equipment 10

Owned Vehicle 5

Furniture and fixtures 8

  Improvements to leased premises are amortized over the remaining non-cancellable period of the lease.

  Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

 2. Provisions for Bonuses 

  To provide for future payments of bonuses to directors and employees, the provision for bonuses is recorded 
based on the Company’s internal regulations or on another basis.

 3. Revenue recognition

  The percentage of completion method is used to recognize revenue for fixed price contract. The percentage 
of completion of the activity is estimated by the incurred cost.

 4. Consumption tax

  The accounting of the consumption tax is based on the tax exclusion method.

II. Notes for others

 Notes on the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, and Statements of Changes in Net Assets are partially omitted 
in accordance with Article 98-2-5 of the Ordinance on Company Accounting.
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Board’s Report  
Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present herewith the report of the Directors on the operations of the Company 
together with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

Financial Results 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20*

Baht Baht

Net Revenue 68,208,172 17,426,747 

Net Profit / (Loss) for the period (8,569,665) 26,459 

*These figures are for 3 months ended 31 March 2020. 

The shareholders at their extra ordinary general meeting held on January 29, 2020, approved the change in financial 
year of the company’s accounting period from 1 January - 31 December to 1 April – 31 March and accordingly, the 
Company obtained an approval from Ministry of Commerce – Department of Business Development and The Revenue 
Department. Due to impact of COVID-19 Pandemic in the year 2020-2021, the Company has incurred losses.

Directors

During the year under review, Mr. Rohan Sohoni was appointed as a Director of the Company with effect from August 
19, 2020.

Audit

The Company is required by the local laws to have an independent audit firm to audit the books of accounts of the 
Company and to issue a report to the shareholders. Therefore, the Company appointed Bangkok International Audit 
Co., Ltd as auditors to conduct the audit and the audit report issued by them is attached with the accounts of the 
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ThaiGerTec Co., Limited

Pune Kishor Patil
April 9, 2021 Chairman

ThaiGerTec Co., Limited
Registered Office: Rungrojthanakul Building, 14th Floor, 44/1 Ratchadapisek Road, Huay Kwang District, Bangkok 10310, 
Thailand
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Independent Auditor’s Report   
To The Shareholders of ThaiGerTec Co., Ltd

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of ThaiGerTec 
Co., Ltd which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2021, the statement of income 
and changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and 
its financial performance for the year then ended in 
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards for 
Non-Publicly Accountable Entities.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards 
on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my 
report. I am independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
as issued by the Federation of Accounting Profession 
as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, 
and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit 
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards for Non-Publicly 
Accountable Entities, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on 
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on 
Auditing, I exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
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I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with management regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my 
audit.

METEE SANGMANEE
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5061

Bangkok International Audit Co., Ltd
Bangkok
9 April 2021
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Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2021

Baht
Note 2021 2020

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4  15,313,544.03  6,296,587.77 
Trade and other receivables 5  30,605,932.84  13,678,033.74 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  45,919,476.87  19,974,621.51 

NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Building improvement and equipment 6  12,889,542.32  13,954,175.22 
Intangible assets 7  280,756.71  406,927.04 
Other non - current assets  3,974,350.00  4,019,850.00 
TOTAL NON - CURRENT ASSETS  17,144,649.03  18,380,952.26 

TOTAL ASSETS  63,064,125.90  38,355,573.77 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 8  28,769,243.84  1,290,286.74 
Advance received  5,799,260.00  -   
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  34,568,503.84  1,290,286.74 

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long - term borrowing from other party 9  2,400,000.00  2,400,000.00 
TOTAL NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES  2,400,000.00  2,400,000.00 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  36,968,503.84  3,690,286.74 

EQUITY
Share capital
Authorized share capital
1,600,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each  16,000,000.00  16,000,000.00 
Paid - up share capital
1,600,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each  16,000,000.00  16,000,000.00 
Retained earnings  10,095,622.06  18,665,287.03 
TOTAL EQUITY  26,095,622.06  34,665,287.03 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  63,064,125.90  38,355,573.77 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director
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Statements of Income  
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Baht

For the year 
ended 31 March 

2021

For the year 
ended 31 March 

2020

REVENUES

Services income  67,359,124.29  17,392,922.45 

Other income  849,047.68  33,824.09 

TOTAL REVENUES  68,208,171.97  17,426,746.54 

EXPENSES

Cost of service  53,733,121.18  8,905,974.16 

Administrative expenses  22,470,376.71  7,102,179.86 

Bad debt  574,339.05  1,137,399.58 

Other expenses  -    254,734.23 

TOTAL EXPENSES  76,777,836.94  17,400,287.83 

NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR / PERIOD  (8,569,664.97)  26,458.71 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Baht

 Paid - up
share capital 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Total 

Balance as at 1 January 2020  16,000,000.00  18,638,828.32  34,638,828.32 

Net profit for the period  -    26,458.71  26,458.71 

Balance as at 31 March 2020  16,000,000.00  18,665,287.03  34,665,287.03 

Balance as at 1 April 2020  16,000,000.00  18,665,287.03  34,665,287.03 

Net loss for the year  -    (8,569,664.97)  (8,569,664.97)

Balance as at 31 March 2021  16,000,000.00  10,095,622.06  26,095,622.06 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director



176

ThaiGerTec Co., Ltd 

Notes to Financial Statements
as at 31 March 2021
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Registration : The Company was registered as a limited company on 11 November 2004.  
Registration No. 0105547152489

Located : No. 44/1 Rungrojthanakul Building, 14th Floor, Ratchadaphisek Road,  
Haui Kwang Sub - District, Haui Kwang District, Bangkok.

Type of business : Electronic design and development service.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with financial reporting standard applicable to non 
- publicly accountable entities as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions and their presentation has 
been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development 
dated 28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

 The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company.

 The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the 
accounting policies.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 3.1 Revenues and expenses recognition

  Service are recognized the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting 
discounts.

  Other revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

 3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

 3.3 Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

  Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realizable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided 
for the estimated collection losses that may be incurred in the collection of receivables. The allowance is 
based on collection experience and the current status of the receivables outstanding at the statement of 
financial position date. Bad debts will be written off for the accounts considered uncorrectable.

Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director
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 3.4 Building improvement and equipment and depreciation

  Building improvement and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of 
building improvement and equipment are calculated by reference to theirs cost on a straight - line method 
over the estimated useful lives as follow :

Years

Building improvement 20

Machinery and equipment 5

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixture 5 

  Depreciation of building improvement  and equipment are included in determining income.

 3.5 Intangible assets and amortization

  Intangible assets initially acquired are recognised at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets 
with finite lives are amortized on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and 
the amortization method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The 
amortization expense is charged to the income statement. Amortization of computer software are calculated 
by reference to theirs cost on a straight - line method over the useful lives 3 - 5 years.

 3.6 Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 3.7 Foreign currencies

  Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Baht at the rates ruling on the transaction 
dates.  Assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding on the  statement of financial position date are 
translated into Baht at the rates ruling on the  statement of financial position date.

  Exchange gains and losses are included in determining income.

 3.8 Income tax

  Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with tax 
legislation.

 3.9 Use of accounting estimates

  Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual result may differ from those 
estimates.

Notes to Financial Statements
as at 31 March 2021

Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director



178

ThaiGerTec Co., Ltd 

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Baht
2021 2020

Cash  49,367.00  50,000.00 
Cash at bank - Saving account  1,949,730.11  6,048,958.95 

- Current account  314,446.92  197,628.82 
- Fixed 3 months  13,000,000.00  -   

Total  15,313,544.03  6,296,587.77 

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Baht
2021 2020

Trade accounts receivable  24,440,686.08  9,123,093.52 
Other receivables
 - Refundable input tax  4,395,447.98  2,947,009.15 
 - Withholding tax  75,212.51  89,387.06 
 - Prepaid expense  786,707.11  1,418,544.01 
 - Advance to employee  907,879.16  100,000.00 
Total  30,605,932.84  13,678,033.74 

6. BUILDING IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPMENT

Baht
As at

1 April 2020
Addition Deduction As at

31 March 2021
Cost :
Building improvement  10,677,470.00  -    -    10,677,470.00 
Machinery and equipment  6,004,741.04  1,137,375.00  -    7,142,116.04 
Office equipment  4,670,408.34  22,888.04  -    4,693,296.38 
Furniture and fixture  4,673,482.13  -    -    4,673,482.13 
Total  26,026,101.51  1,160,263.04  -    27,186,364.55 
Accumulated depreciation :
Building improvement  1,064,671.75  533,873.48  -    1,598,545.23 
Machinery and equipment  4,392,281.93  647,651.68  -    5,039,933.61 
Office equipment  3,319,211.42  527,595.34  -    3,846,806.76 
Furniture and fixture  3,295,761.19  515,775.44  -    3,811,536.63 
Total  12,071,926.29  2,224,895.94  -    14,296,822.23 
Net  13,954,175.22  12,889,542.32 
Depreciation (included in statements of 
income)
Year 2021  2,224,895.94 
Period 2020  555,647.58 

Notes to Financial Statements
as at 31 March 2021
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Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Baht
As at

1 April 2020
Addition Deduction As at

31 March 2021
Cost :
Computer software  1,217,933.04  16,570.74  -    1,234,503.78 
Total  1,217,933.04  16,570.74  -    1,234,503.78 
Accumulated amortization :
Computer software  811,006.00  142,741.07  -    953,747.07 
Total  811,006.00  142,741.07  -    953,747.07 
Net  406,927.04  280,756.71 
Depreciation (included in statements of 
income)
Year 2021  142,741.07 
Period 2020  43,154.99 

8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Baht
2021 2020

Trade accounts payable  28,084,776.45  593,756.67 
Other payables
 - Withholding tax payable  147,230.91  233,706.94 
 - Social security fund payable  27,754.00  45,000.00 
 - Accrued expenses  509,482.48  417,823.13 
Total  28,769,243.84  1,290,286.74 

9. LONG - TERM BORROWING FROM OTHER PARTY

 As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, long - term borrowing is borrowing from other party, there is no interest.

10. PROMOTIONAL PRIVILAGES

 The Company has been granted promotional privileges from the Board of Investment in 2 certificates, as 
following :

 1. The promotion certificate No. 1949(4)/2553 on 25 January 2010 for the investment in respect of the electronic 
design. (Date of first earning operating income : 5 October 2010)

 2. The promotion certificate No. 1822(7)/2554 on 9 February 2011 for the investment in respect of the embedded 
software. (Date of first earning operating income : 30 August 2011)

 The main promotion privileges included, among other things, as following :

 - Exemption of import duties on machinery.

 The Company must comply with certain conditions and restrictions provided in the promotional certificates.

Notes to Financial Statements
as at 31 March 2021
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 Revenue of the Company for the period are divided between BOI promoted activities and non – BOI promoted 
activities as follow :

Baht

For the year ended 31 March 2021

 Promoted 
Business

Non - Promoted 
Business

Total

Services income  -    67,359,124.29  67,359,124.29 

Other income  -    849,047.68  849,047.68 

Total  -    68,208,171.97  68,208,171.97 

Baht

For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

Promoted 
Business

Non - Promoted 
Business

Total

Services income  -    17,392,922.45  17,392,922.45 

Other income  -    33,824.09  33,824.09 

Total  -    17,426,746.54  17,426,746.54 

11. CHANGE THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

 At the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of the company held on 29 January 2020, the shareholders 
approved to change the Company’s accounting period from the period starting from 1 January to 31 December 
to the period starting from 1 April to 31 March. The Company obtained an approval from Ministry of Commerce - 
Department of Business Development and The Revenue Department.

12. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 These financial statements were authorized for issue by the authorized directors of the Company on 9 April 2021.

Notes to Financial Statements
as at 31 March 2021

Sachin Tikekar  Rohan Sohoni
Director Director
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Reconciliation statement of Profit and Loss variance amount between 

Financial Statements as per country specific local GAAP disclosure in KPIT’s Financial Statements of Subsidiaries 
2020-21

and

Subsidiary trial balance considered for Consolidated Financial Statements as per IND AS in KPIT’s Annual Report . 

Sr No Name of Subsidiary Currency  Amount 
A Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

1 KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited (including branches)
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS GBP  24,412 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per United Kingdom specific local GAAP financial statement GBP  38,426 
C. Variance Amount GBP  14,014 

Reconciliation :
1 Currency translation of Sweden and Italy branch Trial Balance considered in 

profit & loss in United Kingdom specific local GAAP financial statement
GBP  17,350 

2 Corporate Tax impact on above considered in United Kingdom specific local 
GAAP financial statement

GBP  (3,336)

Total GBP  14,014 

2 KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co. Limited, China
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS  CNY  2,803,285 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per China specific local GAAP financial statement  CNY  2,803,285 
C. Variance Amount  CNY  - 

3 KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V.
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS  EUR  593,356 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Netherlands specific local GAAP financial statement  EUR  593,356 
C. Variance Amount  EUR  - 

4 KPIT Technologies Pte. Limited, Singapore
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS  SGD  351,852 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Singapore specific local GAAP financial statement  SGD  351,852 
C. Variance Amount  SGD  - 

5 KPIT Technologias Ltda
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS BRL  486,633 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Brazil specific local GAAP financial statement BRL  486,633 
C. Variance Amount BRL  - 
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Sr No Name of Subsidiary Currency  Amount 

6 KPIT Technologies Holding Inc.
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS USD  (14,465)
B. Profit / (Loss) as per Standalone Financial Statement - IND AS USD  (14,465)
C. Variance Amount USD  - 

7 KPIT Technologies Limited GK, Japan (including branch)
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS  JPY  79,555,382 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Japan specific local GAAP financial statement  JPY  83,336,172 
C. Variance Amount  JPY  3,780,791 

Reconciliation :
1 Impact of ‘IND AS 19- Employee Benefits’, cost relating to Leave accrual not 

considered in Japan specific local GAAP financial statement
 JPY  4,727,218 

2  Impact of ‘IND AS 116 - Leases’, cost relating to facility lease accounting not 
considered in Japan specific local GAAP financial statement 

 JPY  372,457 

3 Deferred tax impact on 1 & 2 above considered in Japan specific local GAAP 
financial statement

 JPY  (1,763,978)

4 Currency translation of Korea branch Trial Balance considered in Japan 
specific local GAAP financial statement

 JPY  445,093 

Total  JPY  3,780,791 

B Step Down Subsidiaries

1 KPIT Technologies GmbH, Germany
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS EUR  (1,250,280)
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Germany specific local GAAP financial statement EUR  1,486,164 
C. Variance Amount EUR  2,736,444 

Reconciliation :
1 Profit of ‘MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH’  transferred as per Profit 

& Loss domination agreement between KPIT Technologies GmbH and 
MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Germany.

EUR  2,274,637 

2 Impact of ‘IND AS 116 - Leases’, cost relating to facility lease accounting not 
considered in Germany specific local GAAP financial statement 

EUR  117,771 

3 Derecognition of revenue in Germany specific local GAAP financial statement  EUR  (103,545)
4 Impact of ‘IND AS 109 Financial Instruments’, fair valuation of trade deposit 

towards facility lease not considered in Germany specific local GAAP financial 
statement  

EUR  (14,291)

5 Corporate Tax provision considered in Consolidated financial statement - IND 
AS 

EUR  450,000 

6 Notary cost capitalized in Germany specific local GAAP financial statement  EUR  11,871 
Total EUR  2,736,444 
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Sr No Name of Subsidiary Currency  Amount 

2 MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Germany
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS EUR  2,302,064 
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Germany specific local GAAP financial statement EUR  - 
C. Variance Amount EUR  (2,302,064)

Reconciliation :
1 Profit of  ‘MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH’  transferred as per Profit 

& Loss domination agreement between KPIT Technologies GmbH and 
MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH, Germany.

EUR  (2,274,637)

2 Impact of ‘IND AS 116 - Leases’, cost relating to facility lease accounting not 
considered in Germany specific local GAAP financial statement 

EUR  (59,594)

3 Impact of ‘IND AS 109 Financial Instruments’, fair valuation of trade deposit 
towards facility lease  not considered in Germany specific local GAAP 
financial statement  

EUR  32,167 

Total EUR  (2,302,064)

3 KPIT Technologies Inc. 
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS USD  4,049,855 
B. Profit / (Loss) as per Standalone Financial Statement - IND AS USD  4,049,855 
C. Variance Amount  - 

4 ThaiGer Tec Co., Ltd
A. Profit / (Loss) as per Consolidated Financial Statement - IND AS  THB  (8,474,658)
B. Profit /( Loss) as per Thailand specific local GAAP financial statement  THB  (8,569,665)
C. Variance Amount  THB  (95,007)

Reconciliation :
1 Impact of ‘IND AS 116 - Leases’, cost relating to facility lease accounting not 

considered in Thailand specific local GAAP financial statement 
 THB  (91,699)

2 Impact of ‘IND AS 109 Financial Instruments’, fair valuation of trade deposit 
towards facility lease not considered in Thailand specific local GAAP financial 
statement  

 THB  (3,308)

Total  THB  (95,007)

** GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
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